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Ria Berger Ron DiLuigi
Supervisor Andrew Do Alexander Nguyen, M.D.
Lee Penrose Richard Sanchez
J. Scott Schoeffel Supervisor Michelle Steel

Supervisor Lisa Bartlett, Alternate

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF COUNSEL CLERK OF THE BOARD
Michael Schrader Gary Crockett Suzanne Turf

This agenda contains a brief description of each item to be considered. Except as provided by law, no
action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda. To speak on an item, complete a Public
Comment Request Form(s) identifying the item(s) and submit to the Clerk of the Board. To speak on a
matter not appearing on the agenda, but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
you may do so during Public Comments. Public Comment Request Forms must be submitted prior to
the beginning of the Consent Calendar, the reading of the individual agenda items, and/or the
beginning of Public Comments. When addressing the Board, it is requested that you state your name
for the record. Address the Board as a whole through the Chair. Comments to individual Board
Members or staff are not permitted. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes per item.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodations for this
meeting should notify the Clerk of the Board's Office at (714) 246-8806, at least 72 hours prior to the

meeting.

The Board Meeting Agenda and supporting documentation is available for review at CalOptima,
505 City Parkway West, Orange, CA 92868, Monday-Friday, 8:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m. The Board
Meeting Agenda and supporting materials are also available online at www.caloptima.org. Board
meeting audio is streamed live at https.//caloptima.org/en/AboutUs/BoardMeetingsLive.aspx

CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance
Establish Quorum

PRESENTATIONS/INTRODUCTIONS
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MANAGEMENT REPORTS

1. Chief Executive Officer Report
a. National Committee for Quality Assurance Recognition
b. Chief Medical Officer Transition
c. Whole-Child Model Implementation
d. Auto-Assignment for CalOptima Community Network
e. Be Well OC Leadership Role

PUBLIC COMMENTS

At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the
agenda, but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board of Directors. Speakers will be limited to
three (3) minutes.

CONSENT CALENDAR
2. Minutes
a. Approve Minutes of the September 6, 2018 Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of
Directors

b. Receive and File Minutes of the May 17, 2018 Meeting of the CalOptima Board of
Directors' Finance and Audit Committee, the May 16, 2018 Meeting of the CalOptima Board
of Directors' Quality Assurance Committee, the August 9, 2018 Meeting of the CalOptima
Board of Directors’ Provider Advisory Committee, and the July 12, 2018 Meeting of the
CalOptima Board of Directors” Member Advisory Committee

3. Consider Approval of the Updated Strategy for the Disbursement of Years 2-5 OneCare Connect
Quality Withhold Payment to CalOptima Community Network

4. Consider Authorizing Modification of Claims Payment Policies Associated with the
Implementation of the Whole-Child Model

REPORTS

5. Consider Accepting and Receiving and Filing the Fiscal Year 2018 CalOptima Audited
Financial Statements

6. Acting as the CalOptima Foundation: Consider Accepting and Receiving and Filing the
Fiscal Year 2018 CalOptima Foundation Audited Financial Statements

7. Consider Revisions and Development of CalOptima Financial Policies and Procedures Related
to the Whole-Child Model Program and Annual Policy Review

8. Consider Modifications and Development of CalOptima Policies and Procedures Related to
Whole-Child Model and Annual Policy Review

9. Consider Authorizing Issuance of a Request for Proposal for Consulting Services to Assist in

Analyzing the CalOptima Provider Network Strategy, Approving Related Scope of Work, and
Expansion of Existing Engagement with Milliman, Inc. for Actuarial Services
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10. Consider Adoption of Resolution Approving and Adopting Updated Human Resources Policies

11. Consider Ratification of Extension of Contract with MedImpact Healthcare Systems, Inc. for
Pharmacy Benefit Management Services

12. Consider Authorization of Expenditures in Support of CalOptima’s Participation in Community
Event

13. Consider Chief Counsel Merit Compensation for the 2017-2018 Review Period
ADVISORY COMMITTEE UPDATES

14.  Member Advisory Committee Update

15. Provider Advisory Committee Update

INFORMATION ITEMS

16. Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) Funding Update

17. August 2018 Financial Summary

18. Compliance Report

19.  Federal and State Legislative Advocates Report

20. CalOptima Community Outreach and Program Summary

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: Thursday, November 1, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.
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MEMORANDUM
DATE: October 4, 2018
TO: CalOptima Board of Directors
FROM: Michael Schrader, CEO
SUBJECT: CEO Report
COPY: Suzanne Turf, Clerk of the Board; Member Advisory Committee; Provider

Advisory Committee; OneCare Connect Member Advisory Committee; and
Whole-Child Model Family Advisory Committee

CalOptima Earns Top Quality Rating in California for an Outstanding Fifth Year

With gratitude and pride, I announce that CalOptima is — for the fifth year in a row —
California’s top-rated Medi-Cal plan, according to the National Committee for Quality
Assurance (NCQA) Medicaid Health Insurance Plan Ratings 2018-2019. CalOptima received a
score of 4 out of 5 — the highest score awarded to any Medi-Cal plan in the state. In fact, only
13 Medicaid plans of the 177 reviewed nationwide received higher scores of 4.5 or 5. This five-
year achievement would not be possible without your Board’s ongoing leadership and guidance.
You ensure our focus is on fulfilling our mission for members. Similarly, we cannot succeed
without excellent partnerships from the provider community. Daily they deliver the quality care
worthy of NCQA recognition. CalOptima’s success as a community-based health plan is truly a
team effort. Congratulations to all for proving for a fifth time that we remain Better. Together.

Chief Medical Officer (CMO) Transitions to Retirement, Interim CMO Named

I would like to recognize Richard Helmer, M.D., whose last day as CalOptima CMO was
September 21. We owe him a debt of gratitude for his excellent leadership not once but three
times across CalOptima’s history. Most recently, he served as CMO since 2013, but before that,
he helped launch the agency in 1995 as a consultant and held an interim CMO position in the late
1990s. Dr. Helmer will be honored at a future Board meeting. But in the meantime, he is off to
Europe on his first vacation in retirement! Picking up the medical mantle as Interim CMO is
Emily Fonda, M.D. Board certified in internal medicine, Dr. Fonda has been a medical director
with CalOptima since 2013, working in the areas of care management, senior programs and long-
term support services. She earned her medical degree from University of California, Irvine and
holds a master’s in Medical Management from University of Southern California.

Whole-Child Model (WCM) Implementation Draws Closer, Readiness Activities Intensify
CalOptima’s commitment to ensuring an effective transition of the California Children’s
Services (CCS) program to the WCM is reflected in our multipronged strategy engaging staff
from affected departments as well as community representatives. Please see below for updates
about member communications, network operations, advisory committee support and more.

e Member Notices: Prior to October 1, the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) will
mail its 90-day notice to more than 13,000 Orange County families, informing them about
the upcoming transition of CCS from the Orange County Health Care Agency to CalOptima
under the WCM. At that point, CalOptima’s Customer Service department anticipates

Back to Agenda
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receiving calls. In addition, CalOptima must mail 60- and 30-day notices. We will also be
doing up to three automated calls per member, starting 60 days prior to the transition and
offering warm transfers to the Customer Service team.

e Network Certification: On September 28, CalOptima submitted provider network
information to DHCS for approval. At this time, CalOptima and our health networks
collectively have contracts with more than 90 percent of the CCS-paneled providers in
Orange County. Further, we plan to continue pursuing agreements with CCS-paneled
providers who are not currently contracted to raise that percentage even higher. As a backup,
we will execute Letters of Agreement with individual noncontracted providers when
necessary for continuity of care.

e Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) Services Carve-In: In September, DHCS informed
CalOptima that NICU services will be carved in for Orange County under the WCM. Instead
of NICU claims being administered at the state level, CalOptima will be responsible for
paying the claims. This carve-in was already implemented by health plans that transitioned to
WCM in an earlier phase. Your Board will be asked to approve contract amendments to
reflect this change.

e Advisory Committees: Both families and clinicians are now engaged, and the first meetings
of our advisory committees have taken place. On August 9, CalOptima launched the WCM
Family Advisory Committee. Seven committee members attended, and the meeting included
an update on our implementation efforts as well as an open discussion of topics for future
meetings. On September 25, the WCM Clinical Advisory Committee convened for the first
time. In addition to CalOptima medical staff, the group includes Hoda Kaddis, M.D., County
CCS medical director; Nikta Forghani, M.D., pediatric endocrinologist at CHOC and UCI;
John Patrick Cleary, M.D., neonatologist at CHOC; Wyman Lai, M.D., pediatric cardiologist
at CHOC; Afshin Aminian, M.D., orthopedic surgeon at CHOC; Amy Harrison, M.D.,
pediatric pulmonologist at CHOC; Smita Tandon, M.D., pediatrician in private practice; and
Michael Weiss, D.O., vice president of CHOC Health Alliance. Unlike the WCM Family
Advisory Committee, this clinical group is not required to hold public meetings subject to the
Brown Act.

e Health Network Meetings: CalOptima has established multiple communication channels via
targeted meetings with health network representatives. A biweekly clinical workgroup
discusses medical aspects of the program, such as the Medical Therapy Units and custom
durable medical equipment. Meanwhile, a different biweekly operations meeting focuses on
details like authorizations and transition regulations. A third group gathers project managers
from the health networks to ensure a smooth implementation process. Further, a special four-
part clinical training session in November and December, presented by Dr. Kaddis, County
CCS medical director, will help health networks’ frontline medical staff respond effectively
to the care coordination needs of members with prevalent CCS conditions in four categories:
musculoskeletal and neurologic; cardiovascular; endocrine and metabolic; and respiratory.

o Family Events: This month, CalOptima is again offering several opportunities for families
with CCS children to attend informational meetings. Held in five locations across Orange
County with day and evening times, the events will feature an overview presentation and a
question-and-answer segment. Interpreters will also be available to translate as needed.

o Stakeholder Engagement: Keeping community-based organizations and other stakeholders
up to date about the transition remains a priority. On September 25, the WCM was a featured

Back to Agenda
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topic during the quarterly Community Alliances Forum. And in November, the transition will
be the focus of our CalOptima Informational Series meeting.

Joint Advisory Group Meeting to Discuss Auto Assignment

Based on your Board’s direction at the September meeting, CalOptima is to gather stakeholder
feedback to help guide future action on auto assignment for Medi-Cal members. To that end,
auto assignment for the CalOptima Community Network will be a featured topic during the
October 11 Joint Meeting of the Provider Advisory Committee, Member Advisory Committee
and OneCare Connect Member Advisory Committee. Therefore, the Board item to consider
removing the limit on members who can be auto assigned to the CalOptima Community Network
is slated to be agendized at your November 1 meeting.

CalOptima Takes on Leadership Role to Build a Better Behavioral Health System

At the September 20 meeting of Be Well OC, a coalition working to improve Orange County’s
behavioral health system, CalOptima volunteered to be a lead organization, in Be Well parlance,
a “backbone” organization. The agency will be responsible for facilitating two of the six results
areas: closing treatment gaps and improving access, and developing community wellness hubs.
This means we will convene stakeholders to further define the goals in the two areas and then
establish a communitywide work plan. Be Well’s other four results areas are stigma reduction,
prevention and early intervention, strengthening crisis response, and aligning
policy/finance/programs.

Back to Agenda



MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
CALOPTIMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

September 6, 2018

A Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors was held on September 6, 2018, at
CalOptima, 505 City Parkway West, Orange, California. Chair Paul Yost, M.D., called the meeting to
order at 2:00 p.m. Supervisor Do led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Members Present: Paul Yost, M.D., Chair; Dr. Nikan Khatibi, Vice Chair; Ria Berger,
Ron DiLuigi, Supervisor Andrew Do, Alexander Nguyen, M.D., Lee Penrose,
Richard Sanchez, Scott Schoeffel, Supervisor Michelle Steel

Members Absent: All Members Present

Others Present: Michael Schrader, Chief Executive Officer; Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel;
Greg Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer; Richard Helmer, M.D., Chief Medical
Officer; Ladan Khamseh, Chief Operating Officer; Len Rosignoli, Chief
Information Officer; Suzanne Turf, Clerk of the Board

Chair Yost announced the following changes to the agenda: Agenda Item 21, CalOptima Delivery
System Overview, will be presented after the Consent Calendar is considered, and Agenda Item 18,
Consider Chief Executive Officer and Chief Counsel Performance Reviews and Compensation, to
follow closed session.

MANAGEMENT REPORTS

1. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Report

CEO Michael Schrader reported that CalOptima was awarded National Committee for Quality
Assurance (NCQA) accreditation at the commendable level, which will be in effect for three years.
Mr. Schrader also reported on the successful completion of the Department of Health Care Services
(DHCS) Medi-Cal audit covering the period February 1, 2017 through January 31, 2018. The audit
evaluated CalOptima’s compliance with our contract and regulations in several areas: utilization
management, case management and care coordination, access and availability, member rights and
responsibilities, quality improvement system, internal organization and administration, facility site
reviews, and medical records review.

PUBLIC COMMENT

1. Nam Si Dong, M.D.; Viet Van Dang, M.D., United Care Medical Group; Toan Q. Tran, M.D., and
Trieu Tran, M.D., Family Choice Health Network — Oral re: Agenda Item 5, Consider Changes to
the Member Auto-Assignment Limits for the CalOptima Community Network

2. Berenice Constant, AltaMed Health Services — Oral re: Agenda Item 15, Consider Approval of
Process for Considering Requests for Letters of Support from Organizations Seeking to Offer

Back to Agenda
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Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) Services in Orange County Independent of
CalOptima

CONSENT CALENDAR

2. Minutes
a. Approve Minutes of the August 2, 2018 Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of
Directors
b. Receive and File Minutes of the June 28, 2018 Meeting of the CalOptima Board of
Directors’ OneCare Connect Cal MediConnect (Medicare-Medicaid Plan) Member
Advisory Committee, and the June 14, 2018 Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors’
Provider Advisory Committee

3. Consider Revisions to the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 Board of Directors’ Quality Assurance
Committee and Board of Directors' Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Schedule

4. Acting as the CalOptima Foundation: Consider Appointments to the CalOptima Foundation
Audit Committee

Consent Calendar Item 4 was pulled for discussion.

Action:  On motion of Supervisor Do, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors approved
the balance of the Consent Calendar as presented. (Motion carried 9-0-0)

4. Acting as the CalOptima Foundation: Consider Appointments to the CalOptima Foundation
Audit Committee

Director Penrose commented on the CalOptima Foundation, which was formed to receive grant
funding from the Office of the National Coordinator to work with Orange County primary care
providers to implement electronic health records through the activities of the CalOptima Regional
Extension Center (COREC), and the completion of this project several years ago. Mr. Penrose
requested that the Board consider the possibility of initiating the process to dissolve the Foundation
and directed staff to present options for discussion at a Board future meeting.

Action:  On motion of Director Penrose, seconded and carried, the Foundation Board of
Directors reappointed Lee Penrose and Victor K. Hausmaninger to the CalOptima
Foundation Audit Committee for terms ending on September 30, 2020. (Motion
carried 9-0-0)

The agenda was reordered to hear Report Item 21, CalOptima Delivery System Overview.

21. CalOptima Delivery System Overview

Greg Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer, presented an overview of the CalOptima delivery system,
including: background on the provider network; comparable health plans; information pertaining to the
last CalOptima network Request for Proposal; delivery system metrics; quality and financial metrics;
and health network requirements.

Back to Agenda
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After considerable discussion of the item, Supervisor Do directed staff to agendize an item for Board
consideration at a future meeting to recommend issuing Request for Proposals to conduct a study to
analyze CalOptima’s provider network strategy, and to seek input from the Member and Provider
Advisory Committees ahead of the recommendation to the Board of Directors.

REPORTS

5. Consider Changes to the Member Auto-Assignment Limits for the CalOptima Community Network
Mr. Hamblin presented the recommended action to consider authorizing removal of the 10% auto-
assignment limit for the CalOptima Community Network (CCN) and revise Policy EE.1106, Health
Network and CalOptima Community Network Minimum and Maximum Member Enrollment to reflect
such changes.

After discussion of the matter, the Board of Directors continued this item to the November 1, 2018
Board of Directors meeting in order to solicit input from stakeholders including the Member and
Provider Advisory Committees regarding proposed changes to the auto-assignment limit for CCN.

Action:  On motion of Supervisor Steel, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors
continued this item to the November 1, 2018 Board meeting. (Motion carried 9-0-0)

6. Consider Authorizing Amendment to Medi-Cal Contract with Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc.,
to Extend Member Enrollment Terms

Director Schoeffel did not participate in this item due to potential conflicts of interest and left the room
during the discussion and vote.

Action:  On motion of Supervisor Steel, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors
authorized the Chief Executive Officer, with the assistance of Legal Counsel, to
amend the contract between Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. (Kaiser) and
CalOptima to continue to provide that new CalOptima Members who are family
linked with an existing CalOptima Kaiser Member will be automatically assigned to
Kaiser, and new CalOptima Members who had a previous relationship with Kaiser
within the last twelve (12) months will be able to choose Kaiser as their CalOptima
Health Network. (Motion carried 8-0-0; Director Schoeffel absent)

7. Consider Ratification of Overpayments to Health Networks Related to the Medi-Cal Component of
the OneCare Connect Rates

Supervisors Do and Steel did not participate in the discussion and vote on this item due to conflicts of
interest based on campaign contributions under the Levine Act. Director Schoeffel did not participate
in this item due to potential conflicts of interest and left the room during the discussion and vote.

Action:  On motion of Director Nguyen, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors ratified
overpayments to health networks related to the Medi-Cal component of the OneCare
Connect rates for the period of July 1, 2015 through January 31, 2018, in an amount
not to exceed $385,000, and made a finding that such expenditures are for a public
purpose and in furtherance of CalOptima’s mission and statutory purpose. (Motion
carried 6-0-0; Supervisors Do and Steel recused; Director Schoeffel absent)

Back to Agenda
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8. Consider Adoption of Resolution Approving and Adopting Updated Human Resources Policies

Action:

On motion of Supervisor Steel, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors adopted
Resolution No. 18-0906, approving and adopting new Human Resource Policy
GA.8059: Attendance and Timekeeping, and updates to Human Resources Policies
GA.8027: Unlawful Harassment, GA.8051: Hiring of Relatives, and GA.8058: Salary
Schedule. (Motion carried 9-0-0)

9. Consider Authorizing Employee and Retiree Group Health Insurance for Calendar Year 2019

Director Schoeffel did not participate in this item due to potential conflicts of interest and left the room
during the discussion and vote.

Action:

On motion of Director Penrose, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors: 1)
Authorized the Chief Executive Officer, with the assistance of Legal Counsel, to enter
into contracts and/or amendments to existing contracts, as necessary, to continue to
provide group health insurance, including medical, dental, vision, for CalOptima
employees and retirees (and their dependents), and basic employee life insurance and
accidental death and dismemberment, short-term and long-term disability, employee
assistance program, and flexible spending accounts for Calendar Year (CY) 2019 in
an amount not to exceed $18.5 million; 2) Authorized an increase to CalOptima’s
contributions to absorb the increase to premium rates of 1.3 %, increasing costs to
CalOptima in an amount not to exceed $135,375, which will maintain employee
contributions at the same dollar amount as CY 2018; 3) Authorized employer
contributions in the estimated amount of $161,250 to fully fund Health Savings
Accounts on 1/1/2019 for employees or retirees enrolled in the CalOptima Cigna high
deductible health plan (HDHP) for CY 2019 in anticipation of eliminating the Cigna
PPO plan in CY 2020; 4) Authorized the continuation of a Spousal Surcharge of $50
per pay period (for 24 pay periods) for those employees/retirees whose spouses or
Registered Domestic Partners: (a) have access to other medical plans through their
own employers or other sources, but choose to be enrolled under the CalOptima plan;
or (b) are enrolled in their own medical plan, and elect to also enroll under the
CalOptima plan; and 5) Authorized the transition to a 4-tier rate structure for
Medical, Dental, and Vision at a cost of approximately $82,874 to allow for
identification of enrolled employee spouses and child/children. (Motion carried 8-0-
0; Director Schoeffel absent)

10. Consider Ratification of Amendment to Contract with the California Department of Health Care

Services for the California Technical Assistance Program (CTAP) Grant and CTAP Policy; Consider

Retirement of CalOptima Regional Extension Center Policies

Action:

On motion of Director Penrose, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors ratified
an amendment to the contract with the California Department of Health Care
Services for the California Technical Assistance Program (CTAP) grant award
agreement for a two-year extension through June 30, 2020, ratified the CTAP policy,
and retired CalOptima Regional Extension Center policies. (Motion carried 9-0-0)

Back to Agenda
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11. Consider Modifications and Development of CalOptima Policies and Procedures Related to
Whole-Child Model, Medicaid and CHIP Managed Care Final Rule, and Annual Policy Review

Action:  On motion of Vice Chair Khatibi, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors
authorized the Chief Executive Officer to modify existing and develop new policies
and procedures in conjunction with the Whole-Child Model initiative, as follows:
DD.2006: Enrollment In/ Eligibility with CalOptima [Medi-Cal]; DD.2006b:
CalOptima Community Network Member Primary Care Provider
Selection/Assignment [Medi-Cal]; EE.1112: Health Network Eligible Member
Assignment to Primary Care Provider [Medi-Cal]; EE.1132: Bed Day Utilization
Criteria for Physician Hospital Consortia [Medi-Cal|; GG.1401: Pharmacy
Authorization Process [Medi-Cal]; GG.1409: Drug Formulary Development and
Management [Medi-Call; GG.1410: Appeal Process for Pharmacy Authorization
[Medi-Call; GG.1600: Access and Availability Standard [Medi-Cal]; and GG.1650A:
Credentialing and Recredentialing of Practitioners [All Lines of Business]. (Motion
carried 9-0-0)

12. Consider Approval of Proposed Updated Behavioral Health Policy and Form to Support the
Administration of Behavioral Health Treatment Services for Medi-Cal Members

Action:  On motion of Vice Chair Khatibi, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors
approved the updated CalOptima Policy GG.1548: Authorization for Behavioral
Health Treatment (BHT) Services. (Motion carried 9-0-0)

13. Consider Authorization of Expenditure Plan for Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) 6 and 7 Funds,
Including the Release of Requests for Proposals for Community Grants to Address Children’s Mental
Health, Opioid and Other Substance Overuse, and Other Community Needs Identified by the
CalOptima Member Health Needs Assessment

Phil Tsunoda, Executive Director, Public Policy and Public Affairs, presented the recommended
actions to: 1) Approve the expenditure plan for allocation of IGT 6 and 7 funds in the amount of $21.1
million for the Department of Health Care Services-approved and Board-approved priority areas; and
2) Authorize the release of Requests for Proposal (RFPs) for community grants and internal project
applications, with staff returning at a future Board meeting with evaluation of proposals and
recommendations for award(s) being granted.

Director Nguyen acknowledged fellow IGT 6 and 7 Ad Hoc members Supervisor Do and Director
Schoeffel and reported that the Ad Hoc recently met to review a pool of 117 Requests for Information
responses and recommended the release of six RFPs totaling $21.1 million in remaining IGT 6 and 7
funds. The Ad Hoc also recommended the following revisions to Community Grants: 1) revise the
allocation amount for the Access to Outpatient Mental Health Services RFP, Children’s Mental Health
priority area, from $2.7 million to $4.85 million; 2) revise the allocation amount for Integrate Mental
Health Services into Primary Care Settings RFP, Opioid and Other Substance Overuse priority area,
from $7 million to $4.85 million; 3) revise the Expand Mobile Food Distribution Services RFP priority
area to read, “Community Needs Identified by the MHNA/Childhood Obesity and Children’s Health;”
4) revise the Expand Access to Food Distribution Services focused on Children and Families RFP
priority area to read, “Community Needs Identified by the MHNA/Childhood Obesity and Children’s
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Health;” and 5) revise the Expand Access to Food Distribution Services for Older Adults RFP priority
area to read, “Community Needs Identified by the MHNA/Older Adult Health.”

After discussion of the matter, Chair Yost commented on the importance of focusing on the health care
needs of CalOptima members, particularly on nutrition items, and not duplicating services already
available in the County from other existing programs such as Meals on Wheels and reduced cost/free
school breakfast/lunch programs.

Action:  On motion of Director Nguyen, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors
approved the expenditure plan for the allocation of IGT 6 an d7 funds in the amount
of 321.1 million for the Department of Health Care Services-approved and Board-
approved priority areas as revised, and authorized the release of Requests for
Proposal for community grants and internal project applications, with staff returning
at a future Board meeting with the evaluation of proposals and recommendations for
award(s) being granted. (Motion carried 9-0-0)

14. Consider Ratification of the Pursuit of Proposals with Qualifying Funding Partners to Secure Medi-
Cal Funds Through the Voluntary Rate Range Intergovernmental Transfer Program for Rate Year
2018-19 IGT 9)

Director Penrose directed staff to provide an analysis of the new regulations pertaining to IGT funding,
beginning with IGT 8, to the Board for discussion at a future meeting.

Action:  On motion of Supervisor Do, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors ratified
and authorized the following activities to secure Medi-Cal funds through the
Voluntary Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) Rate Range Program: 1) Submission of
a proposal to the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to
participate in the Voluntary Rate Range Intergovernmental Transfer Program for
Rate Year 2018-19 (IGT 9); 2) Pursuit of IGT funding partnerships with the
University of California-Irvine, the Children and Families Commission, the County
of Orange, the City of Orange, and the City of Newport Beach to participate in the
upcoming Voluntary Rate Range Intergovernmental Transfer Program for Rate Year
2018-19 (IGT 9), and; 3) Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute
agreements with these entities and their designated providers as necessary to seek
IGT 9 funds. (Motion carried 9-0-0)

15. Consider Approval of Process for Considering Requests for Letters of Support from Organizations
Seeking to Offer Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) Services in Orange County
Independent of CalOptima

Mr. Tsunoda presented the recommended action to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to implement
a process to consider requests for letters of support from organizations seeking to offer PACE services
in Orange County independent of CalOptima, with all final decisions subject to Board approval.

After considerable discussion, the Board took the following action.

Action:  On motion of Director DiLuigi, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors
authorized the Chief Executive Officer to implement a process to consider requests
for letters of support from organizations seeking to offer PACE services in Orange
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County independent of CalOptima, with all final decisions subject to Board approval,
with the following revisions: Threshold Criteria revised to 50% weighting; Primary
Criteria revised to 50% weighting, and revised to include potential impact on
CalOptima PACE program/operations and other PACE Organizations (POs)
operating in Orange County, if any. (Motion carried 5-4-0; Vice Chair Khatibi,
Supervisors Do and Steel, and Director Schoeffel voting no)

16. Consider Authorization of Expenditures in Support of CalOptima’s Participation in Community
Events

Action:  On motion of Supervisor Steel, seconded and carried, the Board of Directors: 1)
Authorized the expenditure of up to $10,000 and staff participation at the Vietnamese
Cultural Center’s 2018 Mid-Autumn Festival on Sunday, September 23, 2018 at Mile
Square Park in Fountain Valley, the expenditure of up to $3,000 and staff
participation at the Vietnamese Physician Association of Southern California
Foundation’s Free Health Fair on Sunday, October 14, 2018 at the Westminster Rose
Center in Westminster, and the expenditure of up to $1,500 and staff participation at
the 2" Annual Parkinson Interactive Conference for the Latino community on
Saturday, October 20, 2018 at Downtown Anaheim Community Center in Anaheim;
2) Made a finding that such expenditures are for a public purpose and in furtherance
of CalOptima’s mission and statutory purpose; and 3) Authorized the Chief Executive
Officer to execute agreements as necessary for the events and expenditures. (Motion
carried 9-0-0)

17. Consider Ratification of Contract for Legal Services
Director Schoeffel did not participate in this item due to potential conflicts of interest and left the room
during the discussion and vote.

The motion for ratification of a legal services contract with Richards, Watson and Gerson failed to
achieve a majority; no action taken.

18. Consider Chief Executive Officer and Chief Counsel Performance Reviews and Compensation
This item was considered after closed session.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE UPDATES

19. Provider Advisory Committee (PAC) Update

Dr. John Nishimoto, PAC Chair, provided an overview of the topics discussed at their August 9, 2018
meeting, including updates on the Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS) results,
the Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (CAHPS) survey, a review of the
Health Homes program, and an update on Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) 5, 6 and 7 funds.

20. OneCare Connect Cal MediConnect (Medicare-Medicaid Plan) Member Advisory Committee
Update

OCC MAC Chair Gio Corzo reported on the activities at their August 23, 2018 meeting, including
informational presentations on IGT funding, the Health Homes program, the 2018 HEDIS results, and
a review of the CAHPS survey.
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INFORMATION ITEMS

The following Information Items were accepted as presented:
22. July 2018 Financial Summary

23. Compliance Report

24. Federal and State Legislative Advocates Report

25. CalOptima Community Outreach and Program Summary

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

Chair Yost reported on the formation of an ad hoc to review Request for Information responses and
making recommendations to the Board of Directors related to the expenditure of Intergovernmental
Transfer (IGT) 5 funds, and appointed Supervisor Do, and Directors Nguyen and Penrose to serve with
him on this ad hoc.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

The Board of Directors adjourned to closed session at 5:58 p.m. pursuant to: 1) Government Code
Section 54957, PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Chief Executive Officer);
2) Government Code Section 54957.6, CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS, Agency
Designated Representatives: (Paul Yost, M.D. and Lee Penrose) Unrepresented Employee: (Chief
Executive Officer); 3) Government Code Section 54957, PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION (Chief Counsel); and 4) Government Code Section 54957.6, CONFERENCE WITH
LABOR NEGOTIATORS, Agency Designated Representatives: (Paul Yost, M.D. and Lee Penrose),
Unrepresented Employee: (Chief Counsel).

The Board reconvened to open session at 7:00 p.m. with no reportable actions taken.

18. Consider Chief Executive Officer and Chief Counsel Performance Reviews and Compensation
Chair Yost reported that over the past few months, the Board has met to review the performance of
CalOptima’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and to set goals for Fiscal Year 2018-19 and reported that
the Board has completed that process and adopted goals for the CEO for the coming fiscal year. Chair
Yost directed the Clerk of the Board to attach the adopted FY 2018-19 goals to the September 6, 2018
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes. Chair Yost also reported that the Board had completed the Chief
Counsel’s performance review and awarded a score of fully meets expectations for the 2017-2018
review period.

ADJOURNMENT
Chair Yost adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m.

/s/ Suzanne Turf
Suzanne Turf
Clerk of the Board

Attachment: FY 2018-19 CEO Incentive Goals

Approved: October 4, 2018
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CEO Incentive Goals for FY 2018-19
Board approved on 9-6-2018

Strategic Priority

Goals

Potential

. Description
Points P

Measures of Accomplishment

Innovation
Pursue innovative
programs and
services to optimize
member access to
care

1. Whole Child Model

Complete implementation of Whole
Child Model to transition of the

25 California Children’s Services (CCS)
program from the Orange County
Health Care Agency to CalOptima

1. Threshold = Pass State readiness review,
followed by successful launch on Jan 1

2. Target = #1 + Risk Stratifications for
100% of CCS children within 45 days of go-
live, Health Risk Assessments for 80% of
high-risk CCS children by May 31, 2019

3. Exceptional = #2 + Individual Care Plans
for 80% of complex CCS children by July
31,2019

Facilitate coordination with the County
HCA and Cities to develop a proactive

1. Threshold = Solicit input from
community stakeholders such as County
Supervisors, HCA, hospitals, etc.

2. Homeless health 10 . . 2. Target = Obtain board approval for
response to dealing with homeless . e
CalOptima Homeless Initiative
healthcare needs . .
3. Exceptional = Implementation
CalOptima Homeless Initiative
3. Additional PACE Evaluate requ.est for letters of support 1. Target = Board approval for evaluation
. (LOS) from private-sector PACE process
Centers in Orange 10 . .
operators (PO) who want to open 2. Exceptional = Implementation of
County .
Centers in Orange County process
1. Threshold = Board approval to pursue
Denti-Cal
. Explore administration of Denti-Cal in 2. Target = #1 + secure support from
4. Denti-Cal 10 . . .
Orange County California Dental Association and DHCS
3. Exceptional = #2 + secure a legislative
sponsor / author
Expand telemedicine for behavioral L. Threshold = Board_ approval for IGT5
health to Community Health Centers funds to support a pilot
5. Behavioral Health 10 ¥ 2. Target = Design a pilot program to

(CHC) and FQHCs to increase access and
promote integrated care

support telemedicine for behavioral health
3. Exceptional = Implement pilot

Page 1 of 2
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Potential

budget related to Administrative Loss
Ratio (ALR) on a consolidated basis

Strategic Priority Goals Points Description Measures of Accomplishment
1. Threshold = Implement by Jan 1, 2019,
with a 5% decrease from 1 qtr 2018 to 1*
gtr 2019 in the avg morphine milligram
equivalent (MME)/member
Fully implement a comprehenswg . 2. Target = 7.5% decrease in the avg
6. Substance Use pharmacy program to combat opioid
. 15 . .. | MME/member
Disorders abuse that addresses prescribers, retail
pharmacies, and members 3. Exceptional = 10% decrease in the
average MME/member + 5% decrease in
the number of members receiving a
prescription fill for a benzodiazepine and
an opioid analgesic in the same quarter
Obtain NCQA rating of top Medi-Cal 1. Threshold = Commendable
Value managed care plan in California for 5™ | accreditation
ﬁac)gr::srt;ee\r/\fkl)ﬁs 7. Value Ratings 10 consecutive year, improvej CalOptima | 2. Target = #1 + Improvement in
by ensuring quality in overall HEDIS scores, and improve CalOptima overall HEDIS score
a cost-effective way auto assignment (AA) ranking for 3. Exceptional = #2 + top NCQA ranking in
Community Network (CN) CA + top 3 AA ranking for CN
Financial 8. Consolidated financial Meet or exceed fi.nancial projections in Threshold (Budget): ALR <= 4.4%
Strength performance 10 board-approved fiscal year 18/19 Target: ALR <= 4.0%

Exceptional: ALR <= 3.5%

Merit Goals

Design and implement strategy for new NCQA Population Health standards by May 2019

Maximize the number of providers that complete DHCS enrollment and screening process in advance of the Jan 1, 2019, deadline, in accordance with the

new federal Mega Reg

Onboard three additional PACE Alternative Care Setting (ACS) satellite sites
Wind down or alter the purpose of the CalOptima Foundation

Redesign CalOptima website to make it more member centric, usable on smart phones, and reflect a contemporary look and feel

Continue to elevate CalOptima’s profile via leadership roles for CEO at various local, state, and national organizations

Complete Employee Engagement Survey to develop actionable improvements for employee retention and morale.

360 Performance Evaluations for all members of executive team, for the purpose of leadership development

Page 2 of 2
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MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
CALOPTIMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

CALOPTIMA
505 C1TY PARKWAY WEST
ORANGE, CALIFORNIA

May 17, 2018

CALL TO ORDER
Chair Lee Penrose called the meeting to order at 2:04 p.m. Director Schoeffel led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Members Present: Lee Penrose, Chair; Scott Schoeffel, Ron DiLuigi

Members Absent:  All members present

Others Present: Michael Schrader, Chief Executive Officer; Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel; Greg
Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer; Richard Helmer, M.D., Chief Medical Officer;
Ladan Khamseh, Chief Operating Officer; Len Rosignoli, Chief Information
Officer; Suzanne Turf, Clerk of the Board

PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no requests for public comment.

INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE UPDATE

1. Treasurer’s Report

Mr. Hamblin presented an overview of the Treasurer’s Report for the period January 1, 2018 through
March 31, 2018. Based on a review by the Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee, all
investments were compliant with Government Code section 53600 ef seq., and with CalOptima’s
Annual Investment Policy.

CONSENT CALENDAR

2. Approve the Minutes of the February 15, 2018 Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of
Directors' Finance and Audit Committee: Receive and File Minutes of the January 22, 2018 Meeting of
the CalOptima Board of Directors’ Investment Advisory Committee

Action: On motion of Director Schoeffel, seconded and carried, the Committee
approved the Consent Calendar as presented. (Motion carried 3-0-0)
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REPORTS

3. Consider Recommending Board of Directors’ Approval of the CalOptima Fiscal Year 2018-19
Operating Budget

Mr. Hamblin presented the actions to recommend that the Board of Directors approve the CalOptima
Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 Operating Budget and authorize the expenditure and appropriate the funds for
items listed in Attachment B: Administrative Budget Details, which shall be procured in accordance
with CalOptima Policy GA.5002: Purchasing. As proposed, the FY 2018-19 Operating Budget assumes
an average monthly enrollment of approximately 784,000 members, revenue at approximately $3.5
billion, medical costs of approximately $3.3 billion, operating income of approximately $18.3 million,
and a total change in net assets of $23.3 million. A detailed review of the proposed FY 2018-19
Operating Budget by line of business was presented to the Committee for discussion.

After considerable discussion of the matter, the Committee directed staff to refine the administrative
allocations between the different lines of business for presentation to the Board of Directors. The
Committee also requested additional information at a future Finance and Audit Committee meeting
regarding the effectiveness of personal care coordinators on all levels.

Action: On motion of Director Schoeffel, seconded and carried, the Committee
recommended Board of Directors’ approval of the CalOptima Fiscal Year (FY)
2018-19 Operating Budget and authorize the expenditure and appropriate the
Sfunds for items listed in Attachment B: Administrative Budget Details, which
shall be procured in accordance with CalOptima Policy GA.5002: Purchasing.
(Motion carried 3-0-0)

4. Consider Recommending Board of Directors’ Approval of the CalOptima Fiscal Year 2018-19
Capital Budget

Mr. Hamblin presented the action to recommend that the Board of Directors approve the CalOptima FY
2018-19 Capital Budget and authorize the expenditure and appropriate the funds for the items listed in
Attachment A: Fiscal Year 2018-19 Capital Budget by Project, which shall be procured in accordance
with CalOptima policy. The recommended FY 2018-19 Capital Budget of $9.8 million in the following
asset types within three asset categories: Information systems, including hardware, software, and
professional fees related to implementation, approximately $6.9 million; 505 Building improvements,
approximately $2.8 million; and PACE Center, $156,000.

Action: On motion of Director DiLuigi, seconded and carried, the Committee
recommended Board of Directors’ approval of the CalOptima Fiscal Year (FY)
2018-19 Capital Budget and authorize the expenditure and appropriate the
SJunds for the items listed in Attachment A: Fiscal Year 2018-19 Capital Budget
by Project, which shall be procured in accordance with CalOptima policy.
(Motion carried 3-0-0)
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INFORMATION ITEMS

5. 2018 Audit Planning

DeVon Wiens of Moss-Adams LLP presented a review of the scope of services for the annual
consolidated financial statement audit for the year ending June 30, 2018 and provided a brief overview
of the recent changes in accounting standards. Interim fieldwork is scheduled to begin on May 21, 2018,
and final fieldwork will begin on July 23, 2018. The draft audited financial statements will be presented
to the Finance and Audit Committee for review at the September 2018 meeting.

6. March 2018 Financial Summary
Mr. Hamblin provided an overview of the balance sheet, Board-Designated Reserves and tangible net
equity (TNE) requirement as of March 31, 2018.

7. Proposition 56 Update

Candice Gomez, Executive Director, Program Implementation, presented an update on the California
Healthcare, Research and Prevention Tobacco Tax Act (Proposition 56), which provides additional
payments for certain Medi-Cal related services. The DHCS recently released guidance related to
physician service payments that applies to 13 specific procedure codes. Proposition 56 payments have
been included in the DHCS capitation to CalOptima since April 30, 2018, and payments are to be passed
through to eligible providers for the initial payment within 90 calendar days of receiving capitation from
DHCS. It was noted that recommendations related to the methodology for the disbursement of
Proposition 56 physician services payments to eligible Medi-Cal providers will be presented to the
Board for consideration at the June meeting.

The following Information Items were accepted as presented:
8. CalOptima Information Systems Security Update
9. Cost Containment Improvements/Initiatives
10. Quarterly Reports to the Finance and Audit Committee
a. Shared Risk Pool Performance
b. Reinsurance Report
c. Health Network Financial Report
d. Purchasing Report

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
Committee members thanked staff for their work on the FY 2018-19 Operating and Capital Budgets.

ADJOURNMENT
Hearing no further business, Chair Penrose adjourned the meeting at 4:01 p.m.

/s/ Suzanne Turf
Suzanne Turf
Clerk of the Board

Approved: September 18, 2018
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MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
CALOPTIMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

CALOPTIMA
505 CitY PARKWAY WEST
ORANGE, CALIFORNIA

May 16, 2018

CALL TO ORDER
Acting Chair Ria Berger called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. Director Khatibi led the pledge of
Allegiance.

Members Present: Ria Berger, Acting Chair; Dr. Nikan Khatibi; Alexander Nguyen, M.D.
Members Absent:  Paul Yost, M.D., Chair

Others Present: Michael Schrader, Chief Executive Officer; Richard Helmer M.D.,
Chief Medical Officer; Richard Bock, M.D., Deputy Chief Medical Officer;
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel; Diana Hoffman, Deputy Chief Counsel,
Ladan Khamseh, Chief Operating Officer; Suzanne Turf, Clerk of the Board

PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no requests for public comment.

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approve the Minutes of the February 20, 2018 Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of
Directors Quality Assurance Committee

Action: On motion of Director Nguyen, seconded and carried, the Committee
approved the Minutes of the February 20, 2018 Regular Meeting of the
CalOptima Board of Directors’ Quality Assurance Committee as presented.
(Motion carried 3-0-0; Chair Yost absent)

Acting Chair Berger reordered the agenda to hear Item 5, PACE Member Advisory Committee
Update.
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5. PACE Member Advisory Committee Update

Mallory Vega, PACE Member Advisory Committee (PMAC) Community Representative, reported
on the activities at the March 26, 2018 PMAC meeting, including a presentation of the 2017
Participant Satisfaction Survey results. The Committee was also informed of the upcoming changes
to the number and type of vehicles used for participant transport, and that those impacted by the
change will be notified in advance.

REPORTS

2. Receive and File 2017 Utilization Management Program Evaluation

Action: On motion of Director Nguyen, seconded and carried, the Committee
received and filed the 2017 Utilization Management Program Evaluation as
presented. (Motion carried 3-0-0; Chair Yost absent)

3. Consider Recommending Board of Directors’ Approval of the Methodology for and the
Disbursement of Years 2-5 OneCare Connect Quality Withhold Payment of Participating Health
Networks

Richard Bock, M.D., Deputy Chief Medical Officer, presented the action to recommend Board of
Directors’ approval of the methodology for and the disbursement strategy of OneCare Connect
demonstration years 2-5 (calendar years 2016-19) quality withhold payment to contracted health
networks, including the CalOptima Community Network (CCN).

Dr. Bock reported that the Cal MediConnect quality withhold reduces capitation for both Medi-Cal
and Medicare payments to CalOptima by two percent (2%) in Year Two and by three percent (3%) in
Years Three, Four, and Five. CalOptima can earn back withheld funds by CalOptima by passing a
percentage of defined quality withhold measures prescribed by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CMS) and the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) based on industry standard
quality metrics. It was noted that while the CalOptima’s health networks do not have full
accountability for every measure, there are measures that CalOptima has direct responsibility for, and
other measures that have shared responsibility between the delegated health networks and CalOptima.
The proposed methodology to distribute earned withhold funds back to contracted health networks
was presented to the Committee for discussion.

Action: On motion of Director Khatibi, seconded and carried, the Committee
recommended Board of Directors’ approval of the methodology for and the
disbursement strategy of OneCare Connect demonstration years 2-5
(calendar years 2016-19) Quality Withhold payment to contracted Health
Networks, including CalOptima’s Community Network. (Motion carried 3-0-
0; Chair Yost absent)

4. Consider Recommending Board of Directors’ Approval of the Modification of the Previously
Approved Pay for Value Payment Methodology for Measurement Year (MY) 2017 for CalOptima
Community Network (CCN) Providers by Incorporating an Improvement Factor

Dr. Bock presented the action to recommend Board of Directors’ approval of the addition of an
improvement factor to the MY2017 payment methodology for CCN primary care providers for Medi-
Cal, subject to regulatory approval, as applicable. As proposed, the addition of an improvement
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factor for the CCN Pay for Value (P4V) program aligns the health network and CCN P4V programs.
This alignment will leverage improvement efforts and efficiencies that CCN implements in
conjunction with the other Health Networks. A review of the incentive payment methodology was
provided to the Committee.

Action: On motion of Director Nguyen, seconded and carried, the Committee
recommended Board of Directors’ approval of the addition of an
improvement factor to the MY2017 payment methodology for CCN primary
care providers for Medi-Cal, subject to regulatory approval, as applicable.
(Motion carried 3-0-0; Chair Yost absent)

INFORMATION ITEMS

6. PACE Primary Care Physician Incentive Program Update

Miles Masatsugu, M.D., PACE Clinic Medical Director, presented an overview of the proposed
modifications to the PACE Primary Care Physician (PCP) Incentive program, including: allowing all
PACE PCPs and community-based physicians to participate in the PACE incentive program;
increasing the number of quality improvement (QI) elements to align with other lines of business;
increasing the QI incentive from $3 per member per month (PMPM) to $10 PMPM; and change the
distribution of utilization management (UM) inpatient cost savings sharing element to support
inpatient avoidance strategies, including after-hours telephonic coordination of care, after-hours
home visit evaluations, admissions directly to senior nursing facilities for appropriate cases, and
emergency room evaluations with observation stays. Dr. Masatsugu reviewed the proposed QI
incentive elements and proposed UM incentive for discussion.

7. Perinatal Support Services Update

Dr. Bock provided an update on the Perinatal Support Services (PSS) program. In April 2018, a
Request for Information/Request for Proposal process was conducted. Two qualified respondents
were identified to provide perinatal support services for CalOptima members. One of the responders
bid below the Medi-Cal Comprehensive Perinatal Support Program (CPSP) fee-for-service rates. The
other respondent, the current capitated vendor, provides PSS services through home visits. However,
this vendor’s proposed compensation was significantly higher than what would be reimbursed based
on the Medi-Cal CPSP fee-for-service rates. It was reported that staff also reviewed current County
PSS providers/vendors and rate data, and confirmed that there are over 250 independent, certified
CPSP providers currently serving CalOptima members at the CalOptima Medi-Cal fee-for-service
rates. Staff proposed the following recommendations for consideration by the Board of Directors at
the June meeting: withdraw the Perinatal Support Services RFP; authorize CalOptima to contract
with all willing, qualified PSS providers and vendors at Medi-Cal rates; and authorize the addition of
an enhanced care coordination rate to compensate for authorized home visits.

8. Quarterly Reports to the Board of Directors’ Quality Assurance Committee
The following Quarterly Reports were accepted as presented:

a. Quality Improvement Committee First Quarter 2018 Update

b. Member Trend Report — Fourth Quarter 2017
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COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
Committee members commented on the importance of ensuring member access to quality health care
and member satisfaction.

ADJOURNMENT
Hearing no further business, Acting Chair Berger adjourned the meeting at 4:03 p.m.

/s/ Suzanne Turf
Suzanne Turf
Clerk of the Board

Approved: September 12, 2018
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MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
CALOPTIMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
PROVIDER ADVISORY COMMITTEE

August 9, 2018

A Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors’ Provider Advisory Committee (PAC)
was held on Thursday, August 9, 2018, at the CalOptima offices located at 505 City Parkway
West, Orange, California.

CALL TO ORDER
Teri Miranti, PAC Vice Chair, called the meeting to order at 8:06 a.m., and Member Caliendo
led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ESTABLISH QUORUM

Members Present: Teri Miranti, Vice Chair; Anjan Batra, M.D.; Donald Bruhns; Theodore
Caliendo, M.D.; Steve Flood; Jena Jensen; Junie Lazo-Pearson, Ph.D.;
Brian Lee, Ph.D.; Craig G. Myers; Pamela Pimentel, R.N.; Jacob Sweidan,
M.D.

Members Absent: John Nishimoto, O.D, Chair; Mary Pham, Pharm.D., CHC; Suzanne
Richards, MBA, FACHE

Others Present: Michael Schrader, Chief Executive Officer; Ladan Khamseh, Chief
Operating Officer; Greg Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer, Candice
Gomez, Executive Director, Program Implementation; Betsy Ha,
Executive Director, Quality Analytics; Tracy Hitzeman, Executive
Director, Clinical Operations; Michelle Laughlin, Executive Director,
Network Operations; Kelly Rex-Kimmet, Director, Quality Analytics;
Cheryl Meronk, Director Strategic Development; Paul Jiang, Manager,
Quality Analytics; Cheryl Simmons, Staff to the PAC

On behalf of the PAC, Vice Chair Miranti welcomed new PAC members Junie Lazo Pearson,
Ph.D. as the Behavioral Health Representative, and Brian Lee, Ph.D., as the Allied Health
Representative.

MINUTES

Approve the Minutes of the June 14, 2018 Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of
Directors’ Provider Advisory Committee

Action: On motion of Member Jensen, seconded and carried, the Committee
approved the minutes of the June 14, 2018 meeting. (Motion carried 11-
0-0; Members Nishimoto, Pham and Richards absent)
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PUBLIC COMMENTS
No requests for public comment were received.

CEO AND MANAGEMENT REPORTS

Chief Executive Officer Update

Michael Schrader, Chief Executive Officer, noted that the National Committee for Quality
Assurance (NCQA) conducted its tri-annual audit of CalOptima in July. The preliminary report
indicates that CalOptima achieved a near perfect score, which will allow CalOptima to extend its
accreditation. Mr. Schrader provided an update on the transition of the California Children’s
Services (CCS) to the Whole-Child Model (WCM) effective January 1, 2019. Vice-Chair
Miranti inquired about the Neo-Natal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) rates as they relate to the
WCM. Mr. Schrader reported that CalOptima is awaiting a response from the Department of
Health Care Services (DHCS), and staff will keep the PAC informed of the progress.

Chief Medical Officer Update

Emily Fonda, M.D., Medical Director, provided an update on PACE expansion on April 1, 2018
to include four additional facilities. Dr. Fonda also reported on the Long-Term Services and
Support (LTSS) plan in conjunction with the University of California Irvine (UCI), and thanked
Member Flood for his help in developing the LTSS plan that would be instrumental in helping
reduce admissions to the hospital. Dr. Fonda also reviewed the Model of Care for the CCS
implementation to the WCM. She noted that the WCM Family Advisory Committee will hold
their first meeting on August 9, 2018, and staff anticipates having the WCM Clinical Advisory
Committee seated by Fall of 2018.

Chief Financial Officer Update

Greg Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer, presented CalOptima’s Financial Summary as of June
2018, including a report of the Health Network Enrollment for the month, as well as a summary
of CalOptima’s financial performance and current reserve levels.

Network Operations Update

Michelle Laughlin, Executive Director, Network Operations, updated the PAC on the re-
contracting efforts and noted that 94% of the contracts have been signed and returned to
CalOptima. This represents over 8,000 of CalOptima providers. She also discussed the new
disclosure of ownership form that is now required by the DHCS. A contract amendment will be
sent to capitated providers upon approval by the Board that will include the WCM. Ms.
Laughlin also shared that CalOptima has contracted with approximately 90% of the CCS
providers.

INFORMATION ITEMS
Vice Chair Miranti reordered the agenda to hear VII.C., Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT)
Funds 5, 6 and 7.

Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) Funds 5. 6 and 7
Cheryl Meronk, Director, Strategic Planning, provided an overview of the approved
Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) Funds for IGT 5, 6 and 7. IGT 5 has $14.4M available for
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community grants with eight Requests for Information (RFI) that generated 93 responses. Staff is
currently reviewing these responses and will present recommendations regarding the proposals to
the Board at the October 2018 Board meeting. CalOptima received an additional $8M of
unanticipated funds related to IGT 6 and 7. On August 2, 2018, the Board approved an
allocation of $10M in IGT funds from IGT 6 and 7 to the Orange County Health Care Agency
for the recuperative care services under the Whole-Person Care pilot program. A
recommendation for expenditure plans for the remaining $21.1M will be presented to the Board
for consideration in September.

Annual Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS) and Consumer Assessment
of Healthcare Providers and Systems (CAHPS) Update

Kelly Rex-Kimmet, Director, Quality Analytics, and Paul Jiang, Manager, Quality Analytics,
presented the 2018 HEDIS and CAHPS results, and noted that CalOptima improved its
performance levels from the previous year.

PAC Member Updates

Vice Chair Miranti reminded the members that the next PAC meeting is scheduled on September
13, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. Vice Chair Miranti also noted that an ad hoc needed to be formed to meet
in October to assist with the agenda preparation of the joint Member Advisory Committee
(MAC), OneCare Connect Member Advisory Committee (OCC MAC), PAC, and the new
Whole-Child Model Family Advisory Committee (WCM FAC); this meeting is scheduled for
November 8, 2018. Vice Chair Miranti and Member Pimentel volunteered to serve on the ad hoc
with Chair Nishimoto.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business before the Committee, Vice Chair Miranti adjourned the meeting
at 10:06 a.m.

/s/ Cheryl Simmons
Cheryl Simmons
Staff to the PAC

Approved: September 13, 2018
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MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
CALOPTIMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
MEMBER ADVISORY COMMITTEE

July 12, 2018

A Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors’ Member Advisory Committee (MAC)
was held on July 12, 2018, at CalOptima, 505 City Parkway West, Orange, California.

CALL TO ORDER
Chair Sally Molnar called the meeting to order at 2:36 p.m., and Chair Molnar led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

ESTABLISH QUORUM

Members Present: Sally Molnar, Chair; Patty Mouton, Vice Chair; Suzanne Butler; Connie
Gonzalez; Jaime Mufioz; Christine Tolbert; Diana Cruz-Toro; Luisa Santa;
Mallory Vega

Members Absent: Elizabeth Anderson; Sandy Finestone; Donna Grubaugh; Ilia Rolon; Sr. Mary
Therese Sweeney

Others Present: Ladan Khamseh, Chief Operating Officer; Candice Gomez, Executive
Director, Program Implementation; Emily Fonda, MD, Medical Director;
Sesha Mudunuri, Executive Director, Operations; Tracy Hitzeman, Executive
Director, Clinical Operations; Betsy Ha, Executive Director, Quality
Analytics, Ana Aranda, Director, Grievance and Appeals, Arif Shaikh,
Director, Government Affairs, Marsha Choo, Manager, QI Initiatives,
Belinda Abeyta, Director, Customer Service; Eva Garcia, Customer Service

MINUTES

Approve the Minutes of the May 10, 2018, Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of
Directors’ Member Advisory Committee

Action: On motion of Member Christine Tolbert, seconded and carried, the MAC
approved the minutes as submitted.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no requests for Public Comment.

REPORTS

Consider Approval of Updating Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-2019 MAC Goals & Objectives
Member Patty Mouton reported on the MAC Goals & Objectives Ad Hoc Subcommittee composed
of MAC members Sally Molnar, Ilia Rolon and Patty Mouton. At the May 10, 2018 MAC meeting,
Member Tolbert requested clarification on Partnership and Engagement section of MAC’s Goals &
Objectives as it relates to measurable outcomes. The MAC Goal & Objectives Ad Hoc
Subcommittee reconvened on June 7, 2018 and June 21, 2018 to discuss adding measurable
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outcomes. The ad hoc recommended updating the FY2018-2019 Goals & Objectives item III,
Partnership and Engagement, to include the following: Convene a MAC Ad Hoc Subcommittee to
partner with CalOptima staff to review the Member Health Needs Assessment (MHNA) and
provide input and recommendations that will assist in addressing the MHNA findings.

Action: On motion of Committee Member Suzanne Butler, seconded and carried,
the MAC approved the Updated Fiscal Year (FY) MAC FY 2018-2019
Goals & Objectives. (Motion carried 9-0; Members Anderson, Finestone,
Grubaugh, Rolon, and Sweeney absent)

Consider Recommendation of MAC Candidate

Member Vega reported on the Nominations Ad Hoc Subcommittee, composed of MAC members
Suzanne Butler, Sandy Finestone and Mallory Vega, which met on June 5, 2018 to evaluate the
application for the vacant Consumer representative seat for FY 2018-2019. The Nominations Ad
Hoc recommended Jacque Ruddy for the Consumer representative seat for a term ending June 30,
2020. The recommendation will be presented to the Board of Directors on June 7, 2018 for
consideration.

Action: On motion of Member Patty Mouton, seconded and carried, the MAC
recommended Board of Directors’ consider the appointment of Jacque
Ruddy to the Consumer Representative seat for a term ending June 30,
2020. (Motion carried 9-0; Members Anderson, Finestone, Grubaugh,
Rolon, and Sweeney absent)

Consider Recommendation of Whole-Child Model Family Advisory Committee (WCM FAC)
Slate of Candidates

Member Tolbert reported that the Whole-Child Model Family Advisory Committee (WCM FAC)
Ad Hoc Subcommittee, composed of MAC members Connie Gonzalez, Jaime Munoz and Christine
Tolbert, reconvened on July 11, 2018 to review the proposed slate of candidates for four voting
seats representing the Community representatives that will establish the new WCM FAC. After
reviewing the applications and selecting a candidate for each seat, the Nominations Ad Hoc
recommended the following Community Representative appointments: Michael Arnot and Diane
Key for a two-year term ending June 30, 2020; and Pamela Austin and Sandra Cortez-Schultz to
serve for a one-year term ending June 30, 2019. The recommended candidates will be presented to
the Board of Directors on June 7, 2018 for consideration.

Action: On motion of Member Mallory Vega, seconded and carried, MAC
recommended Board of Directors’ consider the appointment of Michael
Arnot, Pamela Austin, Sandra Cortez-Schult; and Diane Key as the WCM
FAC Community Representatives as presented. (Motion carried 9-0;
Members Anderson, Finestone, Grubaugh, Rolon, and Sweeney absent)
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CEO AND MANAGEMENT REPORTS

Chief Medical Officer Update

Dr. Emily Fonda, Medical Director, presented an overview of the Whole-Child Model (WCM)
program that will be effective January 1, 2019, within 21 counties and five health plans. The
Whole-Child Model will incorporate California Children’s Services (CCS) into Medi-Cal Managed
Care. Next steps are to continue meeting with Orange County Health Care Agencies and Health
Networks on transition, developing WCM policies, internal workflows, contracting with CCS panel
physicians, establishing two advisory groups, and holding stake holder events within the
community.

Chief Operating Officer (COQO) Update

Ladan Khamseh, COO, provided an update on the transition of members with a non-autism
spectrum disorder receiving behavioral health services at the Regional Center of Orange County
(RCOC) and are scheduled to transition to CalOptima beginning July 1, 2018. CalOptima will be
completing the transition in stages with the first stage occurring July 1, 2018, second stage will be
August 1, 2018, and the final transition to occur October 1, 2018. Impacted members will receive
60 and 30-day notices advising them of the transition and to call CalOptima with any questions or
concerns.

Federal and State Legislative Update

Arif Shaikh, Director, Public Affairs, provided an update on the state budget.

Not all legislative items in the proposed budget were approved, which directly impacts CalOptima
and our membership, including approximately $26 million to streamline Medi-Cal eligibility for the
Women’s Infants and Children (WIC) program; the expansion of Medi-Cal for low-income seniors;
alignment with federal policy for transitional Medi-Cal under the CalWorks program and Welfare to
Work Program; and $250 million to extend Medi-Cal to the undocumented population. Mr. Shaikh
also reported on trailer bills that CalOptima is following this year, including Proposition 56
supplemental payments from the tobacco tax initiative, and trailer bill 340b related to drug pricing
and duplicate discounts.

INFORMATION ITEMS

MAC Member Updates

Chair Molnar introduced two new Committee members: Children’s Representative Luisa Santa, and
Diana Cruz-Toro, Recipients of CalWORKS Representative. Chair Molnar announced that the
MAC and Provider Advisory Committee (PAC) will hold a joint meeting on November 8, 2018 and
requested volunteers to serve on an ad hoc to work with the PAC to develop the joint meeting
agenda. Vice Chair Mouton and Member Tolbert volunteered to serve on this ad hoc with Chair
Molnar. Additionally, it was announced that Vice Chair Mouton will join Chair Molnar on the
Goals and Objectives Ad Hoc to review the medical health needs assessments.

Chair Molnar requested volunteers to present at the September 13, 2018 MAC meeting. Member
Santa volunteered to present on MOMS Orange County.
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Update on Palliative Care

Tracy Hitzeman, Executive Director, Clinical Operations, provided an update on Senate Bill 1004,
which requires the DHCS to establish standards and provide technical assistance to ensure delivery
of palliative care services by Managed Care Plans for members of any age. In response to the
Senate Bill, the DHCS released an All-Plan letter updating palliative care guidelines that were
effective January 1, 2018 and identified eligibility criteria for this initiative which focuses on four
general categories: cancer, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, congestive heart failure and liver
disease. Palliative care will be coordinated by the health networks with oversight by CalOptima.
Next steps include community education events, provider education, and additional staff training.

Member Mouton requested additional information on the number of referrals to palliative care
compared to the number of referrals to hospice and the length of time a member receives palliative
care services.

Access to Care Overview

Marsha Choo, Manager, Quality Improvement Initiatives, provided an overview on Access to Care.
CalOptima’s Access and Availability subcommittee reviews network adequacy and timely access
survey. The Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (CAHPS) reviews out of
network requests, and grievance and appeals. DHCS requires a network adequacy certification, and
CalOptima has passed the required certification. Next steps include: educating providers on timely
access standards; continuing to recruit and contract with in-demand specialists, particularly in South
County; provider coaching; and requesting correction action plans from our contracted health
networks when performance is below the required standards.

Member Tolbert requested discussion at a future MAC meeting regarding intellectual disabilities in
autism.

Grievance and Appeals Process

Ana Aranda, Interim Director, Grievance and Appeals, provided an overview on the Grievance and
Appeals process. A member can submit a grievance anytime and submit an Appeal up to 60 days
from the Notice of Action. An acknowledgement letter is mailed to the member or authorized
representative within five calendar days indicating that CalOptima is in receipt of their grievance or
appeal. The Grievance Resolution Specialist will contact the member if clarification or additional
information is needed, assists the member with any immediate needs, and works with internal
departments, health networks, and providers to resolve the member’s concerns. When a member
needs timely access to care, CalOptima coordinates services by contacting the provider to arrange
an earlier appointment for the member. Alternatively, CalOptima will coordinate changing the
provider referral to obtain a timely appointment. Grievance tracking and trending reports are in
place to address areas of improvement, and information is shared with internal and external
stakeholders for further action.
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ADJOURNMENT
Chair Molnar announced that the next MAC meeting is Thursday, September 13, 2018 at 2:30 p.m.

Hearing no further business, Chair Molnar adjourned the meeting at 4:14 p.m.

/s/ Eva Garcia
Eva Garcia
Program Assistant

Approved: September 13, 2018
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CALOPTIMA BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL

Action To Be Taken October 4, 2018
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Consent Calendar
3. Consider Approval of the Updated Strategy for the Disbursement of Years 2-5 OneCare
Connect Quality Withhold Payment to CalOptima Community Network (CCN)

Contact
Betsy Ha, Executive Director, Quality and Analytics, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Action

Approve the updated strategy for the disbursement of One Care Connect (OCC) demonstration years
(DY) 2-5 (calendar years 2016 — 19), quality withhold payment to CalOptima’s Community Network
(CCN).

Background

OneCare Connect (OCC) is a Cal MediConnect Plan (Medicare-Medicaid Plan) launched in 2015 for
people who qualify for both Medicare and Medi-Cal. OCC is part of Cal MediConnect, a
demonstration program operating in seven counties throughout California. The demonstration aims to
transform the health care delivery system for people eligible for both Medicare and Medi-Cal.

These members often have several chronic health conditions and multiple providers, yet their separate
insurance plans often create confusion and fragmented care. By combining all benefits into one plan,
OCC delivers coordinated care. Care coordination eliminates duplicated services and shifts services
from more expensive institutions to home and community-based settings.

At no extra cost to members, OCC adds benefits such as vision care, gym benefits and enhanced
dental benefits. Additionally, OCC integrates CBAS, MSSP and LTC into the plan benefits. OCC
includes personalized support — all to ensure each member receives the services they need, when
they need them.

To better align quality with cost of care, the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and Centers
for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) have constructed a quality withhold process, which applies
to Medi-Cal and Medicare Part A/B capitation. Medi-Cal monies are not withheld from health
networks. The amounts of the withhold are 1% for Year One (calendar year 2015), 2% for Year Two
(calendar year 2016), and 3% for Years Three, Four, and Five (calendar years 2017-2019). All or a
part of the withhold may be earned back based on a percentage of quality withhold measures that
achieved benchmarks established by DHCS and CMS. Measures and benchmarks are based on final
guidance received by CalOptima Regulatory Affairs from CMS and DHCS.

On August 6, 2015, the CalOptima Board of Directors approved the methodology and disbursement
of the DY 1 (Measurement Year [MY] 2015) quality withhold that was received from DHCS and
CMS in October 2017 and distributed to the health networks. On June 7, 2018, the CalOptima Board
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of Directors approved the methodology and disbursement of earned quality withhold dollars for DY 2-
5 to health networks.

Discussion

CalOptima began to participate in the Cal MediConnect program on July 1, 2015. Because
CalOptima’s participation in Cal MediConnect began midyear, the measurement period for DY 1 was
considered July 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. Subsequent years (years 2-5) began in 2016 and
reflect services rendered from January 1 to December 31 of each year.

The quality withhold reduces capitation for both Medi-Cal and Medicare payments to CalOptima by
two percent (2%) in Year Two and by three percent (3%) in Years Three, Four, and Five. These
withheld funds can be earned back by CalOptima by “passing” a percentage of defined quality
withhold measures. Measures are “passed” by managed care plans by achieving the established
benchmark set by CMS for each quality withhold measure. The measures are prescribed by DHCS
and CMS based on industry standard quality metrics such as HEDIS/Star measures and are
communicated to plans via the Medicare-Medicaid Capitated Financial Alignment Model Quality
Withhold Technical Notes. Managed care plans earn their withhold back according to the following
guidance:

Percent of Measures Passed Percent of Withhold MMP Receives
0-19% 0%
20-39% 25%
40-59% 50%
60-79% 75%
80-100% 100%

The health networks do not have full accountability for every measure. There are measures that
CalOptima has direct responsibility for, and others that have shared responsibility between the
delegated health networks and CalOptima.

On June 7, 2018, the CalOptima Board of Directors approved the methodology and disbursement of
earned quality withhold dollars for DY2-5 to health networks. Unlike participating health networks,
CCN providers are paid at Fee-for-service rates without any quality withholds. In addition, CCN
providers are part of the Pay for Value program, wherein they receive incentives for performing on
selected clinical and member satisfaction measures. After further review of the program, staff is
proposing that there is no need for a distribution strategy for CCN providers as there was no money
withheld from the CCN providers.
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Fiscal Impact
The recommended action to approve the updated strategy for the disbursement of OCC DY 2-5

(calendar years 2016-19), Quality Withhold payment to CCN providers will have no additional fiscal
impact to CalOptima. There will be no additional disbursement of funds to CCN providers.

Rationale for Recommendation

These recommendations reflect alignment between CalOptima Community Network providers and
CalOptima activities to provide quality healthcare to dual eligible members based on DHCS and
CMS directed measures. Greater success in demonstrating quality healthcare will also result in
earning back a greater amount of the withhold amount. However, since no funds were ever withheld
from CCN providers, there is no basis for distributing withhold funds earned back to those providers.

Concurrence
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel
Board of Directors' Quality Assurance Committee

Attachments

1. Board Action dated August 6, 2015, Approve the Methodology for and the Disbursement of the
Year One, OneCare Connect Quality Withhold Payment to Participating Health Networks

2. Board Action dated June 7, 2018, Approve the Methodology for and the Disbursement of the
Year One, OneCare Connect Quality Withhold Payment to Participating Health Networks

/s/ Michael Schrader 9/26/2018
Authorized Signature Date
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CALOPTIMA BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL

Action To Be Taken August 6, 2015
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Report Item
VIIL. F. Approve the Methodology for and the Disbursement of the Year One, OneCare Connect

Quality Withhold Payment to Participating Health Networks

Contact
Richard Bock, MD, Deputy Chief Medical Officer, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Action
Approve the methodology for and the disbursement of the Year One, OneCare Connect Quality
Withhold payment to participating Health Networks.

Background
July 2012 marked the passage of the Coordinated Care Initiative in California. The Coordinated Care

Initiative (CCI) aims to integrate the delivery of medical, behavioral, and long term care services while
providing a road map to integrate Medicare and Medi-Cal for people in both programs, called “dual
eligible” members.

Central to the CCI model is care coordination. And a critical piece to the model is the care
coordination provided for by the member’s primary care provider (PCP) and health network. The CCI
is expected to produce greater value by improving health outcomes and containing costs; primarily by
shifting clinically appropriate service delivery into the home and community and away from expensive
institutional settings.

In order to better align quality with cost of care, the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) have constructed a quality withhold process, which
applies to Medi-Cal and Medicare Part A/B capitation. The amounts of the withhold are 1% for Year
One, 2% for Year Two, and 3% for Year Three. All or a part of the withhold may be earned back
based on a methodology developed by DHCS and CMS.

Discussion

CalOptima began to participate in the CCI program on July 1, 2015. Given the delayed start date of
the program, the first year of the withhold process will be shortened to reflect services rendered from
July 1, 2015 to December 30, 2015.

There are ten quality withhold measures in CCI for Year one. Five of these measures are California-
specific and were just released by CMS on July 8, 2015.

= Encounter data

=  QGetting appointments and care quickly

= Customer service

= Behavioral Health provider participates in care plan development (shared accountability
measure, payout shared with county)
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= Documentation of care goals

= (Case Management contact with member

= OneCare Connect Member Advisory Council implementation
* Memorandum of understanding with County Mental Health

= Timely completion of Health Risk Assessments

= Physical access work plan

Capitation for both Medi-Cal and Medicare payments to CalOptima will be reduced by one percent
(1%) in Year One. These withheld funds can be earned back by CalOptima in the following manner:
= Plan will pass or fail each measure based on benchmarks
= All withhold measures will be weighted equally
= [f a measure cannot be calculated due to timing constraints (of the shortened Year one) or
enrollment requirements, it will be removed from the total number of withhold measures on

which the plan will be evaluated.

= Payout will be based on:

Percent of Measures Passed OO0 Wlfhh()ld MMP
Receives
0-19% 0%
20-39% 25%
40-59% 50%
60-79% 75%
80-100% 100%

Distribution of Earned Withhold Funds to the Health Networks:

CalOptima’s contracts with the networks provides that “CalOptima will allocate to Physician Group,
and amout of revenue withhold attributed to Physician Group’s performance on the withhold measures.
Final distribution methodology to Physician Group is subject to CalOptima Board of Directors
approval.” While the health networks do not have full accountability for every measure, there are
measures that CalOptima has direct responsibility for and others that have shared responsibility
between the delegated health networks and CalOptima. In addition, since the two Behavioral Health
measures are governed by language in the three-way contract regarding shared responsibility with
County Mental Health, disbursement for them will be described in a future staff recommendation to the
Board after further guidance from the State is released. Similarly, distribution of earned back withhold
funds attributable to Community Network membership will be described in a future staff
recommendation. As 1% of capitation is withheld from CalOptima, the downstream percent of
premium (POP) Medicare capitation payments to Health Networks will be similarly reduced. Taking
into consideration the truncated duration of Year One and continuing regulatory refinement of the
program, the methodology that staff is proposing for Year One provides that Medicare withhold funds
which are earned back by CalOptima will be shared with the Health Networks using the identical POP
formula.
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* For example, if CalOptima’s revenue is $1,000 per member per month (PMPM), the
quality withhold is 1%, and a networks’s POP is 35%, the network’s capitation will be
35% x $990, which is $346.50 PMPM.

= Assuming CalOptima recoups the full withhold of $10, the network will receive 35%, or
$3.50 PMPM.

= Future distribution formulae for Years 2 and 3 may take into account the Health Networks’
per cent responsibility for, and the relative performance on, the expanded measure set, but
this simpler approach is more appropriate for Year One.

= [f CalOptima does not recoup any withhold money, then no Quality Withhold money will
be paid out to any network regardless of their performance on the quality measures.

Eligibility to receive any withhold monies earned by CalOptima will be dependent on the health
network’s good standing with CalOptima and their active contractual status with CalOptima during
any part of the measurement period as well as at the time of distribution.

Fiscal Impact
The recommended action is projected to be budget neutral to CalOptima. Distributions to health

networks will not exceed the amount of withheld funds that are earned back.

Rationale for Recommendation

These recommendations reflect alignment between health network and CalOptima activities to provide
quality healthcare to dual eligible members based on DHCS and CMS directed measures. Greater
success in demonstrating quality healthcare will also result in earning back a greater amount of the
withhold amount.

Concurrence
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel

Attachments
None

/s/  Michael Schrader 07/31/2015
Authorized Signature Date
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Action To Be Taken June 7, 2018
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Consent Calendar
3. Consider Approval of the Methodology for and the Disbursement of Years 2-5 OneCare Connect
Quality Withhold Payment to Participating Health Networks

Contact
Richard Bock, M.D., Deputy Chief Medical Officer, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Action

Approve the methodology for and the disbursement strategy of One Care Connect (OCC) demonstration
years (DY) 2-5 (calendar years 2016 — 19), Quality Withhold payment to contracted Health Networks,
including CalOptima’s Community Network (CCN).

Background
OneCare Connect (OCC) is a Cal MediConnect Plan (Medicare-Medicaid Plan) launched in 2015 for

people who qualify for both Medicare and Medi-Cal. OCC is part of Cal MediConnect, a demonstration
program operating in seven counties throughout California. The demonstration aims to transform the
health care delivery system for people eligible for both Medicare and Medi-Cal.

These members often have several chronic health conditions and multiple providers, yet their separate
insurance plans often create confusion and fragmented care. By combining all benefits into one plan,
OCC delivers coordinated care. Care coordination eliminates duplicated services and shifts services
from more expensive institutions to home and community-based settings.

At no extra cost to members, OCC adds benefits such as vision care, gym benefits and enhanced dental
benefits. Additionally, OCC integrates CBAS, MSSP and LTC into the plan benefits. OCC includes
personalized support — all to ensure each member receives the services they need, when they need
them.

To better align quality with cost of care, the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and Centers
for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) have constructed a quality withhold process, which applies to
Medi-Cal and Medicare Part A/B capitation. Medi-Cal monies are not withheld from health networks.
The amounts of the withhold are 1% for Year One (calendar year 2015), 2% for Year Two (calendar
year 2016), and 3% for Years Three, Four, and Five (calendar years 2017-2019). All or a part of the
withhold may be earned back based on a percentage of quality withhold measures that achieved
benchmarks established by DHCS and CMS. Measures and benchmarks are based on final guidance
received by CalOptima Regulatory Affairs from CMS and DHCS.

On August 6, 2015, the CalOptima Board of Directors approved the methodology and disbursement of
the DY 1 (MY2015) quality withhold that was received from DHCS and CMS in October 2017 and
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distributed to the health networks. Additional Board action is required for the methodology and
distribution of earned quality withhold dollars for DY2-5.

Discussion

CalOptima began to participate in the Cal MediConnect program on July 1, 2015. Because CalOptima’s
participation in Cal MediConnect began midyear, the measurement period for DY 1 was considered July
1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. Subsequent years (years 2-5) began in 2016 and reflect services
rendered from January 1 to December 31 of each year.

The quality withhold reduces capitation for both Medi-Cal and Medicare payments to CalOptima by two
percent (2%) in Year Two and by three percent (3%) in Years Three, Four, and Five. These withheld
funds can be earned back by CalOptima by “passing” a percentage of defined quality withhold
measures. Measures are “passed” by managed care plans by achieving the established benchmark set by
CMS for each quality withhold measure. The measures are prescribed by DHCS and CMS based on
industry standard quality metrics such as HEDIS/Star measures and are communicated to plans via the
Medicare-Medicaid Capitated Financial Alignment Model Quality Withhold Technical Notes. Managed
care plans earn their withhold back according to the following guidance:

Percent of Measures Percent of Withhold MMP Receives
Passed
0-19% 0%
20-39% 25%
40-59% 50%
60-79% 75%
80-100% 100%

While the health networks do not have full accountability for every measure, there are measures that
CalOptima has direct responsibility for and others that have shared responsibility between the delegated
health networks and CalOptima.

CalOptima proposes the following methodology to distribute earned funds back to contracted health
networks:
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Health Network Scoring

* Quality Points is the sum of all points earned for each measure.
Health Network Measure Performance Points

* Uses NCQA National Medicaid HEDIS Percentiles as benchmark for NCQA
HEDIS measures

* Uses CMS Star Cut Points as Benchmark for CMS Star Measure(s)

*  Minimum denominator of 1% of Total Denominator

Quality Star / Percentile
Points

1 3 Stars / 50th Percentile
2 4 Stars / 75th Percentile
3 5 Stars / 90th Percentile

Health Plan Measure Points

* Benchmark is set by Cal MediConnect.
* Points based on CalOptima’s rate for measure
» 1 point if CalOptima passes measure
» 0 point if CalOptima does not pass measure

Distribution of Earned Withhold Funds to the Health Networks

CalOptima’s contracts with the health networks provides that “CalOptima will allocate to Physician
Group an amount of revenue withhold attributed to Physician Group’s performance on the withhold
measures. Final distribution methodology to Physician Group is subject to CalOptima Board of
Directors approval.”

e The methodology that staff is proposing for DY2-5 provides that Medicare withhold funds which
are earned back by CalOptima will be distributed to the Health Networks, including the
CalOptima Community Network (CCN), based on performance and percent of premium (POP).
The distribution to a health network will not exceed the amount of funds originally withheld
from its capitation. If CMS does not return withheld funds based on performance results, then no
Quality Withhold money will be paid out to any network, regardless of their performance on the
quality measures.

e Eligibility to receive any withhold monies earned by CalOptima will be dependent on the health
network’s good standing with CalOptima and their active contractual status with CalOptima
during any part of the measurement period, as well as at the time of distribution.
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¢ Distribution of earned back withhold funds attributable to CalOptima Community Network
(CCN) membership will be similar to other health network distribution of withheld dollars. Staff
will return at a later date to propose a distribution strategy specifically to CCN providers.

e Withhold money will be distributed to health networks, including CalOptima Community
Network (CCN), after CalOptima receives the withhold money from CMS.

e Health Networks will receive their withhold money within 90 days of CalOptima receiving the
withhold money from CMS.

e (CalOptima contracts with health networks under various arrangements and the allocation for
each health network will depend on the withheld amounts received from CMS and the health
network performance on the quality measures benchmarked by CMS.

e Health Network payment will depend on the arrangement with CalOptima. Based on current
capitation contract arrangement with health networks for CMS revenue, Health Maintenance
Organizations (HMOs) will receive their contractually agreed percentage of the withheld
amounts for professional services and for hospital services.

e For Physician Hospital Consortiums (PHCs) however, the Physician side of the PHCs will
receive their contractually agreed percentage of the withheld amounts for professional services
but CalOptima will pay the contractually agreed percentage for hospital services directly to the
hospitals.

e Shared Risk Groups (SRGs) will also receive their contractually agreed percentage of the
withheld amounts for professional services but the hospital allocation will be contributed to the
SRG pool.

Fiscal Impact
The recommended action is budget neutral to CalOptima. The amount of Medicare quality withhold

funds earned back by CalOptima, if any, will be sufficient to fund distributions to health networks and
CCN with no additional fiscal impact to the operating budget.

Rationale for Recommendation

These recommendations reflect alignment between health network and CalOptima activities to provide
quality healthcare to dual eligible members based on DHCS and CMS directed measures. Greater
success in demonstrating quality healthcare will also result in earning back a greater amount of the
withhold amount.

Concurrence
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel
Board of Directors' Quality Assurance Committee
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Attachment
Board Action dated August 6, 2015, Approve the Methodology for and the Disbursement of the Year
One, OneCare Connect Quality Withhold Payment to Participating Health Networks

/s/ Michael Schrader 3/30/2018
Authorized Signature Date
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Action To Be Taken October 4, 2018
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Consent Calendar
4. Consider Modification of Claims Payment Policies Associated with the Implementation of the
Whole-Child Model

Contact
Sesha Mudunuri, Executive Director, Operations, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Action

Recommend authorizing a transition period of six months for payment of certain claims for children
enrolled in California Children’s Services (CCS) prior to January 1, 2019 that would be denied under
CalOptima Direct, CalOptima Community Network, or a Health Network to allow for adequate
transition of Service Authorizations Requests (SARs) from the California Children’s Services Program
to CalOptima under the Whole-Child Model.

Background
CalOptima expects to integrate CCS into its Medi-Cal managed care plan through the Whole-Child

Model (WCM) effective January 1, 2019. On June 7, 2018, the CalOptima Board of Directors
authorized execution of an Amendment to the Primary Agreement between DHCS and CalOptima with
respect to implementation of the WCM program. Principle guidance is outlined in Senate Bill 586,
signed by Governor Brown on September 25, 2016 and the DHCS’s All Plan Letter (APL) 18-011
released on June 28, 2018. In addition, DHCS has provided additional reporting requirements and
implementation deliverables.

To meet the goals of the WCM, beginning January 1, 2019, CalOptima plans to allow members
receiving CCS services to remain enrolled with either CalOptima’s Community Network or other
contracted CalOptima health networks. CalOptima will delegate CCS services to health networks
according to the current health network models. The three health network models include Health
Maintenance Organization (HMO), Physician-Hospital Consortium (PHC), or Shared-Risk Group
(SRG). Based on the health network model, either CalOptima or the health network will be financially
responsible for claims payment. Certain services require authorization prior to claims payment.

Discussion

CalOptima recognizes that the authorization processes for claims payment differs between the CCS
program and managed care. CalOptima and its health networks issue authorizations based on member,
provider, and service code levels. Claims payments, when applicable, are based on the details in the
authorization. Whereas, the CCS program issues SARs based on member and diagnosis/conditions.
Multiple claims potentially involving multiple providers and multiple services/visits can be paid based
on a single SAR. While CalOptima plans to proactively outreach to members and providers to obtain
detailed information needed to issue new authorizations, some claims for CCS services may be
inadvertently submitted without a CalOptima or health network authorization.
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The overall expectation is that CalOptima or the health networks will issue new authorizations for CCS
services. Processes have been established with the local CCS program to forward misdirected
authorization requests to CalOptima. However, in order to promote a smooth transition to WCM and
ensure continued access for members, CalOptima staff recommends implementing a transition period
that permits claims payments in certain situations when there is no CalOptima or health network
authorization. The recommendation is that for dates of service from January 1, 2019 through June 30,
2019, CalOptima and health networks pay for CCS services provided by contracted or non-contracted
providers, for eligible children who were enrolled in CCS program prior to January 1, 2019 as long as
there is an active CCS SAR and other claim payment requirements are met. All inpatient services are
excluded from this proposed exception and, depending on member eligibility, will require a CalOptima
or health network authorization.

Remittance Advice (RA) issued by CalOptima will indicate that any future services will need a
CalOptima or Health Network authorization; the expectation is that the Health Networks will follow a
similar process to notify providers. In addition, CalOptima Provider and Health Network Relations staff
will coordinate with the health networks to outreach to providers regarding the transition from SARs to
CalOptima/Health Network authorizations.

Fiscal Impact
The fiscal impact of the recommended action to authorize a transition period from January 1, 2019,

through June 30, 2019, to pay certain claims under the WCM program is currently unknown. Given the
high acuity and medical utilization associated with a relatively small CCS population, costs for the
program are difficult to predict and likely to be volatile. However, Management has included projected
revenues and expenses associated with the WCM program in the Board-approved CalOptima Fiscal
Year 2018-19 Operating Budget to fund all current year operating costs. CalOptima will continue to
work closely with DHCS to ensure that Medi-Cal revenue is sufficient to support the WCM program.

Rationale for Recommendation
Staff recommends providing a six-month transition period to promote a smooth transition to WCM,
minimize disruption of member care, and maintain positive relations with CCS providers.

Concurrence
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel

Attachments
None

/s/  Michael Schrader 9/26/2018
Authorized Signature Date
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CALOPTIMA BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL

Action To Be Taken October 4, 2018
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Report Item
5. Consider Accepting and Receiving and Filing the Fiscal Year 2018 CalOptima Audited Financial

Statements

Contact
Greg Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Action
Recommend accepting and receiving and filing the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018 CalOptima consolidated
audited financial statements as submitted by independent auditors Moss-Adams, LLP.

Background
CalOptima has contracted with financial auditors Moss-Adams, LLP since May 21, 2015, to complete

CalOptima’s annual financial audit. At the May 17, 2018, meeting of the CalOptima Finance and Audit
Committee, Moss-Adams presented the 2018 Audit Plan. The plan includes performing mandatory
annual consolidated financial statement audit and drafting of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ending June 30, 2018.

Discussion

Moss-Adams conducted the interim audit from May 21, 2018, through May 25, 2018, and the on-site year-
end audit from July 23, 2018, through August 17, 2018. The significant audit areas that Moss-Adams
reviewed included:

Capitation revenue and receivables;

Cash and cash equivalents;

Investments; and

Medical claims liability, capitation payable and obligations payable to State of California.

Results from CalOptima's FY 2018 Audit were positive. The auditor made no changes in CalOptima’s
approach to applying critical accounting policies and did not report having encountered any significant
difficulties during the audit. Additionally, there were no material misstatements identified by the auditor.
As such, Management recommends that the Board accept the CalOptima FY 2018 audited financial
statements as presented.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact related to this recommended action.

Concurrence

Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel
Board of Directors' Finance and Audit Committee
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Attachments
1. FY 2018 CalOptima Audited Financial Statements
2. Presentation by Moss-Adams, LLP

/s/ Michael Schrader 9/26/2018
Authorized Signature Date
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The intent of management’s discussion and analysis of CalOptima’s consolidated financial performance is
to provide readers with an overview of the agency’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017. Readers should review this summation in conjunction with CalOptima’s consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements to enhance their
understanding of CalOptima’s financial performance.

Key Operating Indicators

The table below compares key operating indicators for CalOptima for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2018, 2017 and 2016:

Key Operating Indicators 2018 2017 2016
(as restated)

Members (at end of fiscal period):

Medi-Cal program 763,824 772,228 776,713
OneCare 1,418 1,121 1,174
OneCare Connect 14,768 15,505 29,416
PACE 267 212 168

Average member months

Medi-Cal program 772,511 777,057 765,938
OneCare 1,372 1,237 6,879
OneCare Connect 15,079 16,834 9,626
PACE 239 190 135
Operating revenues (in millions) $ 3,446 $ 3,549 $ 3,148
Operating expenses (in millions)
Medical expenses 3,292 3,400 3,022
Administrative expenses 132 111 107
Operating income (in millions) $ 22 $ 38 $ 19
Operating revenues PMPM (per member per month) $ 364 $ 372 $ 337
Operating expenses PMPM
Medical expenses PMPM 348 356 323
Administative expenses PMPM 14 12 11
Opeating income (loss) PMPM $ 2§ 4 3 3
Medical loss ratio 96% 96% 96%
Administrative expenses ratio 4% 3% 3%

Premium tax revenue and expenses not included above
Operating revenues (in millions) 143 138 114
Administrative expenses (in millions) 143 138 114
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overview of the Consolidated Financial Statements

This annual report consists of consolidated financial statements and notes to those statements, which
reflect CalOptima’s financial position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and results of its operations for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The consolidated financial statements of CalOptima,
including the consolidated statements of net position, statements of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position, and statements of cash flows, represent the consolidated accounts and transactions of the
five (5) programs — Medi-Cal, OneCare, OneCare Connect, Program of All-inclusive Care for the Elderly
(PACE), and CalOptima Foundation.

o The consolidated statements of net position include all of CalOptima’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, using the accrual basis of accounting, as well
as an indication about which assets and deferred outflows of resources are utilized to fund obligations
to providers and which are restricted as a matter of Board of Directors’ policy.

e The consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present the results
of operating activities during the fiscal year and the resulting increase or decrease in net position.

e The consolidated statements of cash flows report the net cash provided by or used in operating
activities, as well as other sources and uses of cash from investing and capital and related financing
activities.

The following discussion and analysis addresses CalOptima’s overall program activities. CalOptima’s
Medi-Cal program accounted for 89.8 percent, 88.6 percent, and 89.4 percent of its annual revenues
during fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. CalOptima’s OneCare accounted for 0.5 percent,
0.5 percent, and 3.3 percent of its annual revenues during fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016,
respectively. CalOptima’s OneCare Connect program accounted for 9.1 percent, 10.5 percent and 7.0
percent of its annual revenues during fiscal year 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. All other programs
consolidated accounted for 0.6 percent, 0.4 percent, and 0.3 percent of CalOptima’s annual revenues
during fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.

CalOptima Foundation (the Foundation) was formed as a not-for-profit benefit corporation in 2010 and is
dedicated to the betterment of public health care services in Orange County. CalOptima has sole control
over the activities of the Foundation and as such, the activities of the Foundation are included in the
consolidated financial statements of CalOptima.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2018 and 2017 Financial Highlights

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, total assets and deferred outflows of resources were approximately
$1,879.1 million and $2,743.0 million, respectively, and exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by approximately $764.5 million and $718.6 million, respectively.

Net position increased by approximately $45.8 million, or 6.4 percent, during fiscal year 2018 and
increased by approximately $56.2 million, or 8.5 percent, during fiscal year 2017.

Table 1a: Condensed Consolidated Statements of Net Position as of June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

Change From 2017
Financial Position 2018 2017 Amount Percentage
(as restated)

ASSETS
Current assets $ 1,278,680 $ 2,141,667 $ (862,987) -40.3%
Board-designated assets and restricted cash 538,548 535,438 3,110 0.6%
Capital assets, net 50,758 54,301 (3,543) -6.5%
Total assets $ 1,867,986 $ 2,731,406 $ (863,420) -31.6%
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 11,133 $ 11,577 $ (444) -3.8%
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 1,879,119 $ 2,742,983 $ (863,864) -31.5%
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities $ 1,061,545 $ 1,981,195 $ (919,650) -46.4%
Other liabilities 49,766 41,809 7,957 19.0%
Total liabilities $ 1,111,311 $ 2,023,004 $ (911,693) -45.1%
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 3,329 $ 1,340 $ 1,989 148.4%
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $ 50,637 $ 54,104 $ (3,467) -6.4%
Restricted 89,037 98,445 (9,408) -9.6%
Unrestricted 624,805 566,090 58,715 10.4%
Total net position $ 764,479 $ 718,639 $ 45,840 6.4%
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position $ 1,879,119 $ 2,742,983 $ (863,864) -31.5%

Current assets decreased $863.0 million from $2,141.7 million in 2017 to $1,278.7 million in 2018,
primarily in cash, short-term investments and premium receivables categories. Current liabilities
decreased $919.7 million from $1,981.3 million in 2017 to $1,061.5 million in 2018. The decrease is
mainly related to recoupment from California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) on Medi-Cal
expansion rate changes and shared risk pool payouts to the health networks.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2018 and 2017 Financial Highlights (continued)

Board-designated assets and restricted cash increased by $3.1 million and $59.3 million in fiscal years
2018 and 2017, respectively. The Board of Directors’ policy is to augment Board-designated assets to
provide a desired level of funds between 1.4 months and 2 months of premium revenue to meet future
contingencies. CalOptima’s reserve level of tier one and two investment portfolios as of June 30, 2018 is
at 1.9 times of monthly average premium revenue. CalOptima is also required to maintain a $300,000
restricted deposit as a part of the Knox-Keene Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975.

2017 and 2016 Financial Highlights
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, total assets and deferred outflows of resources were approximately
$2,743.0 million and $2,307.8 million, respectively, and exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of

resources by approximately $718.6 million and $662.5 million, respectively.

Net position increased by approximately $56.2 million, or 8.5 percent, during fiscal year 2017 and
increased by approximately $32.5 million, or 5.2 percent during fiscal year 2016.

Table 1a: Condensed Consolidated Statements of Net Position as of June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

Change From 2016
Financial Position 2017 2016 Amount Percentage
(as restated)

ASSETS
Current assets $ 2,141,667 $ 1,771,671 $ 369,996 20.9%
Board-designated assets and restricted cash 535,438 476,146 59,292 12.5%
Capital assets, net 54,301 54,996 (695) -1.3%
Total assets $ 2,731,406 $ 2,302,813 $ 428,593 18.6%

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES -

PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS $ 11,577 $ 5,003 $ 6,574 131.4%
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 2,742,983 $ 2,307,816 $ 435,167 18.9%

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities $ 1,981,195 $ 1,609,330 $ 371,865 23.1%
Other liabilities 41,809 33,864 7,945 23.5%
Total liabilities $ 2,023,004 $ 1,643,194 $ 379,810 23.1%

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES -

EXCESS EARNINGS $ 1340 2155 § (815) -
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets $ 54,104 $ 54,995 $ (891) -1.6%
Restricted 98,445 89,284 9,161 10.3%
Unrestricted 566,090 518,188 47,902 9.2%
Total net position $ 718,639 $ 662,467 $ 56,172 8.5%

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position $ 2,742,983 $ 2,307,816 $ 435,167 18.9%
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2017 and 2016 Financial Highlights (continued)

Current assets increased $370.0 million from $1,771.7 million in 2016 to $2,141.7 million in 2017. The
increase in current assets is due to increases in cash, short-term investments and premium receivables.
Current liabilities increased $ 372.0 million from $1,609.3 million in 2016 to $1,981.2 million in 2017. The
increase is mainly due to additional payables to the health networks of approximately $173.0 million
related to shared risk payout estimates and an increase of $549.4 million in the Due to DHCS liability
account, which is the result from the change in categorization of excess payments related to Medi-Cal
expansion rate changes from unearned revenue. Both are offset by a decrease of $387.9 million in the
unearned revenue for the above-mentioned category change. The net increase of the excess Medi-Cal
expansion payments is $161.5 million from fiscal year 2016.

2018 and 2017 Results of Operations

CalOptima’s fiscal year 2018 operations and nonoperating revenues resulted in a $45.8 million increase
in net position, $10.4 million less compared to a $56.2 million increase in fiscal year 2017. The following
table reflects the changes in revenues and expenses for 2018 compared to 2017:

Table 2a: Consolidated Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

Change From 2017
Results of Operations 2018 2017 Amount Percentage
(as restated)

CAPITATION REVENUES $ 3,445,699 $ 3,549,462 $ (103,763) -2.9%
OTHER INCOME - 27 (27) -100.0%
Total operating revenues 3,445,699 3,549,489 (103,790) -2.9%
MEDICAL EXPENSES 3,291,712 3,399,612 (107,900) -3.2%
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 131,847 111,428 20,419 18.3%
Total operating expenses 3,423,559 3,511,040 (87,481) -2.5%
Operating income 22,140 38,449 (16,309) -42.4%
NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 23,700 17,724 5,976 33.7%
Increase in net position 45,840 56,173 (10,333) -18.4%
NET POSITION, beginning of year 718,640 662,467 56,173 8.5%
NET POSITION, end of year $ 764,480 $ 718,640 $ 45,840 6.4%
5
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2018 and 2017 Operating Revenues

The decrease in consolidated operating revenues of $103.8 million in fiscal year 2018 is attributable to
lower enrollment in fiscal year 2018 comparing to fiscal year 2017, overall rate decreases in the Medi-Cal
line of business for both Medi-Cal classic and Medi-Cal expansion members, and the discontinuation of
In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) beginning January 2018. Part of the revenue decrease is offset by
the recognition of prior year deferred revenue from the Coordinated Care Initiative (CCI) program after
reconciling the blended rates with DHCS.

2018 and 2017 Medical Expenses

Overall medical expenses decreased by $107.9 million or 3.2 percent in fiscal year 2018, totaling
$3,292.7 million, compared to $3,399.6 million in fiscal year 2017. CalOptima’s medical loss ratio, or
medical expenses as a percentage of operating revenues, was 95.5 percent in fiscal year 2018 similar to
the result in fiscal year 2017 which was 95.8 percent.

Medi-Cal provider capitation, comprised of capitation payments to CalOptima’s contracted health
networks, increased by 8.4 percent from fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2018 due to the transition of a
shared risk group network to a HMO model during the year. Capitated member enrollment accounted for
approximately 76.4 percent of CalOptima’s enroliment, averaging 590,204 members during fiscal year
2018, and 78.6 percent of CalOptima’s enrollment, averaging 610,893 members during fiscal year 2017.
Included in the capitated environment are 198,508 or 33.6 percent and 298,552 or 48.9 percent members
in a shared risk network for fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively. Shared Risk Networks receive
capitation for professional services and are claims-based for hospital services.

Medi-Cal capitation expenses totaled $1,068.4 million in fiscal year 2018, compared to $985.2 million in
fiscal year 2017. The increase reflects the transition of one group to HMO, and additional capitation
expenses relating to Proposition 56 (the Research and Prevention Tobacco Tax Act of 2016), which
authorizes supplemental payments to impacted physician services.

Medi-Cal claim expense to providers and facilities, including Long-term care (LTC) services decreased by
10.2 percent from fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2018. This decrease is attributable to lower enroliment,
the transition of one shared risk network to HMO as mentioned above, and the discontinuation of In-
Home Supportive Services (IHSS) services beginning January 2018. The decrease is offset by additional
IHSS expenses recorded based on an updated IHSS report from DHCS for service dates between fiscal
year 2016 to fiscal year 2018.

Pharmacy costs increased by 4.8 percent in fiscal year 2018, compared to fiscal year 2017. Results from
fiscal year 2018 reflects an increase pharmacy drug prices.

In addition to items mentioned above, total Quality Assurance Fee (QAF) payments received and passed
through to hospitals increased from $307.8 million to $402.3 million from fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year
2018. These receipts and payments are not included in the consolidated statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2018 and 2017 Administrative Expenses

Total administrative expenses were $131.8 million in 2018 compared to $111.4 million in 2017. Overall
administrative expenses increased by 18.3 percent or $20.4 million, due to increases in salaries and
benefits for behavioral health services brought in house, along with a CalPERS actuarial valuation
increase of $10 million related to a discount rate reduction from 7.65% to 7.15%. The administrative
expenses for both 2018 and 2017 reflected the implementation of Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
than Pensions for CalOptima’s other post-employment benefits for decreases of $2.1 million and $2.3
million, respectively. During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively, CalOptima’s administrative
expenses were 3.8 percent and 3.1 percent of total operating revenues.

2017 and 2016 Results of Operations

CalOptima’s fiscal year 2017 operations and nonoperating revenues resulted in a $56.2 million increase
in net position, $23.7 million higher compared to a $32.5 million increase in fiscal year 2016. The
following table reflects the changes in revenues and expenses for 2017 compared to 2016:

Table 2b: Consolidated Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

Change From 2016
Results of Operations 2017 2016 Amount Percentage
(as restated)

CAPITATION REVENUES $ 3,549,462 $ 3,148,260 $ 401,202 12.7%
OTHER INCOME 27 305 (278) -91.1%
Total operating revenues 3,549,489 3,148,565 400,924 12.7%
MEDICAL EXPENSES 3,399,612 3,022,418 377,194 12.5%
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 111,428 107,182 4,246 4.0%
Total opeating expenses 3,511,040 3,129,600 381,440 12.2%
Operating income 38,449 18,965 19,484 102.7%
NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 17,724 13,548 4,176 30.8%
Increase in net position 56,173 32,513 23,660 72.8%
NET POSITION, beginning of year 662,467 629,954 32,513 5.2%
NET POSITION, end of year $ 718,640 $ 662,467 $ 56,173 8.5%
7
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2017 and 2016 Operating Revenues

The increase in consolidated operating revenues of $401.2 million in fiscal year 2017 is attributable to
additional revenue from rate increases, continued growth in Medi-Cal expansion and update in the
revenue recognition methodology for Care Coordinated Initiative (CCI) and LTC services. An update to
the revenue recognition methodology for CCl resulted in additional revenue of $64.7 million for fiscal year
2016 reflected in fiscal year 2017. Similarly, $56.3 million of additional revenue for LTC services for fiscal
year 2016 was reflected in fiscal year 2017.

2017 and 2016 Medical Expenses

Overall medical expenses increased by 12.5 percent in fiscal year 2017, totaling $3,399.6 million,
compared to $3,022.4 million in fiscal year 2016. CalOptima’s medical loss ratio, or medical expenses as
a percentage of operating revenues, was 95.8 percent in fiscal year 2017 compared to 96.0 percent in
fiscal year 2016.

Medi-Cal provider capitation, comprising capitation payments to CalOptima’s contracted health networks,
increased by 5.3 percent from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2017 due to the transition of one shared risk
group network and a managed behavior health organization (MBHO) to an HMO model during the year.
Capitated member enrollment accounted for approximately 78.6 percent of CalOptima’s enroliment,
averaging 610,893 members during fiscal year 2017, and 80.0 percent of CalOptima’s enroliment,
averaging 612,704 members during fiscal year 2016. Included in the capitated environment are 298,552
or 48.9 percent and 342,498 or 44.7 percent members in a shared risk network for fiscal years 2017 and
2016, respectively. Shared risk networks receive capitation for professional services and are claim-based
for hospital services.

Medi-Cal capitation expenses totaled $985.2 million in fiscal year 2017, compared to $935.4 million in
fiscal year 2016, which reflects the increased enroliment in capitated networks.

Medi-Cal claim expense to providers and facilities, including LTC facilities increased by 16.2 percent from
fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2017. This increase is attributable to an overall increase in cost per
member, enroliment and a change in methodology to account for IHSS benefits.

In addition to the above Medi-Cal revenues and claims expenses in fiscal year 2017, QAF payments
received and passed through to hospitals increased from $42.1 million to $307.8 million from fiscal year
2016 to fiscal year 2017. These receipts and payments are not included in the consolidated statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Pharmacy costs increased by 8.6 percent in fiscal year 2017, compared to fiscal year 2016. Results from
fiscal year 2017 reflect higher enroliment and increase Pharmacy drug prices.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2017 and 2016 Administrative Expenses

Total administrative expenses were $111.4 million in 2017 compared to $107.2 million in 2016. Overall
administrative expenses increased by 4 percent or $4.2 million, due to increases in salaries and benefits.
During fiscal years 2017 and 2016, respectively, administrative expenses were 3.1 percent and 3.4
percent of operating revenues.

2018, 2017, and 2016 Medical Expenses by Major Category

Below is a comparison chart of medical expenses by major category and their respective percentages of
the overall medical expenditures by fiscal year.

Chart 1: Medical Expenses by Major Category
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2018, 2017, and 2016 Enroliment

During fiscal year 2018, CalOptima served an average of 772,511 Medi-Cal members per month
compared to an average of 777,057 members per month in 2017, and 765,938 members per month in
2016. The chart below displays a comparative view of average monthly membership by Medi-Cal aid
category during 2018, 2017, and 2016:

Chart 2: Medi-Cal Membership by Aid Category
(Shown as Average Member Months)
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m 2018 418,378 111,158 3,440 239,535
m 2017 431,452 108,130 3,283 234,192
2016 434,854 112,328 3,518 215,238

Significant aid categories are defined as follows:

Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) includes families, children, and poverty-level members
who qualify for the TANF federal welfare program, which provides cash aid and job-search assistance to
poor families. TANF also includes members who migrated from CalOptima, Health Net, and Kaiser
Healthy Family programs.

Disabled and Aged includes individuals who have met the criteria for disability set by the Social Security
Administration, and individuals of 65 years of age and older who receive supplemental security income
(SSI) checks, or are medically needy, or have an income of 100 percent or less of the federal poverty
level.

LTC includes frail elderly, nonelderly adults with disabilities, and children with developmental disabilities
and other disabling conditions requiring long-term care services.

Medi-Cal Expansion program (MCX and MSI) includes adults without children, ages 19-64, qualified
based upon income, as required by the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA).

10
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2018, 2017, and 2016 Enroliment (continued)

OneCare was introduced in fiscal year 2006 to service the unique Medicare Advantage Special Needs
Plan. It provides a full range of health care services to average member months of 1,372, 1,237, and
6,879 for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. Members are eligible for both the
Medicare and Medi-Cal programs. The membership decrease in 2017 was primarily due to OneCare
members transitioning to CalOptima’s OneCare Connect. The chart below displays the average member
months for the past three years.

Chart 3: OneCare Membership by Fiscal Year
(Shown as Average Member Months)

7,500

5,000

2,500

2018

2017

2016

11

Back to Agenda



12

Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2018, 2017, and 2016 Enrollment (continued)

CalOptima launched OneCare Connect (OCC) program to serve dual eligible members in Orange County
on July 1, 2015. This new program combines members’ Medicare and Medi-Cal coverage and adds other
benefits and supports. Average member months were 15,079 in fiscal year 2018. The chart below
displays the average member months for the past three years.

Chart 4: OneCare Connect Membership by Fiscal Year
(Shown as Average Member Months)
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2018, 2017, and 2016 Enroliment (continued)

PACE (Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly) started operation in October 2013. It is a community-
based Medicare and Medi-Cal program that provides coordinated and integrated health care services to
frail elders to help them continue living independently in the community. It provides a full range of health
care services to average member months of 239, 193, and 135 for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017,
and 2016, respectively. The chart below displays the average member months for the past three years.

Chart 5: PACE Membership by Fiscal Year
(Shown as Average Member Months)
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Economic Factors and the State’s Fiscal Year 2018 Budget

On June 27, 2018, Governor Jerry Brown signed the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 budget. The budget is
consistent with his overall focus for a balanced state budget while addressing his key priorities: plan for
the next recession by filling the Rainy-Day Fund, move government closer to the people, increase funding

for schools, counteract the effects of poverty and support job creation, combat climate change, strengthen
infrastructure, and pay down debts and liabilities.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Economic Factors and the State’s Fiscal Year 2018 Budget (continued)

General Fund spending in the budget package is $138.7 billion, an increase of $11.6 billion or 9.2% from
the revised FY 2017-18 budget. The budget includes $23.4 billion in General Fund spending for the Medi-
Cal program, representing a $2.6 billion or 12.6% increase compared to last fiscal year. Major Medi-Cal
policies adopted in the budget include: funding from Proposition 56 tobacco tax revenue to support Medi-
Cal spending growth, rate increases for home health and private duty nursing providers, funding for
increased cost-sharing for ACA optional Medi-Cal expansion, county funding for outreach and treatment
for homeless persons with mental iliness, and expansion of Hepatitis C treatment clinical guidelines.

The budget projects $133.3 billion in General Fund revenues and transfers in FY 2018-19, an increase of
$3.5 billion or 2.7% compared to last fiscal year. The three largest General Fund taxes (i.e., personal
income tax, sales and use tax, corporation tax) are projected to increase by 4%. The state is projected to
end FY 2018-19 with $13.8 billion in total reserves.

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act — In March 2010, the President signed into law the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010
(collectively referred to as the ACA), transformed the U.S. health-care system and increased regulations
within the U.S. health insurance industry. In January 2015, California expanded Medi-Cal coverage for
low-income families, children, pregnant women, seniors, and persons with disabilities. For the years
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, CalOptima served an average of 240,000 and 231,000 optional Medi-Cal
expansion members per month, with a decrease in revenue of approximately $14,586,000 and an
increase of $88,812,000, respectively.

DHCS Annual Audit — DHCS conducted its annual audit of CalOptima’s Medi-Cal program in late
February and early March 2018. As of this writing, CalOptima expects to receive a draft audit report and
participate in DHCS’ formal exit conference in late August 2018. DHCS has not provided CalOptima with
a preliminary notification of whether there are any findings associated with the audit.

Requests for Information — This financial report has been prepared in the spirit of full disclosure to
provide the reader with an overview of CalOptima’s operations. If the reader has questions or would like
additional information about CalOptima Foundation, please direct the requests to CalOptima, 505 City
Parkway West, Orange, CA 92868 or call 714.347.3237.
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@ MOSSADAMS

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima e

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of -net:bOSition of Orange County Health
Authority, a Public Agency/dba Orange Prevention and:;T;reat'rnent Integrated Medical Assistance/dba
CalOptima (a discrete component unit of the County of Orange, California) (CalOptima), as of June
30, 2018 and 2017 and the related cqnsoli'dated statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net position and cash flows for the?yeai’s ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements, which collectively comprise CalOptima’s basic consolidated
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated' financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in t_heiunited States of
Americay; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of‘internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated flnanC|aI statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. -

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require:"'--r

that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolldated
financial statements are free from material misstatement. e

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit eviden_c;e;abt)'ut the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures;seleéted depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. -In’m'aking those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the en_tity"s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting L
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements PR

We believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and approprlate to; prowde a basis for our
audit opinion.

.. Back to Agenda



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of CalOptima as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in the years ended June 30, 2018
and June 30, 2017, CalOptima adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. Our opinion
is not modified with respect to this matter. The consolidated statement of net position as of June 30,
2017 and the related consolidated statement of revenues, expenses, and change in net position for
the year ended June 30, 2017 have been restated to show the impact of the adoption of GASB 75.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of changes in net pension liability and related
ratios, schedule of plan contributions, and schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related
ratios, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic consolidated financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic consolidated financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic consolidated financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods or
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic consolidated financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic consolidated financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 21, 2018, on our consideration of the CalOptima’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
CalOptima's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

P over Hllomsr LLF

Irvine, California
September 21, 2018
16
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Consolidated Statements of Net Position

June 30,
2018 2017
(as restated)

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

$ 370,932,987

$ 510,062,983

Investments 580,298,949 1,082,425,753
Premiums due from the State of California 296,371,640 522,793,705
Prepaid expenses and other 31,076,723 26,384,678

Total current assets

BOARD-DESIGNATED ASSETS AND RESTRICTED CASH

1,278,680,299

2,141,667,119

Cash and cash equivalents 26,682,953 17,709,682
Investments 511,564,720 517,428,691
Restricted deposit 300,000 300,000
538,547,673 535,438,373

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 50,758,254 54,301,035

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1,867,986,226

2,731,406,527

Net pension 10,573,050 11,577,140
Other postemployment benefit 560,000 -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $1,879,119,276 $2,742,983,667

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 17
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima

Consolidated Statements of Net Position (continued)

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Medical claims liability and capitation payable
Medical claims liability
Provider capitation and withholds
Accrued reinsurance costs to providers

Due to State of California and the Centers for Medicare
and Medicaid Services (CMS)

Unearned revenue

Accounts payable and other
Accrued payroll and employee benefits and other

Total current liabilities
POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN
NET PENSION LIABILITY
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net pension
Other postemployment benefit
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted - required tangible net equity and restricted deposit
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position

June 30,

2018

2017

$ 263,057,437
96,448,891
3,464,488

567,116,026
112,557,008

(as restated)

$ 426,676,745
580,839,710
5,681,300

845,888,193
102,284,235

1,042,643,850

8,030,637
10,869,839

1,961,370,183

9,723,907
10,101,233

1,061,544,326
24,565,000
25,100,820

100,000

1,981,195,323
26,278,000
15,430,763

100,000

1,111,310,146

2,023,004,086

1,028,380 1,340,010
2,301,000 -
50,637,437 54,103,912
89,037,443 98,445,479
624,804,870 566,090,180
764,479,750 718,639,571

$1,879,119,276

$2,742,983,667

18 See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima

Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

REVENUES:
Premium revenues
Other income

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Medical expenses
Provider capitation
Claims expense to providers and facilities
Prescription drugs
Other medical
OneCare Connect
OneCare
Pace

Total medical expenses

Administrative expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits
Professional fees
Purchased services
Supplies, occupancy, insurance and other
Premium tax
Depreciation

Total administrative expenses

Total operating expenses

Years Ended June 30,

2018

2017

$ 3,445,699,268

$

(as restated)

3,549,461,873
27,164

3,445,699,268

3,549,489,037

1,068,367,719
1,403,275,064
442,312,644
42,215,978
302,761,410
14,437,586
18,341,424

984,437,605
1,561,399,095
423,946,865
49,429,921
355,208,384
16,424,252
8,766,268

3,291,711,825

3,399,612,390

85,386,751 69,574,654
2,430,578 1,241,416
11,460,353 11,278,918
25,070,349 22,788,692
7,499,203 6,544,639
131,847,234 111,428,319

3,423,559,059

3,511,040,709

OPERATING INCOME 22,140,209 38,448,328
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Net investment income and other 21,714,051 15,766,423
Rental income, net of related expenses 1,985,919 1,957,766
Total non-operating revenues and expenses 23,699,970 17,724,189
Increase in net position 45,840,179 56,172,517
Net position, beginning of year 718,639,571 662,467,054
Net position, end of year $ 764,479,750 $ 718,639,571
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 19
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30,
2018 2017
(as restated)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Capitation payments received and other $ 3,403,621,939 $ 3,417,382,842
Payments to providers and facilities (3,941,938,764) (2,945,552,284)
Payments to vendors (45,346,595) (39,179,989)
Payments to employees (74,227,628) (70,854,310)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (657,891,048) 361,796,259
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets (3,956,422) (5,850,108)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (3,956,422) (5,850,108)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received 28,891,325 11,823,120
Purchases of securities (12,243,048,906) (644,508,177)
Sales of securities 12,736,875,055 527,913,163
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 522,717,474 (104,771,894)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (139,129,996) 251,174,257
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 510,062,983 258,888,726
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 370,932,987 $ 510,062,983

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 22,140,209 $ 38,448,328

ADJUSTMENT TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
(USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Depreciation 7,499,203 6,544,639

Changes in assets and liabilities
Premiums receivable from the State of California 226,422,065 (52,530,134)
Prepaid expenses and other (4,692,045) (3,088,232)
Medical claims liability (163,619,308) 274,250,196
Payable to the State of California and CMS (278,772,167) 16,434,944
Unearned revenue 10,272,773 (96,011,005)
Provider capitation and withholds (484,390,819) 179,013,410
Accounts payable and other (1,693,270) (782,731)
Accrued payroll and employee benefits and other 768,606 (1,735,957)
Accrued reinsurance costs to providers (2,216,812) 796,500
Postemployment health-care plan 28,000 (1,049,000)
Net pension obligation 10,362,517 1,505,301

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (657,891,048) $ 361,796,259

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH OPERATING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in unrealized appreciation on investments $ (5,492,336) $ (1,252,325)

20 See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Organization

Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima (CalOptima) is a county-organized health system (COHS) serving
primarily Medi-Cal beneficiaries in Orange County, California. Pursuant to the California Welfare and
Institutions Code, CalOptima was formed by the Orange County Board of Supervisors as a public/private
partnership through the adoption of Ordinance No. 3896 in August 1992. The agency began operations in
October 1995.

As a COHS, CalOptima maintains an exclusive contract with the State of California Department of Health
Care Services (DHCS) to arrange for the provision of health-care services to Orange County’s Med-Cal
beneficiaries. Orange County had approximately 764,000 and 772,000 Medi-Cal beneficiaries for the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. CalOptima also offers OneCare, a Medicare
Advantage Special Needs Plan, via a contract with the Centers for Medicare, and Medicaid Services
(CMS). In January 2016, CalOptima began transferring subscribers from OneCare to the OneCare
Connect Cal MediConnect Plan. OneCare served approximately 1,400 and 1,100 members eligible for
both Medicare and Medi-Cal for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. In January 2016,
CalOptima began offering OneCare Connect Cal MediConnect Plan (OCC), a Medicare-Medicaid Plan,
via a contract with CMS. OCC served approximately 15,000 and 16,000 members eligible for both
Medicare and Medi-Cal for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. CalOptima also
contracts with the California Department of Aging to provide case management of social and health-care
services to approximately 300 Medi-Cal eligible seniors under California’s Multipurpose Senior Services
program. The Program of All-inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) provides services to 55 years of age or
older members who reside in the PACE service area and meet California nursing facility level of care
requirements. The program receives Medicare and Medi-Cal funding.

CalOptima in turn subcontracts the delivery of health care services through health maintenance
organizations and provider-sponsored organizations, known as Physician/Hospital Consortia, and Shared
Risk Groups. Additionally, CalOptima has direct contracts with hospitals and providers for its fee-for
service network.

CalOptima is Knox-Keene licensed for purposes of its Medicare programs and is subject to certain
provisions of the Knox-Keene Act to the extent incorporated by reference into CalOptima’s contract with
DHCS. As such, CalOptima is subject to the regulatory requirements of the Department of Managed
Health Care under Section 1300, Title 28 of the California Administrative Code of Regulations, including
minimum requirements of Tangible Net Equity, which CalOptima exceeded as of June 30, 2018 and
2017.

CalOptima Foundation (the “Foundation”) was formed as a not-for-profit benefit corporation in 2010 and is
dedicated to the betterment of public health-care services in Orange County. CalOptima has sole control
over the activities of the Foundation and as such, the activities of the Foundation are included in the
consolidated financial statements of CalOptima.

21
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation — CalOptima is a county-organized health system governed by a 10-member
Board of Directors appointed by the Orange County Board of Supervisors. The CalOptima Board of
Directors also serves as the Board of Directors of the Foundation. Effective for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2014, CalOptima began reporting as a discrete component unit of the County of Orange, California.
The County made this determination based on the County Board of Supervisors’ role in appointing all
members of the CalOptima Board of Directors.

Principle of consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CalOptima
and the Foundation (collectively referred to herein as the “Organization”).

Basis of accounting — CalOptima uses enterprise fund accounting. Revenues and expenses are
recognized on the accrual basis using the economic resources measurement focus. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the standards of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Use of estimates — The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents — The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Investments — Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Codification Section 150.
The fair value of investments is estimated based on quoted market prices, when available. For debt
securities not actively traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from external pricing
services or are estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows, using current market rates
applicable to the coupon rate, credit and maturity of the investments.

All investments with an original maturity of one year or less when purchased are recorded as current
investments, unless designated or restricted.

Board-designated assets and restricted cash — CalOptima’s Board of Directors designated the
establishment of certain reserve funds for contingencies. According to CalOptima’s policy, the desired
level for these funds is between 1.4 months and 2 months of premium revenues. CalOptima is required to
maintain a $300,000 restricted deposit as a part of the Knox-Keene Health Care Service Plan Act of 1975
(see Note 10).
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital assets — Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition. The costs of normal
maintenance, repairs and minor replacements are charged to expense when incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Long-lived assets are periodically reviewed for impairment. The following estimated useful lives are used:

Years
Furniture 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Computers and software 3 years
Leasehold improvements 15 years or life of lease, whichever is less
Building 40 years
Building components 10 to 30 years
Land improvements 8 to 25 years
Tenant improvements 7 years or life of lease, whichever is less

Fair value of financial instruments — The consolidated financial statements include financial
instruments for which the fair market value may differ from amounts reflected on a historical basis.
Financial instruments of the Organization consist of cash deposits, investments, premium receivable,
accounts payable, and certain accrued liabilities. The Organization’s other financial instruments generally
approximate fair market value based on the relatively short period of time between origination of the
instruments and their expected realization.

Medical claims liability and expenses — CalOptima establishes a claims liability based on estimates of
the ultimate cost of claims in process and a provision for incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) claims,
which is actuarially determined based on historical claim payment experience and other statistics. Such
estimates are continually monitored and analyzed with any adjustments made as necessary in the period
the adjustment is determined. CalOptima retains an outside actuary to perform an annual review of the
actuarial projections. Amounts for claims payment incurred related to prior years vary from previously
estimated liabilities as the claims ultimately are settled.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Provider capitation and withholds — CalOptima has provider services agreements with several health
networks in Orange County, whereby the health networks provide care directly to covered members or
through subcontracts with other health care providers. Payment for the services provided by the health
networks is on a fully capitated basis. The capitation amount is based on contractually agreed-upon terms
with each health network. CalOptima withholds amounts from providers at an agreed-upon percentage of
capitation payments made to ensure the financial solvency of each contract. CalOptima also records a
liability related to quality incentive payments and risk-share provisions. The quality incentive liability is
estimated based on member months and rates agreed upon by the Board of Directors. For the risk-share
provision liability, management allocates surplus or deficits, multiplied by a contractual rate, with the
shared-risk groups. Estimated amounts due to health networks pertaining to risk-share provisions were
approximately $44,660,000 and $532,665,000 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. During the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, CalOptima incurred approximately $1,212,059,000 and
$1,096,426,000, respectively, of capitation expense relating to health care services provided by health
networks. Capitation expense is included in the provider capitation and OneCare line items in the
consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Estimated amounts due to
health networks as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, related to the capitation withhold arrangements, quality
incentive payments, and risk-share provisions were approximately $96,449,000 and $580,840,000,
respectively.

Premium deficiency reserves — CalOptima performs periodic analyses of its expected future health care
costs and maintenance costs to determine whether such costs will exceed anticipated future revenues
under its contracts. Should expected costs exceed anticipated revenues, a premium deficiency reserve is
accrued. Investment income is not included in the calculation to estimate premium deficiency reserves.
CalOptima’s management determined that no premium deficiency reserves were necessary as of June
30, 2018 and 2017.

Accrued compensated absences — CalOptima’s policy permits employees who are regularly scheduled
to work more than 20 hours per week to accrue 18 days of paid time off (PTO) (23 days for exempt
employees) based on their years of continuous service, with an additional week of accrual after three
years of service and another after 10 years of service. Unused PTO may be carried over into subsequent
years, not to exceed two and a half times the annual accrual. If an employee reaches his/her PTO
maximum accrual, a portion of the accrued PTO equal to half of the employees’ annual PTO accruals will
be automatically paid out to the employees. Accumulated PTO will be paid to the employees upon
separation from service with CalOptima. All compensated absences are accrued and recorded in
accordance with GASB Codification Section C60, and are included in accrued payroll and employee
benefits.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Net position — Net position is reported in three categories, defined as follows:

¢ Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets,
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and is reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable (if any) to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.

¢ Restricted — This component of net position consists of external constraints placed on net asset use
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or the law or regulations of
other governments. It also pertains to constraints imposed by law or constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation (see Note 10).

¢ Unrestricted — This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the
definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets, net of related debt.”

Operating revenues and expenses — CalOptima’s consolidated statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position distinguish between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Operating revenues result from exchange transactions associated with arranging for the provision of
health care services. Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to arrange for the provision of health
care services as well as the costs of administration. Unpaid claims adjustment expenses are an estimate
of the cost to process the IBNR claims and are included in operating expenses. Non-exchange revenues
and expenses are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Revenue recognition and due to or from the State of California and CMS — Premium revenue is
recognized in the period the members are eligible to receive health care services. Premium revenue is
generally received from the State of California (the “State”) each month following the month of coverage
based on estimated enroliment and capitation rates as provided for in the State contract. As such,
premium revenue includes an estimate for amounts receivable from or refundable to the State for these
retrospective adjustments. These estimates are continually monitored and analyzed, with any
adjustments recognized in the period when determined. OneCare premium revenue is generally received
from CMS each month for the month of coverage. Premiums received in advance are recorded in
unearned revenue on the consolidated statements of net position. Included in premium revenue are
retroactive adjustments favorable to CalOptima in the amount of approximately $75,511,000 and
$164,025,000 related to retroactive capitation rate adjustments and receipt of new information from
DHCS during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Effective with the enroliment of the Medi-Cal expansion population per the Affordable Care Act (ACA)
CalOptima is subject to DHCS requirements to meet the minimum 85% medical loss ratio (MLR) for this
population. Specifically, CalOptima will be required to expend at least 85% of the Medi-Cal premium
revenue received for this population on allowable medical expenses as defined by DHCS. In the event
CalOptima expends less than the 85% requirement, CalOptima will be required to return to DHCS the
difference between the minimum threshold and the actual allowed medical expenses. During 2018 and
2017, CalOptima expended more than 85% of the Medi-Cal premium revenue, therefore no reserve was
recorded for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. DHCS is in process of reconciling the fiscal years
2014 through 2016 and has provided CalOptima with the methodology and reporting instructions. Based
on the updated methodology and reporting instructions made available in the current year, CalOptima
recognized an additional reserve of approximately $64,293,000 related to fiscal years 2014 through 2016.
This additional reserve was recorded as a reduction to premium revenues in the consolidated statements
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position to meet the 85% requirement. As of June 30, 2018
and 2017, approximately $227,362,000 and $164,875,000 was accrued. This liability is presented in the
Due to State of California line item in the accompanying consolidated statements of net position.

Premium revenue and related net receivables as a percent of the totals were as follows:

Years Ended June 30,

2018 2017
Revenue Revenue % Revenue %
Medi-Cal $ 3,093,733,298 89.8% $ 3,143,998,722 88.6%
OneCare 15,943,378 0.5% 18,615,729 0.5%
OneCare Connect 315,219,443 9.1% 371,630,947 10.5%
PACE 20,803,149 0.6% 15,216,475 0.4%
$ 3,445,699,268 100.0% $ 3,549,461,873 100.0%
As of June 30,
2018 2017
Receivables Receivables % Receivables %
Medi-Cal $ 279,765,285 94.4% $ 506,599,613 96.9%
OneCare 414,035 0.1% 28,106 0.0%
OneCare Connect 12,791,802 4.3% 12,630,469 2.4%
PACE 3,400,518 1.1% 3,535,517 0.8%
$ 296,371,640 100.0% $ 522,793,705 100.0%
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intergovernmental transfer — CalOptima entered into an agreement with DHCS and the University of
California, Irvine (UCI) to receive an intergovernmental transfer (IGT) through a capitation rate increase of
approximately $130,700,000 and $71,309,000 during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Under the agreement, approximately $99,600,000 and $56,891,000 of the funds that were
received from the IGT were passed through to UCI and other contracted providers and organizations
during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Under GASB, the amounts that will be
passed through to UCI are not reported in the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position or the consolidated statements of net position. CalOptima accounts for the IGT
transfer for CalOptima purposes as an exchange transaction requiring funds to be expended prior to
revenue recognition. The funds received in 2018 and 2017 were not yet expended for the required
purpose during the years ended June 30, 2018 or 2017 as the revenue recognition criteria had not been
met. CalOptima retains a portion of the IGT, which must be used to enhance provider reimbursement
rates and strengthen the delivery system. A retainer in the amount of approximately $31,149,000 and
$14,418,000 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, is included in unearned revenues in the
consolidated statements of net position.

Medicare Part D — CalOptima covers prescription drug benefits in accordance with Medicare Part D
under multiple contracts with CMS. The payments CalOptima receives monthly from CMS and members,
which are determined from its annual bid, represent amounts for providing prescription drug insurance
coverage. CalOptima recognizes premiums for providing this insurance coverage ratably over the term of
its annual contract. CalOptima’s CMS payment is subject to risk sharing through the Medicare Part D risk
corridor provisions. In addition, receipts for reinsurance and low-income cost subsidies, as well as
receipts for certain discounts on brand name prescription drugs in the coverage gap represent payments
for prescription drug costs for which CalOptima is not at risk.

The risk corridor provisions compare costs targeted in CalOptima’s bids to actual prescription drug costs,
limited to actual costs that would have been incurred under the standard coverage as defined by CMS.
Variances exceeding certain thresholds may result in CMS making additional payments to CalOptima or
require CalOptima to refund to CMS a portion of the premiums CalOptima received. CalOptima estimates
and recognizes an adjustment to premiums revenue related to these risk corridor provisions based upon
pharmacy claims experience to date as if the annual contract were to terminate at the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, this estimate provides no consideration to future pharmacy claims experience.
CalOptima records a receivable or payable at the contract level and classifies the amount as current or
long-term in the accompanying consolidated statements of net position based on the timing of expected
settlement. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017 the Part D payable balance was approximately $1,374,000 and
$3,198,000, respectively and the Part D receivable balance was approximately $15,114,000 and
$17,563,000, respectively.

27

Back to Agenda



Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income taxes — CalOptima operates under the purview of the Internal Revenue Code, Section 501(a),
and corresponding California Revenue and Taxation Code provisions. As such, CalOptima is not subject
to federal or state taxes on related income. The Foundation is operated as a tax-exempt organization
under Section 501(c)(3) of the federal Internal Revenue Code and applicable sections of the California
statutes. Accordingly, no provision for income tax has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Premium taxes — Effective July 1, 2016, Senate Bill X2-2 (SB X2-2) Managed Care Organization Tax
authorized Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to implement a Managed Care Organization
provider tax subject to approval by the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. This
approved tax structure is based on enroliment (total member months) between specified tiers that are
assessed different tax rates. Using the approved structure, each MCOQO's total tax liability for years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, were calculated. CalOptima recognized premium tax expense of approximately
$143,156,000 and $137,975,000 in the consolidated statements of revenue, expenses, and change in net
position for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Pensions — For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
CalOptima’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System Plan (the “CalPERS Plan”) and additions
to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

Reclassifications — Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current-year financial statements.
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Recent accounting pronouncements — In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB No. 75). The primary
objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or
OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial
support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review
of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment
benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. The
Organization adopted this standard effective July 1, 2016 in the consolidated financial statements. See
Note 3. The consolidated statement of net position as of June 30, 2017 and the related consolidated
statement of revenues, expenses, and change in net position for the year ended June 30, 2017 have
been restated to show the impact of the adoption of GASB 75.

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 (GASB No. 85). This Statement
addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment
benefits). This Statement also addresses the following topics of blending a component unit in
circumstances in which the primary government is a business-type activity that reports in a single column
for financial statement presentation, reporting amounts previously reported as goodwill and “negative”
goodwill, timing of the measurement of pension or OPEB liabilities and expenditures recognized in
financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, and recognizing
on-behalf payments for pensions or OPEB in employer financial statements. The pronouncement is
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The Organization concluded that this
standard did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 — Implementation of GASB 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions

Effective July 1, 2016 CalOptima adopted GASB 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions “OPEB”. Accordingly, the other postemployment benefit
expense was decreased by approximately $2,308,000, for the year ended June 30, 2017 to reflect the
adoption of GASB 75. In addition, a decrease in the post retirement liability of $2,308,000 and a
corresponding increase in the unrestricted net position were recognized as of June 30, 2017. Refer to
Note 9 for further disclosures related to GASB 75.
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Note 4 — Cash and Investments

The Organization categorizes its fair value investments within the fair value hierarchy established by
GAAP. The hierarchy for fair value measurements is based upon the transparency of inputs to the
valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date.

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments at fair value on a
recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of net position, as well as
the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Marketable securities — Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are
classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair
values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or
discounted cash flows. These securities are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain
cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the
hierarchy.
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Note 4 — Cash and Investments (continued)
The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying
consolidated statements of net position measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within

the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall:

Investment Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

U.S. treasury notes $ 340,360,989 $ - $ - $ 340,360,989
U.S. agencies - 97,566,400 - 97,566,400
Asset-backed securities - 98,081,726 - 98,081,726
Commercial deposits - 4,991,291 - 4,991,291
Commercial paper - 22,564,481 - 22,564,481
Corporate bonds - 325,476,437 - 325,476,437
Government - 27,385,479 - 27,385,479
Mortgage-backed securities - 60,653,460 - 60,653,460
Municipal bonds - 109,676,060 - 109,676,060
Money mark funds - - - -

Tax Exempt - - - -

$ 340,360,989 $ 746,395,334 $ - $ 1,086,756,323

Investment Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

U.S. treasury notes $ 540,798,261 $ - $ - $ 540,798,261
Government - 109,063,165 - 109,063,165
U.S. agencies - 119,391,299 - 119,391,299
Asset-backed securities - 97,004,215 - 97,004,215
Corporate bonds - 451,582,267 - 451,582,267
Mortgage-backed securities - 84,380,043 - 84,380,043
Municipal bonds - 88,409,606 - 88,409,606
Certificates of deposit - 55,580,933 - 55,580,933
Commercial paper - 47,777,235 - 47,777,235
$ 540,798,261 $ 1,053,188,763 $ - $ 1,593,987,024
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Note 4 — Cash and Investments (continued)

Cash and investments are reported in the June 30 consolidated statements of net position as follows:

June 30,
2018 2017

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 370,932,987 $ 510,062,983

Investments 580,298,949 1,082,425,753
Board-designated assets and restricted cash:

Cash and cash equivalents 26,682,953 17,709,682

Investments 511,564,720 517,428,691

Restricted deposit 300,000 300,000

$ 1,489,779,609 $ 2,127,927,109

Custodial credit risk-deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the
Organization may not be able to recover its deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits
made by public agencies by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under the state law. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, no deposits were exposed to custodial credit
risk, as the Organization has pledged collateral to cover the amounts.

Investments — CalOptima invests in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, other U.S. government agencies

and instrumentalities, state obligations, corporate securities, money market funds, and mortgage or asset-
backed securities.

32

Back to Agenda



Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4 — Cash and Investments (continued)

Interest rate risk — In accordance with its annual investment policy (“investment policy”), CalOptima
manages its exposure to decline in fair value from increasing interest rates by matching maturity dates to
the extent possible with CalOptima’s expected cash flow draws. Its investment policy limits maturities to
five years, while also staggering maturities. CalOptima maintains a low-duration strategy, targeting a
portfolio duration of three years or less, with the intent of reducing interest rate risk. Portfolios with low
duration are less volatile because they are less sensitive to interest rate changes. As of June 30, 2018
and 2017, CalOptima’s investments, including cash equivalents, had the following modified duration:

June 30, 2018
Investment Maturities (In Years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 More Than 5
U.S. agencies $ 97,566,400 $ 53,950,111 $ 43,616,289 $ -
Asset-backed securities 98,081,726 40,122,896 57,958,830 -
Corporate bonds 325,476,437 150,685,261 174,791,176 -
Government 27,385,479 11,916,356 15,469,123 -
Money market funds - - - -
Mortgage-backed securities 60,653,460 33,330,235 27,323,225 -
Municipal bonds 109,676,060 47,033,412 62,642,648 -
Tax exempt - - - -
U.S. treasury notes 340,360,989 209,773,924 130,587,065 -
Certificates of deposit 4,991,291 4,991,291 - -
Commercial paper 22,564,481 22,564,481 - -
Cash equivalents 335,013,724 335,013,724 - -
Cash 1,375,213 1,375,213 - -

$ 910,756,904 $ 512,388,356 $ -

Accrued interest receivable 5,191,355
$ 1,428,336,615
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Note 4 — Cash and Investments (continued)

Investment with fair values highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations — When interest rates fall,
debt is refinanced and paid off early. The reduced stream of future interest payments diminishes the fair
value of the investment. The mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities in the CalOptima portfolio are
of high credit quality, with relatively short average lives that represent limited prepayment and interest
rate exposure risk. CalOptima’s investments include the following investments that are highly sensitive to
interest rate and prepayment fluctuations to a greater degree than already indicated in the information
provided above:

June 30,
2018 2017
Asset-backed securities $ 98,081,726 $ 97,004,215
Mortgage-backed securities 60,653,460 84,380,043

$ 158,735,186 $ 181,384,258

Credit risk — CalOptima’s investment policy conforms to the California Government Code as well as to
customary standards of prudent investment management. Credit risk is mitigated by investing in only
permitted investments. The investment policy sets minimum acceptable credit ratings for investments
from the three nationally recognized rating services: Standard and Poor’s Corporation (S&P), Moody’s
Investor Service (Moody’s) and Fitch Ratings (Fitch). For an issuer of short-term debt, the rating must be
no less than A-1 (S&P), P-1 (Moody’s) or F-1 (Fitch), while an issuer of long-term debt shall be rated no
less than an “A.”
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Note 4 — Cash and Investments (continued)

As of June 30, 2018, following are the credit ratings of investments and cash equivalents:

Minimum Exempt
Fair Legal From Rating as of Year-End

Investment Type Value Rating Disclosure AAA Aa & Aa+ Aa- A+ A A-
U.S. Treasury notes $ 424,083,688 N/A $ 424,083,688 $ -8 - 8 -8 -8 - -
U.S. Agency notes 140,852,307 N/A 140,852,307 - - - - - -
Corporate bonds 267,655,812 A- - 2,096,170 20,135,711 32,266,114 70,432,536 100,078,443 42,646,838
FRN securities 119,715,104 A- - 47,187,008 3,581,153 7,419,691 19,960,470 22,322,066 19,244,716
Asset-backed securities 147,203,018 AAA - 100,674,207 20,251,534 19,999,921 1,000,903 2,856,173 2,420,280
Mortgage-backed securities 60,754,477 AAA - 60,754,477 - - - - -
Municpal bonds 65,961,981 A - 4,807,874 38,071,549 12,515,979 9,074,505 1,006,522 485,552
Supranational 15,384,685 AAA - 15,384,685 - - - - -
Certificates of deposit 5,053,486 A1/P1 - 5,053,486 - - - - -
Commercial paper 64,431,291 A1/P1 - 64,431,291 - - - - -
Money market mutual funds 117,240,767 AAA - 117,240,767 - - - - -

Total $ 1,428,336,616 $ 564,935,995 $ 417,629,965 $ 82,039,947 $ 72,201,705 $ 100,468,414 $ 126,263,204 64,797,386
As of June 30, 2017, following are the credit ratings of investments and cash equivalents:

Minimum Exempt
Fair Legal From Rating as of Year-End

Investment Type Value Rating Disclosure AAA Aa & Aa+ Aa- A+ A A-
U.S. Treasury notes $ 556,751,675 N/A $ 556,751,675 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - -
U.S. Agency notes 165,604,426 N/A 165,604,426 - - - - - -
Corporate bonds 383,257,883 A- - 13,708,720 31,590,024 30,992,688 104,003,338 135,217,263 67,745,850
FRN securities 144,908,196 A- - 45,470,984 13,985,742 6,212,772 25,873,521 37,150,063 16,215,114
Asset-backed securities 125,246,607 AAA - 97,063,263 15,854,777 9,441,408 - 2,887,159 -
Mortgage-backed securities 84,491,487 AAA - 83,412,108 1,079,379 - - - -
Municpal bonds 63,298,591 A - 2,566,925 27,034,118 33,210,423 - - 487,125
Supranational 79,184,258 AAA - 79,184,258 - - - - -
Certificates of deposit 40,642,387 A1/P1 - 40,642,387 - - - - -
Commercial paper 92,223,209 A1/P1 - 92,223,209 - - - - -
Money market mutual funds 329,498,381 AAA - 329,498,381 - - - - -

Total $ 2,065,107,100 $ 722,356,101 $ 783,770,235 $ 89,544,040 $ 79,857,291 $ 129,876,859 $ 175,254,485 84,448,089
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Note 4 — Cash and Investments (continued)

Concentration of credit risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of CalOptima’s investment in a single issuer. CalOptima’s investment policy limits to no more than

5 percent of the total fair value of investments in the securities of any one issuer, except for obligations of
the U.S. government, U.S. government agencies or government-sponsored enterprises; and no more
than 10 percent may be invested in one money market mutual fund unless approved by the governing
board. The investment policy also places a limit of 35 percent of the amount of investment holdings with
any one government-sponsored issuer and 5 percent of all other issuers. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, all
holdings complied with the foregoing limitations. The following holdings exceeded 5 percent of the
portfolio at June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Percentage of Portfolio
June 30,

Investment Type Issuer 2018 2017

U.S. Treasury notes United States Treasury 30.42 26.09

Note 5 — Capital Assets

Capital assets activity during the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

June 30, June 30,
2017 Additions Retirements Transfers 2018
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 5,876,002 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,876,002
Construction in progress 702,535 3,956,422 - (2,276,258) 2,382,699
6,578,537 3,956,422 - (2,276,258) 8,258,701
Capital assets being depreciated:
Furniture and equipment 14,845,717 - (1,051,408) 1,942,345 15,736,654
Computers and software 18,470,898 - - - 18,470,898
Land improvement 45,665 - - - 45,665
Leasehold improvements 5,180,145 - - 12,335 5,192,480
Building 43,621,997 - - 321,578 43,943,575
82,164,422 - (1,051,408) 2,276,258 83,389,272
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Furniture and equipment 4,185,505 792,930 (1,051,408) - 3,927,027
Computers and software 18,799,758 4,189,237 - - 22,988,995
Land improvement 2,242,945 2,283 - - 2,245,228
Leasehold improvements 2,728,056 596,209 - - 3,324,265
Building 6,485,660 1,918,544 - - 8,404,204
34,441,924 7,499,203 (1,051,408) - 40,889,719
Total depreciable assets, net 47,722,498 (7,499,203) - 2,276,258 42,499,553
Capital assets, net $ 54,301,035 $ (3,542,781) $ - $ - $ 50,758,254
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Note 5 — Capital Assets (continued)

Capital asset activity during the year ended June 30, 2017 consisted of the following:

June 30, June 30,
2016 Additions Retirements Transfers 2017
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 5,876,002 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,876,002
Construction in progress 6,256,236 5,850,106 - (11,403,807) 702,535
12,132,238 5,850,106 - (11,403,807) 6,578,537
Capital assets being depreciated:
Furniture and equipment 10,259,595 - (3,905,109) 8,491,231 14,845,717
Computers and software 18,470,898 - - - 18,470,898
Land improvement 45,665 - - - 45,665
Leasehold improvements 5,043,363 - (1,112) 137,894 5,180,145
Building 40,847,315 - - 2,774,682 43,621,997
74,666,836 - (3,906,221) 11,403,807 82,164,422
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Furniture and equipment 3,156,343 1,029,162 - - 4,185,505
Computers and software 19,668,092 3,036,775 (3,905,109) - 18,799,758
Land improvement 2,240,662 2,283 - - 2,242,945
Leasehold improvements 2,138,972 590,196 (1,112) - 2,728,056
Building 4,599,439 1,886,221 - - 6,485,660
31,803,508 6,544,637 (3,906,221) - 34,441,924
Total depreciable assets, net 42,863,328 (6,544,637) - 11,403,807 47,722,498
Capital assets, net $ 54,995566 $ (694,531) $ - 8 - $ 54,301,035

Note 6 — Medical Claims Liability

Medical claims liability consisted of the following:

June 30,
2018 2017
Claims payable or pending approval $ 13,347,460 $ 26,870,842
Provisions for IBNR claims 249,709,977 261,801,881
Due to DHCS - 138,004,022

$ 263,057,437 $ 426,676,745

The cost of health-care services is recognized in the period in which care is provided and includes an
estimate of the cost of services that has been incurred but not yet reported. CalOptima estimates accrued
claims payable based on historical claims payments and other relevant information. Unpaid claims
adjustment expenses are an estimate of the cost to process the IBNR claims and are included in medical
claims liability. Estimates are continually monitored and analyzed, and as settlements are made or
estimates adjusted, differences are reflected in current operations.
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Note 6 — Medical Claims Liability (continued)

Such estimates are subject to the impact of changes in the regulatory environment and economic
conditions. Given the inherent variability of such estimates, the actual liability could differ significantly
from the amounts provided.

The following is a reconciliation of the medical claims liability:

For the Years Ended June 30,

2018 2017
Beginning balance $ 426,676,745 $ 800,095,760
Incurred:
Current 1,609,946,348 1,401,665,881
Prior (7,371,113) (5,602,159)
1,602,575,235 1,396,063,722
Paid
Current 1,541,304,218 1,568,167,854
Prior 224,890,325 201,314,883
1,766,194,543 1,769,482,737
Ending balance $ 263,057,437 $ 426,676,745

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary from previously estimated liabilities as the claims are
ultimately adjudicated and paid. Liabilities at any year-end are continually reviewed and re-estimated as
information regarding actual claim payments becomes known. This information is compared to the
originally established prior reporting period liability. Negative amounts reported for incurred, related to
prior years, result from claims being adjudicated and paid for amounts less than originally estimated. The
year ended June 30, 2018 results included a decrease of prior year incurred of approximately $7,371,000.
The year ended June 30, 2017 results included a decrease of prior year incurred of approximately
$5,602,000. Original estimates are increased or decreased as additional information becomes known
regarding individual claims.

The amounts accrued in Due to DHCS represent excess payments from DHCS that are primarily due to
capitation payments received that do not reflect the current Medi-Cal expansion rates issued by DHCS.
DHCS is in process of recouping these overpayments as of June 30, 2018, and the remaining
overpayments not yet recouped is included as a Payable to the State of California on the consolidated
statement of net position. During the year ended June 30, 2018, DHCS recouped approximately
$636,927,000 related to dates of service of FY15 through FY17 for the Medi-Cal expansion population.
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Note 7 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan description — CalOptima’s defined benefit pension plan, Miscellaneous Plan of the Orange County
Health Authority (the “CalPERS Plan”), provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The CalPERS Plan is part of the
public agency portion of the California Public Employees Retirement Systems (CalPERS), an agent
multiple-employer plan administered by CalPERS, which acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating public employers within the state of California. A menu of benefit
provisions as well as other requirements is established by state statues within the Public Employees’
Retirement Law. CalOptima selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with
CalPERS and adopts those benefits through the Board of Directors’ approval. CalPERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
CalPERS. Copies of the report can be obtained from CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street,
Sacramento, CA 95814.

Benefits provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one full year of full time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members
are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the
following: The Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for the plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees'
Retirement Law.

The CalPERS Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018 are summarized as follows:

Hire Date Prior to January 1, 2013 On or after January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2 % at 60 2% at 62

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service

Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life

Retirement age 50 plus 52 plus

Monthly benefits as a % of eligible compensation 2.0%t02.7% 1.0% t02.5%

Required employee contribution rates 7.0% 7.3%

Required employer contribution rates 8.3% 8.3%

The following is a summary of plan participants:

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Active employees 1219 1097
Retirees and beneficiaries:

Receiving benefits 59 59
Deferred Retirement benefits:

Terminated employees 128 45

Surviving spouses 3 3

Beneficiaries 3 3
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Note 7 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan
contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees. The average active employee contribution rate is 7.25 percent and 6.82 percent of annual
pay for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The employer’s contribution rate is 8.50 percent and
8.65 percent of annual payroll for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

CalOptima’s net pension liability for the CalPERS Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 (the
measurement date), the total pension liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2016 total
pension liability. Total pension liabilities were based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions
as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, respectively:

Measurement Date June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return includes Inflation
Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS' Membership data for all funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increase Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

The underlying mortality table was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. Pre-retirement and Post-
retirement mortality rates include 5 years of projected mortality improvement using Scale AA published by
the Society of Actuaries. The post-retirement mortality rates above include 20 years of projected ongoing
mortality improvement using Scale BB published by the Society of Actuaries. All other actuarial
assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase mortality and retirement rates. The
Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS' website.
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Note 7 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability are as follows:

Balance at June 30, 2017
Changes during the year:
Service Cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected
and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions from the employer
Contributions from employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expenses

Net changes during the year

Balance at June 30, 2018

Balance at June 30, 2016
Changes during the year:
Service Cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected
and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions from the employer
Contributions from employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expenses

Net changes during the year

Balance at June 30, 2017

Increase (Decreases)

Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

$ 112,464,954 $ 97,034,191 15,430,763

13,118,795 - 13,118,795

9,136,725 - 9,136,725

632,642 - 632,642

9,163,547 - 9,163,547

- 5,234,582 (5,234,582)

- 5,793,911 (5,793,911)

- 11,496,425 (11,496,425)

(2,068,356) (2,068,356) -

- (143,264) 143,264

29,983,353 20,313,298 9,670,055

$ 142,448,307 $ 117,347,489 $ 25,100,818

Increase (Decreases)

Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

$ 96,499,544 $ 89,962,735 $ 6,536,809
10,272,406 - 10,272,406
7,702,198 - 7,702,198
102,384 - 102,384

- 3,787,544 (3,787,544)

- 4,951,820 (4,951,820)

- 498,498 (498,498)

(2,111,578) (2,111,578) -

- (54,828) 54,828

15,965,410 7,071,456 8,893,954

$ 112,464,954 $ 97,034,191 $ 15,430,763
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Note 7 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Discount rate and long term rate of return — The discount rate used to measure the total pension
liability was 7.15% for the CalPERS Plan. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used
in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely
result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the
testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is
adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected
discount rate of 7.15 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund
(PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover Testing
Report" that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows
were developed assuming that both members and employers will make the required contributions as
scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound
returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a
building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the
present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating
the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as
the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of
one percent.
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Note 7 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Real Real
Strategic Return Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 (a) Years 11+ (b)
Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% was used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% was used for this period

The following presents the net pension liability of the CalPERS Plan calculated using the discount rate, as

well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2018

Current
Discount Rate -1% Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%
6.15% 7.15% 8.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 50,320,307 $ 25,100,820 $ 4,838,677

June 30, 2017

Current
Discount Rate -1% Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%
6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 34,792,255 $ 15,430,763 $ (159,810)
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Note 7 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions — CalOptima
recognized pension expense of approximately $17,785,000 and $6,870,000 for the years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, CalOptima recognized deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

June 30, 2018
Contributions from employers
subsequent to the measurement date $ 393,907 $ -
Net differences between projected
and actual earnings on plan

investments 1,017,387 -
Changes in assumptions 7,795,853 1,028,380
Differences between expected
and actual experiences 1,365,903 -
$ 10,573,050 $ 1,028,380
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

June 30, 2017
Contributions from employers
subsequent to the measurement date $ 5,234,198 $ -
Net differences between projected
and actual earnings on plan

investments 5,270,171 -

Changes in assumptions - 1,340,010
Differences between expected

and actual experiences 1,072,771 -

$ 11,577,140 $ 1,340,010
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Note 7 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

The deferred outflows of resources related to employer contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability during the year ended June 30, 2018.
The net differences reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as
pension expense as follows:

Deferred

Years Ending June 30, Outflows of Resources
2018 $ 1,395,041
2019 2,790,181
2020 1,869,552
2021 602,512
2022 1,469,996
Thereafter 1,023,481

$ 9,150,763

Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans

Deferred compensation plan — CalOptima sponsors a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (the “457 Plan”) under which employees are
permitted to defer a portion of their annual salary until future years. CalOptima may make discretionary
contributions to the 457 Plan as determined by the Board of Directors. For the years ended June 30, 2018
and 2017, no discretionary employer contributions were made.

Defined contribution plan — Effective January 1, 1999, CalOptima established a supplemental
retirement plan for its employees called the CalOptima Public Agency Retirement System Defined
Contribution Supplemental Retirement Plan (“PARS Plan”). All regular and limited-term employees are
eligible to participate in the PARS Plan. The current PARS Plan design does not require employee
contributions. CalOptima makes discretionary employer contributions to the PARS Plan as authorized by
the CalOptima Board of Directors. Vesting occurs over 16 quarters of service. For the years ended June
30, 2018 and 2017, CalOptima contributed approximately $2,971,000 and $2,718,000, respectively.

Note 9 — Postemployment Health Care Plan
Plan description — CalOptima sponsors and administers a single-employer, defined benefit
postemployment health care plan (the “Plan”) to provide medical and dental insurance benefits to eligible

retired employees and their beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established and may be amended by the
CalOptima Board of Directors.
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Note 9 — Postemployment Health Care Plan (continued)

Effective January 1, 2004 CalOptima terminated postemployment health-care benefits for employees
hired on or after January 1, 2004. For employees hired prior to January 1, 2004, the employee’s eligibility
for retiree health benefits remains similar to the eligibility requirements for the defined benefit pension
plan.

During the year ended June 30, 2006, CalOptima modified the benefit offered to eligible participants,
requiring participants to enroll in Medicare and specifying that CalOptima would be responsible only for
the cost of Medicare supplemental coverage, subject to a cost sharing between the participant and
CalOptima.

For purposes of measuring the total postemployment retirement liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the CalOptima’s plan and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized
when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and
asset information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Measurement Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Period July 1, 2016 - June 30,2017
Valuation Date January 1, 2018

Covered Employees — At June 30, 2017, the measurement date, the following numbers of participants
were covered by the benefit terms:

Number of
Covered

Participants
Inactives currently receiving benefits 67
Inactives entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -
Active employees 81
Total 148
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Note 9 — Postemployment Health Care Plan (continued)

Contributions — The contribution requirements of Plan members and CalOptima are established and
may be amended by the CalOptima Board of Directors. CalOptima’s contribution is based on projected
pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with no additional amount to prefund benefits. CalOptima
contributed $560,000, including $529,000 in premium payments for retirees and $31,000 for implied
subsidies for the year ended June 30, 2018. CalOptima contributed $572,000, including $545,000 in
premium payments for retirees and $27,000 for implied subsidies for the year ended June 30, 2017. The
most recent actuarial report for the Plan was June 30, 2017. As of that point the actuarial accrued liability
and unfunded actuarial accrued liability for benefits were approximately $24,565,000.

Actuarial assumptions — CalOptima's total postemployment retirement liability was measured as of June
30, 2017 and the total postemployment retirement liability used to calculate the total postemployment
retirement liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2016 that was rolled forward
to determine the June 30, 2017 total postemployment retirement liability, based on the following actuarial
methods and assumptions:

Salary Increases 3% per annum, in aggregate

Medical Trend 2076
Medicare - 6.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076

Discount Rate 3.58% at June 30 2017, Bond Buyer 20 Index
2.85% at June 30 2016, Bond Buyer 20 Index

Mortality, Retirement, Disability, CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study
Termination Post-retirement mortality projection Scale MP-2017
General Inflation 2.75% per annum
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Note 9 — Postemployment Health-Care Plan (continued)

Discount Rate and Long Term Rate of Return - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB
liability was 3.58 percent for June 30, 2017. There were no plan investments as such the expected long-
term rate of return on investment is not applicable.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability - Changes in the net OPEB liability were as follows:

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 26,278,000

Changes for the year
Service cost 1,012,000
Interest 770,000
Benefit changes -
Actual vs. expected experience -
Assumption changes (2,923,000)
Contributions - employer -
Contributions - employee -
Net investment income -
Benefit payments (572,000)
Administrative Expenses -

Net changes (1,713,000)

Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 24,565,000

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the
net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.58%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.58%) than the current
discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
(2.58%) (3.58%) (4.58%)
Total OPEB Liability $ 28,695,000 $ 24,565,000 $ 21,240,000

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Health Care Cost Trend Rates - The following
presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
health care cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the
current health care cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase

Total OPEB Liability $ 20,842,000 $ 24,565,000 $ 29,287,000
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Note 9 — Postemployment Health-Care Plan (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, CalOptima recognized OPEB expense of approximately $1,751,000.
At June 30, 2018, the reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ -
Changes in assumptions - 2,301,000
Employer contributions made subsequent to measurement date 560,000 -
Total $ 560,000 $ 2,301,000

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized
in OPEB expense as follows:

Deferred

Outflows/(Inflows)
Year ending June 30, of Resources
2019 $ (622,000)
2020 (622,000)
2021 (622,000)
2022 (435,000
2023 -
Thereafter -

The required schedule of changes in total OPEB liability immediately following the notes to the
consolidated financial statements presents multiyear trend information about the actuarial accrued liability
for benefits.

Note 10 — Restricted Net Position

On June 28, 2000, CalOptima became a fully licensed health-care service plan under the Act, as required
by statues governing the Healthy Families program. Under the Act, CalOptima is required to maintain and
meet a minimum level of tangible net equity as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 of $89,037,443 and
$98,455,479, respectively. As of June 30, 2018, the Organization is in compliance with its TNE
requirement.

The Act further required the CalOptima maintain a restricted deposit in the amount of $300,000. Both
CalOptima and the Foundation meet the requirement as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.

49

Back to Agenda



Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 11 — Lease Commitments

CalOptima leases office space and equipment under noncancelable, long-term operating leases, with
minimum annual payments as follows:

Minimum Lease

Years Ending June 30, Payments
2019 $ 515,933
2020 531,411
2021 547,353
2022 277,721
$ 1,872,418

Rental expense under operating leases was approximately $469,000 and $472,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Note 12 — Contingencies

Litigation — CalOptima is party to various legal actions and is subject to various claims arising in the
ordinary course of business. Management believes that the disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on CalOptima’s financial position or results of operations.

Regulatory matters — The health-care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal,
state and local governments. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from
government health-care programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties.
Management believes that CalOptima is in compliance with fraud and abuse, as well as other applicable
government laws and regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
government review and interpretation as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.
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Note 13 — Consolidating Information

The consolidating assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net

position at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Capitation receivable from the State of California, net
Prepaid expenses and o her
Total current assets

BOARD-DESIGNATED ASSETS AND RESTRICTED CASH
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Restricted deposit

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net pension

Other postemployment benefit

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

ASSETS
CalOptima

CalOptima Foundation Eliminations Consolidated
$ 368,089,848 $ 2,843,139 $ 370,932,987
580,298,949 - 580,298,949
296,371,640 - 296,371,640
31,076,723 - 31,076,723
1,275,837,160 2,843,139 1,278,680,299
26,682,953 - 26,682,953
511,564,720 - 511,564,720
300,000 - 300,000
538,547,673 - 538,547,673
50,758,254 50,758,254
1,865,143,087 2,843,139 1,867,986,226

10,573,050
560,000

10,573,050
560,000

$ 1,876,276,137

$ 2,843,139

$ 1,879,119,276

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Medical claims liability and capitation payable
Medical claims liability
Provider capitation and withholds
Accrued reinsurance costs to providers

Payable to State of California and the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS)

Unearned revenue

Accounts payable and other
Accrued payroll and employee benefits and other
Total current liabilities

Postemployment heal h-care plan
Net pension liability
Other long term liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net pension
Other postemployment benefit

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted - required tangible net equity and restricted deposit
Unrestricted
Total net posi ion
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position

$ 263,057,437
96,448,891
3,464,488

567,116,026
112,557,008

$ 263,057,437
96,448,891
3,464,488

567,116,026
112,557,008

1,042,643,850

8,030,637
10,869,839

1,042,643,850

8,030,637
10,869,839

1,061,544,326

24,565,000
25,100,820
100,000
1,111,310,146

1,061,544,326

24,565,000
25,100,820
100,000
1,111,310,146

1,028,380 - 1,028,380
2,301,000 - 2,301,000
50,637,437 - 50,637,437
89,037,443 - 89,037,443
621,961,731 2,843,139 624,804,870
761,636,611 2,843,139 764,479,750

$ 1,876,276,137

$ 2,843,139

$ 1,879,119,276
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Note 13 — Consolidating Information (continued)

The consolidating assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net
position at June 30, 2017 (as restated) are as follows:

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Capita ion receivable from the State of California, net
Prepaid expenses and other
DUE FROM AFFILIATES
Total current assets

BOARD-DESIGNATED ASSETS AND RESTRICTED CASH
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Restricted deposit

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net pension
O her postemployment benefit

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Medical claims liability and capitation payable
Medical claims liability
Provider capitation and wi hholds
Accrued reinsurance costs to providers

Payable to State of California and the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS)

Unearned revenue

Accounts payable and o her
Accrued payroll and employee benefits and other
Due to affiliates

Total current liabilities

Postemployment health-care plan
Net pension liability
O her long term liabili ies

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net pension
O her postemployment benefit

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted - required tangible net equity and restricted deposit
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources

ASSETS
CalOptima

CalOptima Foundation Elimina ions Consolidated
$ 507,169,844 $ 2,893,139 $ - $ 510,062,983
1,082,425,753 - - 1,082,425,753
522,793,705 - - 522,793,705
26,384,678 - - 26,384,678
25,000 - (25,000) -
2,138,798,980 2,893,139 (25,000) 2,141,667,119
17,709,682 - - 17,709,682
517,428,691 - - 517,428,691
300,000 - - 300,000
535,438,373 - - 535,438,373
54,301,035 54,301,035
2,728,538,388 2,893,139 (25,000) 2,731,406,527
11,577,140 - - 11,577,140

$ 2,740,115,528 $ 2,893,139 $ (25,000) $ 2,742,983,667

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

$ 426,676,745 $ - $ - $ 426,676,745
580,839,710 - - 580,839,710
5,681,300 - - 5,681,300
845,888,193 - - 845,888,193
102,284,235 - - 102,284,235
1,961,370,183 - - 1,961,370,183
9,723,907 - - 9,723,907
10,101,233 - - 10,101,233

- 25,000 (25,000) -

1,981,195,323 25,000 (25,000) 1,981,195,323
26,278,000 - - 26,278,000
15,430,763 - - 15,430,763
100,000 - - 100,000
2,023,004,086 25,000 (25,000) 2,023,004,086
1,340,010 - - 1,340,010
54,103,912 - - 54,103,912
98,445,479 - - 98,445,479
563,222,041 2,868,139 - 566,090,180
715,771,432 2,868,139 - 718,639,571

$ 2,740,115,528 $ 2,893,139 $ (25,000) $ 2,742,983,667

and net position
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Note 13 — Consolidating Information (continued)

The consolidating statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the year ended
June 30, 2018 are as follows:

CalOptima
CalOptima Foundation Eliminations Consolidated
OPERATING REVENUES
Premium revenues $ 3,445,699,268 $ - $ - $ 3,445,699,268
Total operating revenues 3,445,699,268 - - 3,445,699,268
OPERATING EXPENSES
Medical expenses
Provider capitation 1,068,367,719 - - 1,068,367,719
Claim expense to providers and facilities 1,403,275,064 - - 1,403,275,064
Prescription drugs 442,312,644 - - 442,312,644
Other medical 42,215,978 - - 42,215,978
OneCare Connect 302,761,410 - - 302,761,410
OneCare 14,437,586 - - 14,437,586
Pace 18,341,424 - - 18,341,424
Total medical expenses 3,291,711,825 - - 3,291,711,825
Administrative expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 85,386,751 - - 85,386,751
Professional fees 2,430,578 - - 2,430,578
Purchased services 11,460,353 - - 11,460,353
Supplies, occupancy, insurance and other 25,045,349 25,000 - 25,070,349
Depreciation 7,499,203 - - 7,499,203
Total administrative expenses 131,822,234 25,000 - 131,847,234
Total operating expenses 3,423,534,059 25,000 - 3,423,559,059
Operating income (loss) 22,165,209 (25,000) - 22,140,209
NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Net investment income and other 21,714,051 - - 21,714,051
Rental income, net of related expenses 1,985,919 - - 1,985,919
Total non-operating revenues and expenses 23,699,970 - - 23,699,970
Increase in net position 45,865,179 (25,000) - 45,840,179
NET POSITION, beginning of year 715,771,432 2,868,139 - 718,639,571
NET POSITION, end of year $ 761,636,611 $ 2,843,139 $ - $ 764,479,750
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13 — Consolidating Information (continued)

The consolidating statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the year ended

June 30, 2017 (as restated) are as follows:

OPERATING REVENUES
Premium revenues
O her income

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Medical expenses
Provider capitation
Claim expense to providers and facilities
Prescription drugs
Other medical
OneCare Connect
OneCare
Pace

Total medical expenses
Administrative expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits
Professional fees
Purchased services
Supplies, occupancy, insurance and other
Depreciation
Total administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Net investment income and other
Rental income, net of related expenses
Total non-operating revenues and expenses
Increase in net posi ion

NET POSITION, beginning of year

NET POSITION, end of year
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CalOptima

CalOp ima Foundation Eliminations Consolidated
$ 3,549,461,873 $ - $ - $ 3,549,461,873
- 80,829 (53,665) 27,164
3,549,461,873 80,829 (53,665) 3,549,489,037
984,437,605 - - 984,437,605
1,561,399,095 - - 1,561,399,095
423,946,865 - - 423,946,865
49,429,921 - - 49,429,921
355,208,384 - - 355,208,384
16,424,252 - - 16,424,252
8,766,268 - - 8,766,268
3,399,612,390 - - 3,399,612,390
69,574,654 53,435 (53,435) 69,574,654
1,241,416 - - 1,241,416
11,278,918 - - 11,278,918
22,734,822 54,100 (230) 22,788,692
6,544,639 - - 6,544,639
111,374,449 107,535 (53,665) 111,428,319
3,510,986,839 107,535 (53,665) 3,511,040,709
38,475,034 (26,706) - 38,448,328
15,766,423 - - 15,766,423
1,957,766 - - 1,957,766
17,724,189 - - 17,724,189
56,199,223 (26,706) - 56,172,517
659,572,209 2,894,845 - 662,467,054
$ 715,771,432 $ 2,868,139 $ - $ 718,639,571
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated

Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13 — Consolidating Information (continued)

The consolidating statement of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Capitation payments received and other
Payment to providers and facilities
Payments to vendors
Payments of premium tax
Payments to employees

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received
Purchases of securities
Sales of securities
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

The consolidating statement of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Capitation payments received and other
Payments to providers and facilities
Payments to vendors
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED F NANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received
Purchases of securities
Sales of securities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

CalOptima

CalOptima Foundation Eliminations Consolidated
$ 3,403,621,939 $ - $ $ 3,403,621,939
(3,941,938,764) (3,941,938,764)
(45,296,595) (50,000) (45,346,595)
(74,227,628) - (74,227,628)
(657,841,048) (50,000) (657,891,048)
(3,956,422) - (3,956,422)
(3,956,422) - (3,956,422)
28,891,325 - 28,891,325
(12,243,048,906) - (12,243,048,906)
12,736,875,055 - 12,736,875,055
522,717,474 - 522,717,474
(139 079 996) (50 000) (139 129 996)
507,169,844 2,893,139 510,062,983
$ 368 089 848 $ 2843139 $ $ 370932 987

CalOptima

CalOptima Foundation Eliminations Consolidated
$ 3,417,266,654 $ 116,188 $ $ 3,417,382,842
(2,945,552,284) - (2,945,552,284)
(39,115,530) (64,459) (39,179,989)
(70,800,875) (53,435) (70,854,310)
361,797,965 (1,708) 361,796,259
(5,850,108) - (5,850,108)
(5,850,108) - (5,850,108)
11,823,120 - 11,823,120
(644,508,177) - (644,508,177)
527,913,163 - 527,913,163
(104,771,894) - (104,771,894)
251,175,963 (1,706) 251,174,257
255,993,883 2,894,845 258,888,728
$ 507,169,846 $ 2,893,139 $ $ 510,062,985
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/

dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost

Interest

Changes in Benefit Terms

Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience

Changes in Assumptions

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contr butions

Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contrbutions
Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending
Plan Net Pension Liability - Ending
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as
Percentage of the Total
Liability
Covered-Employee Payroll
Plan Net Pension Liability

as a Percentage of Covered
Employee Payroll

June 30,
2018 2017 2016 2015
13,118,795 $ 10,272,406 $ 8,363,183 6,464,105
9,136,725 7,702,198 6,620,025 5,661,111
9,163,547 102,384 1,444,808 -
632,642 - (1,963,270) -
(2,068,356) (2,111,578) (1,676,666) (1,326,364)
29,983,353 15,965,410 12,788,080 10,798,852
112,464,954 96,499,544 83,711,464 72,912,613
142,448,307 $ 112,464,954 $ 96,499,544 83,711,465
5,234,580 $ 3,787,544 $ 3,033,171 3,119,804
5,793,911 4,951,820 4,142,126 3,385,296
11,496,425 498,498 1,913,380 12,062,654
(2,068,356) (2,111,578) (1,676,666) (1,326,364)
(143,264) (54,828) (101,246) -
20,313,296 7,071,456 7,310,765 17,241,390
97,034,191 89,962,735 82,651,970 65,410,580
117,347,487 $ 97,034,191 $ 89,962,735 82,651,970
25,100,820 $ 15,430,763 $ 6,536,809 1,059,495
82.38% 86.28% 93.23% 98.73%
80,217,654 $ 68,583,296 $ 55,676,606 40,940,556
31.29% 22.50% 11.74% 2.59%

See accompanying report of independent auditors.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/
dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima

Schedule of Plan Contributions

Actuarially Determined
Contributions

Contributions in Relation
To the Actuarially
Determined Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage
of Covered-Employee Payroll

57

Years Ended June 30,

2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 5234580 $ 3,787,544 $ 3033171 $ 3,119,804
(5,234,580) (3,787,544) (3,033,171) (3,119,804)

$ $ - § - $
$ 80217654 $ 68,583,296 $ 55676606 $ 40,940,556
6.53% 5.52% 5.45% 7.62%

See accompanying report of independent auditors.
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Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/

dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

2017-2018
(Measurement

Changes in Total OPEB Liability Period 2016-2017)
Service cost $ 1,012,000
Interest 770,000
Benefit changes -
Actual vs. expected experience -
Assumption changes (2,923,000)
Benefit payments (572,000)
Net changes (1,713,000)
Total OPEB Liability (beginning of year) 26,278,000
Total OPEB Liability (end of year) $ 24,565,000
Total OPEB Liability $ 24,565,000
Covered employee payroll 9,135,000
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 268.9%

See accompanying report of independent auditors. 58
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2018 Audit Results:
CalOptima
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Audit Committee

CalOptima

Dear Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Thank you for your continued engagement of Moss
Adams LLP. We are pleased to have the opportunity to
meet with you to discuss the results of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements and federal program
compliance of CalOptima (“the Organization”) for the year
ended June 30, 2018.

The accompanying report, which is intended solely for the
use of the Board and management, presents important
information regarding the CalOptima’s consolidated
financial statements and our audit that we believe will be
of interest to you. It is not intended and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We receive the full support and assistance of the
Organization’s personnel. We are pleased to serve and be
associated with the Organization’s as its independent
public accountants and look forward to our continued
relationship.

We look forward to discussing our report or any other
matters of interest with you during this meeting.
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Agenda

» Auditor Opinions and Reports

» Communication with Those Charged
with Governance

e Other Information
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MOSSADAMS

Auditor Opinions & Reports

Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima
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Scope of Services

We have performed the following services for CalOptima

* Annual consolidated financial statement audit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018

We have also performed the following non-attest services:

» Assisted in the drafting the consolidated financial statements of CalOptima
* Preparation of the Form 990 for the Foundation

» Assisted in the completion of the auditee portion of the Data Collection Form
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Auditor Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Unmodified Opinion

» Consolidated financial statements are presented fairly and in
accordance with US GAAP
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Other Auditor Reports

GAGAS Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters

Report on Compliance with
Reguirements that could have a Direct
and Material Effect on Each Major
Federal Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance required by
the Uniform Guidance

No financial reporting findings reported
No compliance findings reported

No control findings reported
No compliance findings reported
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MOSSADAMS

Communication with Board

Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Our Responsibility

Our responsibility under US Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards.

To express our opinion on
whether the consolidated
financial statements
prepared by management
with your oversight are
fairly presented, in all
material respects, and in
accordance with U.S.
GAAP. However, our audit
does not relieve you or
management of your
responsibilities.

To perform an audit in
accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards
issued by the AICPA,
Government Auditing
Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the
United States, and design the
audit to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute,
assurance about whether the
consolidated financial
statements are free of
material misstatement.

To consider internal
control over financial
reporting as a basis for
designing audit
procedures but not for the
purpose of expressing an
opinion on its
effectiveness or to provide
assurance concerning
such internal control.
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To communicate findings
that, in our judgment, are
relevant to your
responsibilities in
overseeing the financial
reporting process.
However, we are not
required to design
procedures for the
purpose of identifying
other matters to
communicate to you.



COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Planned Scope & Timing of the Audit

OUR COMMENTS
It is the auditor’s responsibility to . o .
determine the overall audit The plan_ned scope and tlmln_g 01: the_ audit was
strategy and the audit plan, communicated to the CalOptima’s Finance and
including the nature, timing and Audit Committee at the audit entrance meeting on
extent of procedures necessary to May 17, 2018 and was included in the
eotniAMIeIsh s lapplepklate engagement letter for the year ended June 30,
audit evidence and to 2018

communicate with those charged
with governance and overview of
the planned scope and timing of

the audit.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Significant Accounting Policies & Unusual Transactions

OUR COMMENTS

 Management has the responsibility for selection and
use of appropriate accounting policies. The

The auditor should determine
that the audit committee is
informed about the initial

selection of and changes in significant accounting policies used by the
significant accounting policies or Organization are described in the footnotes to the
their application. The auditor consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
should also determine that the course of an audit, we review changes, if any, to
SHoalie] (5 e elioui e significant accounting policies or their application,

methods used to account for
significant unusual transactions
and the effect of significant

and the initial selection and implementation of new
policies. There were no changes to significant

accounting policies in accounting policies for the year ended June 30,
controversial or emerging areas 2018. CalOptima adopted GASB No. 75 effective July
for which there is a lack of 1, 2016. The impact of this is described in Note 3.
authoritative guidance or . :
EETEUG. « We believe management has selected and applied

significant accounting policies appropriately and
consistent with those of the prior year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Management Judgements & Accounting Estimates

The Board should be informed
about the process used by
management in formulating
particularly sensitive accounting
estimates and about the basis for
the auditor’s conclusions
regarding the reasonableness of
those estimates.

OUR COMMENTS

Management'’s judgements and accounting estimates
are based on knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future
events. We apply audit procedures to management’s
estimates to ascertain whether the estimates are
reasonable under the circumstances and do not
materially misstate the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant management estimates impacted the
consolidated financial statements including the
following: fair value of investments; fixed asset
lives; actuarially determined accruals for incurred
but not reports (IBNR) medical claims liabilities,
Non-IBNR liabilities; and pension, and other post-
employment liabilities.

We deem them to be reasonable.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Areas of Audit Emphasis

» Medical Claims Liability and Claims
Expense

» Capitation Revenue and Receivables

« Amounts due to the state of California
or DHCS

* Pension liability
» OPEB liability

Back to Agenda




COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Management Judgements & Accounting Estimates

OUR COMMENTS
Our views about the quantitative e Th . . . - .
L e disclosures in the consolidated financial
aspects of the entity’s significant . )
accounting policies, accounting statements are clear_and consistent. Cgrtaln
estimates, and financial statement financial statement disclosures are particularly
disclosures. sensitive because of their significance to financial

statements users. We call your attention to the
following notes:

* Note 2 — Summary of Significant accounting policies
* Note 4 — Cash and Investments

* Note 6 — Medical Claims Liability

* Note 7 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan

* Note 9 — Postemployment Health Care Plan
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Significant Audit Adjustments & Unadjusted Differences
Considered by Management to Be Immaterial

OUR COMMENTS

The Board should be informed of all « There were no corrected or uncorrected
significant audit adjustments arising from audit adjustments

the audit. Consideration should be given to
whether an adjustment is indicative of a
significant deficiency or a material weakness
in the CalOptima’s internal control over
financial reporting, or in its process for
reporting interim financial information, that
could cause future consolidated financial
statements to be materially misstated.

The Board should also be informed of
uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us
during the current engagement and
pertaining to the latest period presented that
were determined by management to be
immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Deficiencies in Internal Control

OUR COMMENTS
Any material weaknesses and )
significant deficiencies in the « Material weakness
design or operation of internal * None noted
control that came to the auditor’s
attention during the audit must be « Significant deficiencies

reported to the Board. « Nothing to communicate
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Potential Effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Any Significant Risks & Exposures

OUR COMMENTS
The Board should be adequately . . . . .
informed of the potential effect on CalOpUr_na IS SUbJeCF to potenthl Ie_gal )
financial statements of significant proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary
risks and exposures and course of business, which are disclosed in the
uncertainties that are disclosed in notes to the consolidated financial statements.
the consolidated financial
statements.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

OUR COMMENTS
The Board should be informed of . . : :
Y g oy o No significant difficulties were encountered during

encountered in dealing with our audit.

ITETELEETS GE ISR 10 10 « We are pleased to report that there were no

performance of the audit, including . )
disagreements with management, disagreements with management.

whether or not satisfactorily
resolved, about matters that
individually or in the aggregate
could be significant to the
CalOptima’s financial statements,
or the auditor’s report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Material Uncertainties Related to Events & Conditions/
Fraud & Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations

OUR COMMENTS

Any doubt regarding the entity's ability  No such matters came to our attention.

to continue, as a going concern, should

be communicated to the Board. « We have not become aware of any instances
Fraud involving senior management of fraud or noncompliance with laws and
and fraud (whether caused by senior regulations.

management or other employees) that
causes a material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements
should be communicated. We are also
required to communicate any
noncompliance with laws and
regulations involving senior
management that come to our attention,
unless clearly inconsequential.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Other Material Written Communications

OUR COMMENTS

The Board should be informed of « We have requested certain representations from

any significant difficulties

encountered in dealing with management that will be included in the
management related to the representation letter, which we will receive prior to
performance of the audit, issuance.

including disagreements with

management, whether or not « Other than the engagement letter, management
satisfactorily resolved, about representation letter, and communication to those
matters that individually or in the charged with governance, there have been no

aggregate could be significant to
the CalOptima’s consolidated
financial statements, or the
auditor’s report.

other significant communications.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Management’s Consultation with Other Accountants

OUR COMMENTS
In some cases, management may . e -
i P Sy We are not aware of any significant accounting or
and accounting matters. If auditing matters for which management consulted
management has consulted with other accountants.

other accountants about an
auditing and accounting matter
that involves application of an
accounting principle to the
CalOptima’s consolidated financial
statements or a determination of
the type of auditor's opinion that
may be expressed on those
statements, our professional
standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has
all the relevant facts.
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Devon Wiens, Partner
DeVon.Wiens@mossadams.com

(949) 221-4060

Aparna Venkateswaran, Senior Manager
Aparna.Venkateswaran@mossadams.com

(949) 517-9473
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CALOPTIMA FOUNDATION BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL

Action To Be Taken October 4, 2018
Meeting of the CalOptima Foundation Board of Directors

Report Item
6. Consider Accepting and Receiving and Filing the Fiscal Year 2018 CalOptima Foundation

Audited Financial Statements

Contact
Greg Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Action
Recommend accepting and receiving and filing the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018 CalOptima Foundation
audited financial statements as submitted by independent auditors Moss-Adams, LLP.

Background
Moss-Adams has been contracted to audit the financial statements of the CalOptima Foundation since

May 21, 2015 and has prepared a FY 2018 Audit Plan. The plan included performing the mandatory
annual consolidated financial statement audit, and the drafting of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ending June 30, 2018.

Discussion
Moss-Adams performed the interim audit from May 21, 2018 through May 25, 2018, and the year-end on-
site audit from July 23, 2018, through August 17, 2018.

Results from the CalOptima Foundation's FY 2018 Audit were positive. The auditor made no changes in
the Foundation's approach to applying the critical accounting policies and did not report having encountered
any significant difficulties during the audit. Additionally, there were no material misstatements identified
by the auditor. As such, Management recommends that the Foundation Board to accept the CalOptima
Foundation FY 2018 audited financial statements as presented.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact related to this recommended action.

Concurrence
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel
CalOptima Foundation Audit Committee

Attachments
1. FY 2018 CalOptima Foundation Audited Financial Statements
2. Presentation by Moss Adams, LLP

/s/ Michael Schrader 9/26/2018
Authorized Signature Date
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS AND
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CalOptima Foundation
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Introduction

CalOptima Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a not-for-profit organization and foundation established by
Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima (“CalOptima”) in June 2010. It was formed for the benefit of
CalOptima members and others in the Orange County community. One of the primary objectives for the
Foundation is to take advantage of health related programs and funding opportunities that are not
available to governmental entities. Other planned activities are focused on addressing unmet community
needs and increasing provider capacity.

The following discussion and analysis of the Foundation’s financial statements presents an overview of
the financial position and activities as of June 30, 2018 and 2017. This discussion has been prepared by
management and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements and related
notes.

Using the Financial Statements

The Foundation’s annual report contains three financial statements: the statement of net position, the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and the statement of cash flows. The
report was prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. These statements provide information on the
Foundation as a whole and present the Foundation’s financial position and results of operations. In the
opinion of management, the financial statements represent accurately the financial situation of the
Foundation as of June 30, 2018 and 2017. The various components of the financial statements document
financial position of the Foundation and its ability to meet its financial obligations as they come due.

Financial Highlights

The Foundation was formed in June 2010. The total assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2018 and 2017
were $2,843,139 and $2,893,139, respectively.

CalOptima’s senior management continue to investigate potential future grant making and program
development opportunities that would improve the overall health of CalOptima’s members.
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CalOptima Foundation
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Statements of Net Position

The statements of net position are point-in-time financial statements. The purpose of these statements is
to present a fiscal snapshot of the Foundation to the readers of the financial statements at June 30, 2018
and 2017. The statements of net position include year-end information concerning current and noncurrent
assets, current and noncurrent liabilities, and net position (assets less liabilities). Current assets and
liabilities include other assets and obligations that can reasonably expect to be sold, collected, consumed
or paid within 12 months of the date of the statement. The statements also present the available assets
that can be used to satisfy those liabilities.

The following table summarizes the Foundation’s assets, liabilities and net position as of June 30, 2018
and June 30, 2017:

2018 2017
Current assets $ 2,843,139 $ 2,893,139
Total assets $ 2,843,139 $ 2,893,139
Current liabilities $ - $ 25,000
Net position 2,843,139 2,868,139
Total liabilities and net position $ 2,843,139 $ 2,893,139

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Changes in net position as presented on the statements of net position are based on the activity
presented in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The purpose of the
statements is to present the revenue earned by the Foundation, both operating and nonoperating, and the
expenses incurred by the Foundation, both operating and nonoperating, and any other revenues,
expenses, gains and losses earned or incurred by the Foundation.

The following table summarizes the Foundation’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the
years ended June 30:

2018 2017 2016
Revenues:
Operating revenues
Grant revenue $ - $ 27,164 $ 304,593
Contributions - 53,665 348,730
Total revenues - 80,829 653,323
Operating expenses 25,000 107,535 665,082
Change in net position (25,000) (26,706) (11,759)
Net position:
Beginning 2,868,139 2,894,845 2,906,604
Ending $ 2,843,139 $ 2,868,139 $ 2,894,845
2
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CalOptima Foundation
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (continued)

Operating revenues — For the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, operating revenues totaled
$0, $80,829, and $653,323, respectively. The revenues are from HITECH grant activities and
contributions from CalOptima. CalOptima provided $0, $53,665, and $348,730, respectively, of staff
services that are recognized as non-exchange transactions for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017, and
2016.

Operating expenses — For the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, operating expenses totaled
$25,000, $107,535, and $665,082, respectively. The expenses from the HITECH grant activities include
staff services, miscellaneous supplies, and travel.

Economic Factors That May Affect the Future

In 2010, the Foundation was awarded the HITECH grant with projected total revenues in excess of $6.6
million over four years. As of June 30, 2018, the Foundation did not receive any funding as a part of the
HITECH grant, with finalization of remaining funding completed early in fiscal 2017.

Requests for Information

This financial report has been prepared in the spirit of full disclosure to provide the reader with an
overview of CalOptima Foundation’s operations. If the reader has questions or would like additional
information about CalOptima Foundation, please direct the request to CalOptima Foundation, 505 City
Parkway West, Orange, CA 92868 or call 714.347.3237.
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@ MOSSADAMS

Report of Indepen_c_l_en_tA-ud‘i't'o'ré N

The Board of Diféctors
CalOptima Foundation

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statemerits of 'riet position of CalOptima Foundation (the
“Foundation”), a _c_ompon-ent'u'riit of the Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/dba Orange
Prevention and Treatment Integrated Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima, as of June 30, 2018 and

2017 and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows -~ o

for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the c_o_n_s_olidated financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Foundation’s ba_s_ic_finan-cial' statements.

Management’s Responsibility.for the Financial Statements

Management is 'rédensibIe for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to. the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. -

Auditor’s Respo_nsibility' e

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We L
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained_i_n_Govern'rhéht Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the_U.nited-State"s'.'Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures- -+~ o

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,-inclUdihg the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of. -
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the-overall presentatlon
of the financial statements. -

We believe that the audit evidence we 'h'a'v'é.obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

B Ck.tO.A._e.n.d_a. .



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Foundation as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 1 through 3 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Poasr Hbloonar LLF

Irvine, California
September 21, 2018
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CalOptima Foundation
Statements of Net Position

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable to CalOptima
Total liabilities

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes.

June 30,
2018 2017
2,843,139 $ 2,893,139
2,843,139 $ 2,893,139
- $ 25,000
- 25,000
2,843,139 2,868,139
2,843,139 $ 2,893,139
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CalOptima Foundation
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended June 30,

2018 2017
OPERATING REVENUES
Grant revenue $ - $ 27,164
Total operating revenues - 27,164
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits - 53,435
Supplies and other 25,000 54,100
Total operating expenses 25,000 107,535
Operating loss (25,000) (80,371)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Contributions - 53,665
Total nonoperating revenues - 53,665
Change in net position (25,000) (26,706)
NET POSITION
Beginning 2,868,139 2,894,845
Ending $ 2,843,139 $ 2,868,139
7 See accompanying notes.
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CalOptima Foundation
Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Grant payments and contributions received

Payments to vendors
Payments to employees

Net cash used in operating activities

Net change in cash

Cash
Beginning

Ending

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH

USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss
Contributions

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

used in operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities
Grant receivables
Accounts payable
Payable to CalOptima

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes.

Years Ended June 30,

2018 2017
- $ 62,523

(50,000) (64,459)

- 230

(50,000) (1,706)
(50,000) (1,706)
2,893,139 2,894,845
2,843,139 $ 2,893,139
(25,0000 $ (80,371)

- 53,665

- 35,359
- (35,298)

(25,000) 24,939
(50,000) $ (1,706)
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CalOptima Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 — Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations — CalOptima Foundation (the Foundation) is a nonprofit organization formed in
June 2010 in the state of California. The operations of the Foundation include, but are not limited to,
applying for and administering grants dedicated to the betterment of public health-care services. The
Foundation is organized and operated exclusively to benefit Orange County Health Authority, a Public
Agency/dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated Medical Assistance/dba CalOptima
(“CalOptima”) program needs.

Reporting entity — The Foundation has no component units, but is a component unit of CalOptima
because the Foundation’s governing body is the same as the governing body of CalOptima. The financial
statements present only the Foundation, and do not purport to, and do not present, the financial position
of CalOptima as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, or the changes in its financial position, or its cash flows for
the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis of accounting — The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared using the
economic resource management focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when earned, and expenses and liabilities are recognized when incurred.

The Foundation considers grant revenues earned as operating revenue. Expenses associated with
managing the grant and the Foundation are considered operating expenses. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Net position — Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position is
reported as restricted if there are limitations imposed on their use. When an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available, the Foundation first
applies restricted resources. The Foundation had no restricted net position at June 30, 2018 or 2017.

Revenue recognition — Grant revenue and contributions are recorded as earned over the period covered
in accordance with the grant provisions.

Income tax status — The Internal Revenue Service has recognized the Foundation as exempt from
federal and state income tax on related income under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
The Foundation is not classified as a private foundation. The Foundation has reviewed its tax positions for
all open tax years and has concluded that no liabilities exist as of June 30, 2018 and 2017. The
Foundation files tax returns with the U.S. federal and the State of California jurisdictions.

Note 2 — Cash and Custodial Credit Risk
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, all cash deposits held with financial institutions were insured by the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and through securities pledged by the financial institutions held in
an individual collateral pool by a depository regulated under California state law.
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CalOptima Foundation
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3 — Related-Party Transactions

CalOptima provides certain services for the benefit of the Foundation at no charge. The cost of the
services provided by CalOptima is reported as in-kind income and expenses by the Foundation. These
services include, but are not limited to: staff compensation, travel, equipment and supplies. Total
contributions from CalOptima were $0 and $53,655 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation had recorded payables to CalOptima of $0
and $25,000, respectively.

Note 4 — Grant Revenue

The Foundation was awarded a four-year HITECH grant on September 26, 2010, plus a one-year post-
award amendment effective until September 26, 2015. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the
Foundation received an additional one-year post-award amendment, which extended the award to
September 26, 2016. This grant is for the Foundation to assist Orange County health-care providers with
adopting and implementing electronic health records. The Foundation is responsible for enrolling 1,000
providers as well as project management of multiple phases of demonstrating meaningful use. Grant
income is recognized when qualifying expenditures have been incurred and upon achievement of other
criteria. Recipients of the HITECH grant are required to meet a 10 percent match in proportion to the
expenditures of the federal share of the total project costs. CalOptima provides this match through in-kind
contributions. The funds from the HITECH grant were fully expended during the year ended June 30,
2017.

10
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2018 Audit Results:
CalOptima Foundation
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Audit Committee

Dear Foundation Board of Directors (the”’Board):

Thank you for your continued engagement of Moss
Adams LLP. We are pleased to have the opportunity to
meet with you to discuss the results of our audit of the
financial statements of CalOptima Foundation (“the
Foundation”) for the year ended June 30, 2018.

The accompanying report, which is intended solely for the
use of the Board and management, presents important
information regarding the Foundation’s financial
statements and our audit that we believe will be of interest
to you. It is not intended and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

We receive the full support and assistance of the
Foundation’s personnel. We are pleased to serve and be
associated with the Foundation as its independent public
accountants and look forward to our continued
relationship.

We look forward to discussing our report or any other
matters of interest with you during this meeting.
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Agenda

 Auditor Opinion and Report

» Communication with Those Charged
with Governance

e Other Information
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MOSSADAMS L

Auditor Opinion & Report

Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Foundation
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Scope of Services

We have performed the following services for CalOptima Foundation:

* Annual financial statement audit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018

We have also performed the following non-attest services:

» Assisted in the drafting the consolidated financial statements of the Foundation

* Preparation of the Form 990 for the Foundation

Back to Agenda



Auditor Report on the Financial
Statements

Unmodified Opinion

* Financial statements are presented fairly and in accordance
with US GAAP

Back to Agenda




@ MOSSADAMS

Communication with the Board

Better Together: Moss Adams & CalOptima Foundation
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COMMUNICATION WITH FAC

Our Responsibility

Our responsibility under US Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

A

To express our opinion on
whether the financial
statements prepared by
management with your
oversight are fairly
presented, in all material
respects, and in
accordance with U.S.
GAAP. However, our audit
does not relieve you or
management of your
responsibilities.

To perform an audit in
accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards
issued by the AICPA, and
design the audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance about
whether the financial
statements are free of
material misstatement.

To consider internal
control over financial
reporting as a basis for
designing audit
procedures but not for the
purpose of expressing an
opinion on its
effectiveness or to provide
assurance concerning
such internal control.

Back to Agenda

To communicate findings
that, in our judgment, are
relevant to your
responsibilities in
overseeing the financial
reporting process.
However, we are not
required to design
procedures for the
purpose of identifying
other matters to
communicate to you.



COMMUNICATION WITH THE BOARD

Planned Scope & Timing of the Audit

OUR COMMENTS
It is the auditor’s responsibility to « The planned sco nd timina of th dit
determine the overall audit P _ pe a ml g_ of the audit was
strategy and the audit plan, communicated to the Foundation’s FAC at the
including the nature, timing and audit entrance meeting on May 17, 2018.

extent of procedures necessary to
obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence and to
communicate with those charged
with governance and overview of
the planned scope and timing of
the audit.
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COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Significant Accounting Policies & Unusual Transactions

The auditor should determine
that the Board is informed about
the initial selection of and
changes in significant accounting
policies or their application. The
auditor should also determine
that the Board is informed about
the methods used to account for
significant unusual transactions
and the effect of significant
accounting policies in
controversial or emerging areas
for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or
consensus.

OUR COMMENTS

Management has the responsibility for selection and
use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the
Foundation are described in the footnotes to the
financial statements. Throughout the course of an
audit, we review changes, if any, to significant
accounting policies or their application, and the initial
selection and implementation of new policies. There
are no changes to significant accounting policies for
the year ended June 30, 2018.

We believe management has selected and applied
significant accounting policies appropriately and
consistent with those of the prior year.

Back to Agenda



COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Management Judgements & Accounting Estimates

OUR COMMENTS
The Board should be informed « Management’s judgements and accounting estimates
about the process used by are based on knowledge and experience about past
management in formulating . b ¢
particularly sensitive accounting and current events an_d assumptions about future
estimates and about the basis for events. We apply audit procedures to management’s
the auditor’s conclusions estimates to ascertain whether the estimates are
CEBRLE LY T Eplsielel 2l 053 e reasonable under the circumstances and do not

those estimates. : . : i
materially misstate the financial statements.

* No significant estimates noted.
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COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Areas of Audit Emphasis

e Cash
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COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Management Judgements & Accounting Estimates

OUR COMMENTS
OIS LT U5 GUEUIET « The disclosures in the financial statements are
aspects of the entity’s significant ) o )
accounting policies, accounting cI_ear and consistent. Certain flna_trjmal statement
estimates, and financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of
disclosures. their significance to financial statements users.

We call your attention to the following notes:

* Note 1 — Nature of operations, Reporting Entity and
Significant Accounting Policies

Back to Agenda



COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Significant Audit Adjustments & Unadjusted Differences
Considered by Management to Be Immaterial

OUR COMMENTS
The Board should be informed of all There were no corrected or uncorrected audit
significant audit adjustments arising from adjustments

the audit. Consideration should be given to
whether an adjustment is indicative of a
significant deficiency or a material weakness
in the Foundation’s internal control over
financial reporting, or in its process for
reporting interim financial information, that
could cause future financial statements to be
materially misstated.

The Board should also be informed of
uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us
during the current engagement and
pertaining to the latest period presented that
were determined by management to be
immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements as a
whole.
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COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Deficiencies in Internal Control

OUR COMMENTS
Any material weaknesses and )
significant deficiencies in the « Material weakness
design or operation of internal * None noted
control that came to the auditor’s
attention during the audit must be « Significant deficiencies

reported to the Board. « Nothing to communicate

Back to Agenda



COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Potential Effect on the Financial Statements of Any
Significant Risks & Exposures

OUR COMMENTS
The Board should be adequately . . : :
g oy a1 | 1 The Fou_ndatlon IS Sl_iject to pqten_tlal legal |
financial statements of significant proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary
risks and exposures and course of business, which are disclosed in the

uncertainties that are disclosed in

rtaint notes to the financial statements.
the financial statements.
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COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

OUR COMMENTS
The Board should be informed of . . : :
Y g oy o No significant difficulties were encountered during

encountered in dealing with our audit.

ITETELEETS GE ISR 10 10 « We are pleased to report that there were no

performance of the audit, including . )
disagreements with management, disagreements with management.

whether or not satisfactorily
resolved, about matters that
individually or in the aggregate
could be significant to the
Foundation’s financial statements,
or the auditor’s report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Material Uncertainties Related to Events & Conditions/
Fraud & Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations

OUR COMMENTS

Any doubt regarding the entity's ability  No such matters came to our attention.

to continue, as a going concern, should

be communicated to the Board. « We have not become aware of any instances
Fraud involving senior management of fraud or noncompliance with laws and
and fraud (whether caused by senior regulations.

management or other employees) that
causes a material misstatement of the
financial statements should be
communicated. We are also required to
communicate any noncompliance with
laws and regulations involving senior
management that come to our attention,
unless clearly inconsequential.
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COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Other Material Written Communications

OUR COMMENTS
Z:; :gﬁ:ﬁ sziuéﬁﬁ?fu'l?ifssrmed of » We have requested certain representations from
encountered in dealing with management that will be included in the
management related to the representation letter, which we will receive prior to
performance of the audit, issuance.
including disagreements with
management, whether or not « Other than the engagement letter, management
satisfactorily resolved, about representation letter, and communication to those
matters that individually or in the charged with governance, there have been no

aggregate could be significant to
the Foundation’s financial
statements, or the auditor’s report.

other significant communications.
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COMMUNICATION WITH BOARD

Management’s Consultation with Other Accountants

OUR COMMENTS
In some cases, management may . e -
i P Sy We are not aware of any significant accounting or
and accounting matters. If auditing matters for which management consulted
management has consulted with other accountants.

other accountants about an
auditing and accounting matter
that involves application of an
accounting principle to the
Foundation’s financial statements
or a determination of the type of
auditor's opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant
facts.
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DeVon Wiens, Partner
Devon.Wiens@mossadmas.com
(949) 221-4060

Aparna Venkateswaran, Senior Manager
Aparna.Venkateswarn@mossadams.com

(949) 517-9473
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CALOPTIMA BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL

Action To Be Taken October 4, 2018
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Report Item
7. Consider Revisions and Development of CalOptima Financial Policies and Procedures Related

to the Whole-Child Model Program and Annual Policy Review

Contact
Greg Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Actions
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to revise and develop new Medi-Cal financial policies
and procedures in conjunction with the Whole-Child Model (WCM) program:

1. FF.1007: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage;

2. FF.1009: Health-based Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment System;

3. FF.1010: Shared Risk Pool; and

4. FF.4000: Whole-Child Model — Financial Reimbursement for Capitated Health Networks.

Background
CalOptima has established an annual policy review process by which policies and procedures are

updated and subject to peer review. In addition to this annual review, CalOptima revises and develops
policies and procedures, as needed, to implement new programs, or comply with federal and state law
and regulations, contracts, and business practices.

Effective January 1, 2019, CalOptima will integrate California Children’s Services (CCS) into its
Medi-Cal managed care plan through the Whole-Child Model (WCM) program. At its June 7, 2018,
meeting, the CalOptima Board of Directors (Board) authorized the execution of an Amendment to the
Primary Agreement between the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and
CalOptima with respect to implementation of the WCM program. Primary guidance is outlined in
Senate Bill 586, signed by Governor Brown on September 25, 2016 and the state All Plan Letter (APL)
18-011 released on June 28, 2018. In addition, DHCS has provided additional reporting requirements
and implementation deliverables.

To meet the requirements of the WCM program by January 1, 2019, CalOptima will allow members
receiving CCS services to remain enrolled either in CalOptima’s Community Network or in a
contracted health network. CalOptima will delegate CCS services to health networks according to
their current health network models. The three health network models include Health Maintenance
Organization (HMO), Physician-Hospital Consortium (PHC), or Shared-Risk Group (SRG).

Discussion
At its August 2, 2018, the Board approved actions related to the WCM provider payment methodology.
The following provides additional information on the revised and developed policies:

1. FF.1007: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage addresses CalOptima’s reinsurance coverage
for health networks, excluding any Health Maintenance Organizations (HMOs) that are
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CalOptima Board Action Agenda Referral

Consider Revisions and Development of CalOptima Financial Policies and
Procedures Related to the Whole-Child Model Program and Annual
Policy Review

Page 2

financially at risk for catastrophic claims. During the annual policy review process, staff
revised the policy to exclude claims for members eligible for CCS.

2. FF.1009: Health-based Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment System outlines the process for
CalOptima’s health-based risk adjusted capitation payment system. Effective January 1, 2019,
members who are eligible for services under the CCS program will not qualify for risk
adjustment under this policy. During the annual policy review, staff revised the policy to
update the definitions section and to ensure current operational procedures are aligned with the
upcoming policy change.

3. FF.1010: Shared Risk Pool outlines the process for CalOptima’s administration of the Shared
Risk Pool with a Shared Risk Group. Staff revised the policy to exclude amounts for health
network assigned members who are eligible for services under the CCS program.

4. FF.4000: Whole-Child Model — Financial Reimbursement for Capitated Health Networks
establishes the reimbursement process for CalOptima to distribute WCM payments timely and
accurately to health networks. This new policy describes the methodology to calculate and
adjust WCM payments, defines the measurement period for WCM payments, describes the
types of payments for each measurement period, and gives payment distribution timelines.

Fiscal Impact
The recommended action to revise and develop new Medi-Cal policies and procedures in conjunction

with the WCM program is a budgeted item, with no anticipated additional fiscal impact. Management

has included projected medical and administrative expenses associated with the WCM program and the
annual policy reviews in the CalOptima Fiscal Year 2018-19 Operating Budget approved by the Board
on June 7, 2018.

Rationale for Recommendation
The recommended action will ensure CalOptima’s policies and procedures are established to comply
with state requirements for the WCM program.

Concurrence
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel

Attachments

1. FF.1007: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage

2. FF.1009: Health-based Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment System

3. FF.1010: Shared Risk Pool

4. FF.4000: Whole-Child Model — Financial Reimbursement for Capitated Members

5. Board Action dated August 2, 2018, Consider Actions Related to CalOptima’s Medi-Cal Whole-

Child Model Program Provider Payment Methodology
6. DHCS All Plan Letter 18-011 California Children’s Services Whole Child Model Program

/s/ Michael Schrader 9/26/2018
Authorized Signature Date
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. Policy #: FF.1007—2017-2018
Medi-Cal Title: Health Network Reinsurance

[VJ‘ Calo pti Mma Department: &?ﬁﬁge

A Public Agency Section: Not Applicable

Better. Together.

CEO Approval: Michael Schrader

Effective Date: 07/01/10
Last Review Date:  6#09/0106/1#18
Last Revised Date: ©#09/6106/1#18

PURPOSE

This policy sets forth CalOptima’s reinsurance coverage for Health Networks, excluding any Health
Maintenance Organizations (HMOs) that are financially at-risk for catastrophic claims.

POLICY

A. CalOptima shall provide reinsurance coverage to its eligible Health Networks, in accordance with
this policy.

B. Effective January 1, 2019, claims for services to Members eligible for California Children’s
Services (CCS) Program shall be excluded from this policy.

B-C.  The coverage period for this policy is each CalOptima fiscal year beginning $2:6412:00 a.m.
Pacific Standard Time (PST};) July 12047 through 42:00-a-m-11:59 p.m. PST; June 30-2018.

G.D.  Reinsurance coverage applies to claims incurred within the coverage period, and paid by the
eligible Health Network no later than six (6) months after the end of the coverage period.

B-E. _ An eligible Health Network shall submit reinsurance claims to CalOptima no later than
December 312618 following the end of the previous fiscal year to be eligible for reimbursement:

1. Aneligible HMO may submit reinsurance claims for covered hospital and covered physician
expenses;

2. A Primary Physician Group may submit reinsurance claims for covered physician expenses;
3. A Primary Hospital may submit reinsurance claims for covered hospital expenses; and
4. A Shared Risk Group (SRG) may submit reinsurance claims for covered physician expenses.

E-F.  CalOptima shall identify reinsurance claims and payment of benefits for hospital expenses for
Members assigned to an SRG, in accordance with CalOptima Policy FF.1010: Shared Risk Pool.

EG.  Covered expenses include those Covered Services that are delegated to an eligible Health
Network, and Shared Risk services, as defined in the Division of Financial Responsibility (DOFR)
between CalOptima and the eligible Health Network, except those services listed in Section 11.GH
of this policy.

Page 1 of 9
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Policy #: FF.1007-2017-2018
Title: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage Revised Date:

6+09/6106/4718

1. Covered hospital expenses are either:

a.

Those Covered Services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and a Primary Hospital in
the Contract for Health Care Services — Hospital; or

Those Covered Services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and an eligible HMO in
the Contract for Health Care Services; or

Shared Risk services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and a Shared Risk Group in
the Contract for Health Care Services — Physician (Shared Risk).

2. Covered physician expenses are either:

a.

Those Covered Services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and a Primary Physician
Group in the Contract for Health Care Services — Physician; or

Those Covered Services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and an eligible HMO in
the Contract for Health Care Services; or

Shared Risk services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and a Shared Risk Group in
the Contract for Health Care Services — Physician (Shared Risk).

G:H.  Covered expenses exclude Capitation Payments, and any other non-Covered Service, exclusion,

or Covered Service that is not a Shared Risk service that is the financial responsibility of
CalOptima. This includes covered Transplant services, and Health Network Transplant claims
denied for payment due to administrative reasons (e.g., timeliness).

H:l.Covered expenses are subject to the following limitations:

1. Hospital services:

a.

For contracted hospital inpatient services, the lesser of the amount paid for covered hospital
expenses, the negotiated rate, billed charges, or the Contracted CalOptima Direct (COD)
Hospital Rate, averaged over the entire length of stay or stays.

For non-contracted hospital inpatient services, the lesser of the amount paid for covered
hospital expenses, the negotiated rate, billed charges, or the non-contracted COD hospital
rate, averaged over the entire length of stay or stays.

i.  For non-contracted emergency hospital inpatient services, the lesser of the amount
paid for covered hospital expenses, the negotiated rate, or billed charges, averaged
over the entire length of stay or stays, up to the amount specified for non-contracted
emergency hospital inpatient services in CalOptima Policy FF.1003: Payment for
Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima Direct, or a Member Enrolled
in a Shared Risk Group.

ii.  For non-contracted post-stabilization inpatient services, up to the amount specified for
non-contracted post-stabilization inpatient services, in accordance with CalOptima
Policy FF.1003: Payment for Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima
Direct, or a Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group; and Policy FF.2001: Claims
Processing for Covered Services Rendered to CalOptima Direct-Administrative
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Members, CalOptima Community Network Members, or Members Enrolled in a
Shared Risk Group.

For non-contracted out-of-state emergency hospital inpatient services, the lesser of
the amount paid for covered hospital expenses, the negotiated rate, or billed charges,
averaged over the entire length of stay or stays, up to the All Patient Refined
Diagnosis-Related Groups (APR-DRG) paid by Medi-Cal Fee-For-Service for out-of-
State hospital inpatient services.

All calculations shall be made prior to the application of Deductible or coinsurance.
CalOptima shall accept a completed UB-04 form as proof of payment for capitated hospital
services. A hospital shall not include any loss for home health services or outpatient
services, or for days of confinement in an extended care facility or rehabilitation facility.

2. Physician services:

a.

The lesser of the amount paid for covered physician expenses or:

One hundred twenty-nine percent (129%) of the current CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee
Schedule in effect on the date of service; or

Fifty percent (50%) of the amount paid if Medi-Cal has no value for the five-digit
numerical Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) code, Healthcare Common
Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) code, or other code as assigned by the
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).

b. The above calculation shall be made prior to the application of Deductible or coinsurance.
CalOptima shall accept a completed CMS-1500 form as proof of payment for capitated
physician services.

3. Hemodialysis services: Limited to one thousand dollars ($1,000) per calendar day.

4. Chemotherapy drugs and related services: Limited to one thousand dollars ($1,000) per calendar
day.

5. In the absence of other limitations, CalOptima shall calculate covered expenses by summing all
hospital or physician covered expenses per Member per coverage period, as applicable by
Section I1.BE of this policy, subject to the annual Deductible.

1J. Annual Deductibles are as follows:

1. Hospital Deductible:

a.

One hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) of covered hospital expenses per Member
during the coverage period.

Subject to the terms of this policy, CalOptima shall reimburse eighty percent (80%) of the
expenses after a Deductible of one hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) is applied.

2. Physician Deductible:
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a. Seventeen thousand dollars ($17,000) of covered physician expenses per Member during
the coverage period.

b. Subject to the terms of this policy, CalOptima shall reimburse eighty percent (80%) of the
expenses after a Deductible of seventeen thousand dollars ($17,000) is applied.

+K.The maximum reinsurance amount payable under this policy for covered expenses for a Member is
calculated on the basis of one million dollars ($1,000,000) of coverage per Member per coverage
period, minus the applicable annual Deductible and coinsurance, and subject to any limitations
noted in this policy.

1. PROCEDURE

A. Process to submit reinsurance claims for covered expenses, except hospital expenses for a Member
assigned to a Shared Risk Group:

1. An eligible Health Network shall submit reinsurance claims on a quarterly basis, no later than
the twentieth (20™) calendar day of the month following the end of a quarter.

2. An eligible Health Network shall submit reinsurance claims using CalOptima’s proprietary
format and file naming convention, as described in the Reinsurance Field Names and Values for
Electronic File Transmission. An eligible Health Network may submit the reinsurance claims
file by transmitting an encrypted electronic mail to reinsurance@caloptima.org, submitting
electronically to CalOptima’s secure FTP site, or by mailing an encrypted Universal Serial Bus
(USB) flash drive, compact disk (CD) or Digital Versatile Disc (DVD) to:

Attention: Coding Initiatives Department—Reinsurance Claims
CalOptima

505 City Parkway West

Orange, CA 92868

3. Reinsurance claims shall include:
a. Claims paid by an eligible Health Network during that quarter only; or
b. Claims detail for qualified Members who reached the annual Deductible.

4. Upon request, an eligible Health Network shall provide detailed support, within ten (10)
business days, for any individual claim for which billed charges are greater than, or equal to, ten
thousand dollars ($10,000), including copies of the claim form, cancelled check, explanation of
benefits (EOB), Remittance Advice Detail (RAD), and other information, as requested by
CalOptima. All non-contracted emergency hospital inpatient claims require submission of the
authorization distinguishing days considered emergency and post-stabilization.

5. CalOptima shall notify an eligible Health Network of file acceptance or rejection within ten (10)
business days after receipt.

a. CalOptima may reject a file for any missing information or incorrect data.

b. If CalOptima rejects a file, the eligible Health Network shall resubmit a corrected file
within five (5) business days from receipt of notification from CalOptima.

Page 4 of 9
Back to Agenda



©Ooo~No ok, wWwN R

Policy #:
Title:

FF.1007—2047-2018

Health Network Reinsurance Coverage Revised Date:

6+09/6106/4718

V.

6. CalOptima shall provide an eligible Health Network with detailed reports of claims processed
within forty-five (45) business days after the quarter end submission date.

7. An eligible Health Network may appeal claim denials and underpayments within sixty (60)
business days after the date of CalOptima’s RAD.

a.

The eligible Health Network shall submit a request for appeal, in writing, to CalOptima at
reinsurance@caloptima.org or by U.S. mail to:

Attention: Coding Initiatives Department—Reinsurance Claims
CalOptima

505 City Parkway West

Orange, CA 92868

The eligible Health Network shall submit the appeals claims submission file in the same
format as the initial claims submission, in accordance with the Reinsurance Field Names
and Values for Electronic File Transmission.

An appeals claims submission file shall only include specific claims to be reconsidered.
The eligible Health Network shall provide detailed claims support for each claim, including
copies of the claim form, cancelled check, EOB, RAD, or any other information, as
requested by CalOptima.

CalOptima shall notify the eligible Health Network of file acceptance or rejection within ten
(10) business days after receipt of the appeal file.

i. CalOptima may reject a file for any missing information or incorrect data.

ii. If CalOptima rejects a file, the eligible Health Network shall resubmit a corrected file
within five (5) business days after receipt of notification from CalOptima.

CalOptima shall process an appeal and provide an eligible Health Network with detailed
reports within forty-five (45) business days after receipt of the appeal.

B. If aloss exceeds, or is expected to exceed, the annual Deductible by ten thousand dollars ($10,000),
CalOptima may appoint CalOptima staff to represent CalOptima’s interest in the ongoing
administration of the loss. An eligible Health Network shall cooperate with CalOptima staff in the
ongoing administration of the loss.

C. Inthe event of termination of the Contract for Health Care Services between an eligible Health
Network and CalOptima, the coverage period shall end three (3) months after the termination date.
A terminated eligible Health Network shall submit reinsurance claims no later than six (6) months
after the termination date in order to receive reimbursement.

D. An eligible Health Network shall make books and records available to CalOptima for inspection and
audit at any time during normal business hours in accordance with the Contract for Health Care
Services.

ATTACHMENTS
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VI.

VII.

VIII.

A. Reinsurance Field Names and Values for Electronic File Transmission
REFERENCES

A. Contract for Health Care Services

B. CalOptima Policy FF.1003: Payment for Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima

Direct or a Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group

CalOptima Policy FF.1007_2016-2017-2018: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage

CalOptima Policy FF.1010: Shared Risk Pool

CalOptima Policy FF.2001: Claims Processing for Covered Services Rendered to CalOptima

Direct-Administrative Members, CalOptima Community Network Members or Members Enrolled

in a Shared Risk Group

CalOptima Policy FF.3001: Financial Reporting

Title 42, United States Code, Section 1396u-2(b)(2)(D)

This policy supersedes:

1. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #7: Policy FF.1101: Excess Risk Liability Program

2. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #32: Revisions to FF.1200: Health Network Reinsurance
Coverage

3. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #34: Revisions to FF.1200: Health Network Reinsurance
Coverage

4. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #35: Health Network Reinsurance Program for SPD over Age 45

mo O

Tom

REGULATORY AGENCY APPROVALS

A. 08/06/15: Department of Health Care Services
B. 12/10/10: Department of Health Care Services

BOARD ACTIONS

A. 09/06/18: Reqular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

AB. 06/01/17: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors Regular-CalOptima
. .

B.C.  10/01/09: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors Regular-CalOptima
. .

S.D. 09/17/09: Special Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors’ Finance Committee

B:E.  09/04/08: RegRegular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors war-CalOptima

e
E—09/11/07: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors Regular-CalOptima-Board-of
. >
EF.__
=
REVIEW/REVISION HISTORY

Version Version Date | Policy Number Policy Title Line(s) of Business

Effective | 07/01/2010 FF.1007_2009-2010 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage

Revised 07/01/2011 FF.1007_2010-2011 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage
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IX. GLOSSARY
Term Definition

California Children’s Services

The public health program that assures the delivery of specialized

(CCS) Program

diagnostic, treatment, and therapy services to financially and
medically eligible persons under the age of twenty-one (21) years
who have CCS-Eligible Conditions, as defined in Title 22,
California Code of Requlations (CCR), Sections 41515.2 through
41518.9.

California Children’s Services

Chronic medical conditions, including but not limited to, cystic

(CCS) Eligible Condition

fibrosis, hemophilia, cerebral palsy, heart disease, cancer,
traumatic injuries and infectious disease producing major sequelae.

CalOptima Direct

A direct health care program operated by CalOptima that includes
both COD-Administrative (COD-A) and CalOptima Community
Network (CCN) and provides services to Members who meet
certain eligibility criteria as described in Policy DD.2006:
Enrollment in/Eligibility with CalOptima Direct.

Contract for Health Care
Services

The written instrument between CalOptima and Physicians,
Hospitals, Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO), or other
entities. Contract shall include any Memoranda of Understanding
entered into by CalOptima that is binding on a Physician Hospital
Consortium (PHC) or HMO, DHCS Medi-Cal Managed Care
Division Policy Letters, Contract Interpretation, and Financial
Bulletins issued pursuant to the Contract.

Covered Services

Those services provided in the Fee-For-Service Medi-Cal program,
as set forth in Title 22, CCR, Division 3, Subdivision 1, Chapter 3,
beginning with Section 51301, and Title 17, CCR, Chapter 4,
Subchapter 13, Article 4, beginning with Section 6840, which are
included as Covered Services under CalOptima’s Contract with
DHCS and are Medically Necessary, along with chiropractic
services (as defined in Section 51308 of Title 22, CCR), podiatry
services (as defined in Section 51310 of Title 22, CCR), and
speech pathology services and audiology services (as defined in
Section 51309 of Title 22, CCR), which shall be covered for
Members not withstanding whether such benefits are provided
under the Fee-For-Service Medi-Cal program.

Deductible

For purposes of this policy, the amount set forth in Section I11.1 of
this policy, which the eligible Health Network must pay in eligible
expenses on behalf of a Member during the coverage period,
before CalOptima is responsible for reimbursing the eligible
Health Network eighty percent (80%) of eligible expenses for that
Member.

Division of Financial
Responsibility (DOFR)

A matrix that identifies how CalOptima identifies the responsible
parties for components of medical associated with the provision of
Covered Services. The responsible parties include, but are not
limited to, Physician, Hospital, CalOptima and the County of
Orange.

Health Maintenance
Organization (HMO)

A health care service plan, as defined in the Knox-Keene Health
Care Service Plan Act of 1975, as amended, commencing with
Section 1340 of the California Health and Safety Code.
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Term Definition

Health Network

A Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC), physician group under a
shared risk contract, or health care service plan, such as a Health
Maintenance Organization (HMO) that contracts with CalOptima
to provide Covered Services to Members assigned to that Health
Network.

Member

A Medi-Cal eligible beneficiary as determined by the County of
Orange Social Services Agency, the California Department of
Health Care Services (DHCS) Medi-Cal Program, or the United
States Social Security Administration, who is enrolled in the
CalOptima program.

Primary Hospital

A hospital contracted with CalOptima on a capitated and delegated
basis as the hospital partner of a Physician Hospital Consortium
(PHC).

Primary Physician Group

A physician group contracted with CalOptima on a capitated and
delegated basis as the physician partner of a Physician Hospital
Consortium (PHC).

Shared Risk Group

A Health Network that accepts delegated clinical and financial
responsibility for professional services for assigned Members, as
defined by written contract and enters into a risk sharing
agreement with CalOptima as the responsible partner for facility
services.
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. Policy #: FF.1007
Medi-Cal Title: Health Network Reinsurance

[VJ Calo pti Mma Department: Emﬁge

A Public Agency

Better. Together. Section: Not Applicable

CEO Approval: Michael Schrader
Effective Date: 07/01/10

Last Review Date:  09/06/18
Last Revised Date: 09/06/18

PURPOSE

This policy sets forth CalOptima’s reinsurance coverage for Health Networks, excluding any Health
Maintenance Organizations (HMOs) that are financially at-risk for catastrophic claims.

POLICY

A

CalOptima shall provide reinsurance coverage to its eligible Health Networks, in accordance with
this policy.

Effective January 1, 2019, claims for services to Members eligible for California Children’s
Services (CCS) Program shall be excluded from this policy.

The coverage period for this policy is each CalOptima fiscal year beginning 12:00 a.m. Pacific
Standard Time (PST) July 1 through 11:59 p.m. PST June 30.

Reinsurance coverage applies to claims incurred within the coverage period, and paid by the eligible
Health Network no later than six (6) months after the end of the coverage period.

An eligible Health Network shall submit reinsurance claims to CalOptima no later than December
31 following the end of the previous fiscal year to be eligible for reimbursement:

1. Aneligible HMO may submit reinsurance claims for covered hospital and covered physician
expenses;

2. A Primary Physician Group may submit reinsurance claims for covered physician expenses;
3. A Primary Hospital may submit reinsurance claims for covered hospital expenses; and
4. A Shared Risk Group (SRG) may submit reinsurance claims for covered physician expenses.

CalOptima shall identify reinsurance claims and payment of benefits for hospital expenses for
Members assigned to an SRG, in accordance with CalOptima Policy FF.1010: Shared Risk Pool.

Covered expenses include those Covered Services that are delegated to an eligible Health Network,
and Shared Risk services, as defined in the Division of Financial Responsibility (DOFR) between
CalOptima and the eligible Health Network, except those services listed in Section I1.H of this

policy.
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1. Covered hospital expenses are either:

a.

Those Covered Services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and a Primary Hospital in
the Contract for Health Care Services — Hospital; or

Those Covered Services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and an eligible HMO in
the Contract for Health Care Services; or

Shared Risk services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and a Shared Risk Group in
the Contract for Health Care Services — Physician (Shared Risk).

2. Covered physician expenses are either:

a.

Those Covered Services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and a Primary Physician
Group in the Contract for Health Care Services — Physician; or

Those Covered Services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and an eligible HMO in
the Contract for Health Care Services; or

Shared Risk services listed in the DOFR between CalOptima and a Shared Risk Group in
the Contract for Health Care Services — Physician (Shared Risk).

H. Covered expenses exclude Capitation Payments, and any other non-Covered Service, exclusion, or
Covered Service that is not a Shared Risk service that is the financial responsibility of CalOptima.
This includes covered Transplant services, and Health Network Transplant claims denied for
payment due to administrative reasons (e.g., timeliness).

I. Covered expenses are subject to the following limitations:

1. Hospital services:

a.

For contracted hospital inpatient services, the lesser of the amount paid for covered hospital
expenses, the negotiated rate, billed charges, or the Contracted CalOptima Direct (COD)
Hospital Rate, averaged over the entire length of stay or stays.

For non-contracted hospital inpatient services, the lesser of the amount paid for covered
hospital expenses, the negotiated rate, billed charges, or the non-contracted COD hospital
rate, averaged over the entire length of stay or stays.

i.  For non-contracted emergency hospital inpatient services, the lesser of the amount
paid for covered hospital expenses, the negotiated rate, or billed charges, averaged
over the entire length of stay or stays, up to the amount specified for non-contracted
emergency hospital inpatient services in CalOptima Policy FF.1003: Payment for
Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima Direct, or a Member Enrolled
in a Shared Risk Group.

ii.  For non-contracted post-stabilization inpatient services, up to the amount specified for
non-contracted post-stabilization inpatient services, in accordance with CalOptima
Policy FF.1003: Payment for Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima
Direct, or a Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group; and Policy FF.2001: Claims
Processing for Covered Services Rendered to CalOptima Direct-Administrative
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Members, CalOptima Community Network Members, or Members Enrolled in a
Shared Risk Group.

For non-contracted out-of-state emergency hospital inpatient services, the lesser of
the amount paid for covered hospital expenses, the negotiated rate, or billed charges,
averaged over the entire length of stay or stays, up to the All Patient Refined
Diagnosis-Related Groups (APR-DRG) paid by Medi-Cal Fee-For-Service for out-of-
State hospital inpatient services.

All calculations shall be made prior to the application of Deductible or coinsurance.
CalOptima shall accept a completed UB-04 form as proof of payment for capitated hospital
services. A hospital shall not include any loss for home health services or outpatient
services, or for days of confinement in an extended care facility or rehabilitation facility.

2. Physician services:

a.

The lesser of the amount paid for covered physician expenses or:

One hundred twenty-nine percent (129%) of the current CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee
Schedule in effect on the date of service; or

Fifty percent (50%) of the amount paid if Medi-Cal has no value for the five-digit
numerical Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) code, Healthcare Common
Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) code, or other code as assigned by the
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).

b. The above calculation shall be made prior to the application of Deductible or coinsurance.
CalOptima shall accept a completed CMS-1500 form as proof of payment for capitated
physician services.

3. Hemodialysis services: Limited to one thousand dollars ($1,000) per calendar day.

4. Chemotherapy drugs and related services: Limited to one thousand dollars ($1,000) per calendar
day.

5. In the absence of other limitations, CalOptima shall calculate covered expenses by summing all
hospital or physician covered expenses per Member per coverage period, as applicable by
Section I1.E of this policy, subject to the annual Deductible.

J. Annual Deductibles are as follows:

1. Hospital Deductible:

a.

One hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) of covered hospital expenses per Member
during the coverage period.

Subject to the terms of this policy, CalOptima shall reimburse eighty percent (80%) of the
expenses after a Deductible of one hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) is applied.

2. Physician Deductible:
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a. Seventeen thousand dollars ($17,000) of covered physician expenses per Member during
the coverage period.

b. Subject to the terms of this policy, CalOptima shall reimburse eighty percent (80%) of the
expenses after a Deductible of seventeen thousand dollars ($17,000) is applied.

K. The maximum reinsurance amount payable under this policy for covered expenses for a Member is
calculated on the basis of one million dollars ($1,000,000) of coverage per Member per coverage
period, minus the applicable annual Deductible and coinsurance, and subject to any limitations
noted in this policy.

1. PROCEDURE

A. Process to submit reinsurance claims for covered expenses, except hospital expenses for a Member
assigned to a Shared Risk Group:

1. Aneligible Health Network shall submit reinsurance claims on a quarterly basis, no later than
the twentieth (20™) calendar day of the month following the end of a quarter.

2. An eligible Health Network shall submit reinsurance claims using CalOptima’s proprietary
format and file naming convention, as described in the Reinsurance Field Names and Values for
Electronic File Transmission. An eligible Health Network may submit the reinsurance claims
file by transmitting an encrypted electronic mail to reinsurance@caloptima.org, submitting
electronically to CalOptima’s secure FTP site, or by mailing an encrypted Universal Serial Bus
(USB) flash drive, compact disk (CD) or Digital Versatile Disc (DVD) to:

Attention: Coding Initiatives Department—Reinsurance Claims
CalOptima

505 City Parkway West

Orange, CA 92868

3. Reinsurance claims shall include:

a. Claims paid by an eligible Health Network during that quarter only; or
b. Claims detail for qualified Members who reached the annual Deductible.

4. Upon request, an eligible Health Network shall provide detailed support, within ten (10)
business days, for any individual claim for which billed charges are greater than, or equal to, ten
thousand dollars ($10,000), including copies of the claim form, cancelled check, explanation of
benefits (EOB), Remittance Advice Detail (RAD), and other information, as requested by
CalOptima. All non-contracted emergency hospital inpatient claims require submission of the
authorization distinguishing days considered emergency and post-stabilization.

5. CalOptima shall notify an eligible Health Network of file acceptance or rejection within ten (10)
business days after receipt.

a. CalOptima may reject a file for any missing information or incorrect data.

b. If CalOptima rejects a file, the eligible Health Network shall resubmit a corrected file
within five (5) business days from receipt of notification from CalOptima.
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6. CalOptima shall provide an eligible Health Network with detailed reports of claims processed
within forty-five (45) business days after the quarter end submission date.

7. An eligible Health Network may appeal claim denials and underpayments within sixty (60)
business days after the date of CalOptima’s RAD.

a.

The eligible Health Network shall submit a request for appeal, in writing, to CalOptima at
reinsurance@caloptima.org or by U.S. mail to:

Attention: Coding Initiatives Department—Reinsurance Claims
CalOptima

505 City Parkway West

Orange, CA 92868

The eligible Health Network shall submit the appeals claims submission file in the same
format as the initial claims submission, in accordance with the Reinsurance Field Names
and Values for Electronic File Transmission.

An appeals claims submission file shall only include specific claims to be reconsidered.
The eligible Health Network shall provide detailed claims support for each claim, including
copies of the claim form, cancelled check, EOB, RAD, or any other information, as
requested by CalOptima.

CalOptima shall notify the eligible Health Network of file acceptance or rejection within ten
(10) business days after receipt of the appeal file.

i. CalOptima may reject a file for any missing information or incorrect data.

ii. If CalOptima rejects a file, the eligible Health Network shall resubmit a corrected file
within five (5) business days after receipt of notification from CalOptima.

CalOptima shall process an appeal and provide an eligible Health Network with detailed
reports within forty-five (45) business days after receipt of the appeal.

B. If aloss exceeds, or is expected to exceed, the annual Deductible by ten thousand dollars ($10,000),
CalOptima may appoint CalOptima staff to represent CalOptima’s interest in the ongoing
administration of the loss. An eligible Health Network shall cooperate with CalOptima staff in the
ongoing administration of the loss.

C. Inthe event of termination of the Contract for Health Care Services between an eligible Health
Network and CalOptima, the coverage period shall end three (3) months after the termination date.
A terminated eligible Health Network shall submit reinsurance claims no later than six (6) months
after the termination date in order to receive reimbursement.

D. An eligible Health Network shall make books and records available to CalOptima for inspection and
audit at any time during normal business hours in accordance with the Contract for Health Care
Services.

V. ATTACHMENTS

A. Reinsurance Field Names and Values for Electronic File Transmission
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V. REFERENCES

VI.

VII.

VIII.

A. Contract for Health Care Services
B. CalOptima Policy FF.1003: Payment for Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima
Direct or a Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group

moo

CalOptima Policy FF.1007_2017-2018: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage
CalOptima Policy FF.1010: Shared Risk Pool
CalOptima Policy FF.2001: Claims Processing for Covered Services Rendered to CalOptima

Direct-Administrative Members, CalOptima Community Network Members or Members Enrolled
in a Shared Risk Group

Tom

CalOptima Policy FF.3001: Financial Reporting
Title 42, United States Code, Section 1396u-2(b)(2)(D)
This policy supersedes:

1. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #7: Policy FF.1101: Excess Risk Liability Program

2. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #32: Revisions to FF.1200: Health Network Reinsurance
Coverage

3. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #34: Revisions to FF.1200: Health Network Reinsurance
Coverage

4. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #35: Health Network Reinsurance Program for SPD over Age 45

REGULATORY AGENCY APPROVALS

A. 08/06/15:
B. 12/10/10:

Department of Health Care Services
Department of Health Care Services

BOARD ACTIONS

TMUO P

09/06/18:
06/01/17:
10/01/09:
09/17/09:
09/04/08:
09/11/07:

Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Special Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors’ Finance Committee
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

REVIEW/REVISION HISTORY

Version Version Date | Policy Number Policy Title Line(s) of Business

Effective | 07/01/2010 FF.1007_2009-2010 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage

Revised 07/01/2011 FF.1007_2010-2011 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage

Revised 03/01/2012 FF.1007_2011-2012 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage

Revised 10/01/2012 FF.1007_2012-2013 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage

Revised 12/01/2013 FF.1007_2013-2014 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage

Revised 04/01/2015 FF.1007_2014-2015 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage
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Policy #:  FF.1007

Title: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage Revised Date: 09/06/18
Version Version Date | Policy Number Policy Title Line(s) of Business
Revised 02/01/2016 FF.1007_2015-2016 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage
Revised 07/01/2016 FF.1007_2016-2017 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage
Revised 07/01/2017 FF.1007_2017-2018 | Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage
Revised 09/06/2018 FF.1007 Health Network Medi-Cal
Reinsurance Coverage
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Policy #:  FF.1007
Title: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage Revised Date: 09/06/18
IX. GLOSSARY
Term Definition

California Children’s Services
(CCS) Program

The public health program that assures the delivery of specialized
diagnostic, treatment, and therapy services to financially and
medically eligible persons under the age of twenty-one (21) years
who have CCS-Eligible Conditions, as defined in Title 22,
California Code of Regulations (CCR), Sections 41515.2 through
41518.9.

California Children’s Services
(CCS) Eligible Condition

Chronic medical conditions, including but not limited to, cystic
fibrosis, hemophilia, cerebral palsy, heart disease, cancer,
traumatic injuries and infectious disease producing major sequelae.

CalOptima Direct

A direct health care program operated by CalOptima that includes
both COD-Administrative (COD-A) and CalOptima Community
Network (CCN) and provides services to Members who meet
certain eligibility criteria as described in Policy DD.2006:
Enrollment in/Eligibility with CalOptima Direct.

Contract for Health Care
Services

The written instrument between CalOptima and Physicians,
Hospitals, Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO), or other
entities. Contract shall include any Memoranda of Understanding
entered into by CalOptima that is binding on a Physician Hospital
Consortium (PHC) or HMO, DHCS Medi-Cal Managed Care
Division Policy Letters, Contract Interpretation, and Financial
Bulletins issued pursuant to the Contract.

Covered Services

Those services provided in the Fee-For-Service Medi-Cal program,
as set forth in Title 22, CCR, Division 3, Subdivision 1, Chapter 3,
beginning with Section 51301, and Title 17, CCR, Chapter 4,
Subchapter 13, Article 4, beginning with Section 6840, which are
included as Covered Services under CalOptima’s Contract with
DHCS and are Medically Necessary, along with chiropractic
services (as defined in Section 51308 of Title 22, CCR), podiatry
services (as defined in Section 51310 of Title 22, CCR), and
speech pathology services and audiology services (as defined in
Section 51309 of Title 22, CCR), which shall be covered for
Members not withstanding whether such benefits are provided
under the Fee-For-Service Medi-Cal program.

Deductible

For purposes of this policy, the amount set forth in Section I11.1 of
this policy, which the eligible Health Network must pay in eligible
expenses on behalf of a Member during the coverage period,
before CalOptima is responsible for reimbursing the eligible
Health Network eighty percent (80%) of eligible expenses for that
Member.

Division of Financial
Responsibility (DOFR)

A matrix that identifies how CalOptima identifies the responsible
parties for components of medical associated with the provision of
Covered Services. The responsible parties include, but are not
limited to, Physician, Hospital, CalOptima and the County of
Orange.

Health Maintenance
Organization (HMO)

A health care service plan, as defined in the Knox-Keene Health
Care Service Plan Act of 1975, as amended, commencing with
Section 1340 of the California Health and Safety Code.

Page 8 of 9
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Policy #:  FF.1007
Title: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage Revised Date: 09/06/18
Term Definition

Health Network

A Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC), physician group under a
shared risk contract, or health care service plan, such as a Health
Maintenance Organization (HMO) that contracts with CalOptima
to provide Covered Services to Members assigned to that Health
Network.

Member

A Medi-Cal eligible beneficiary as determined by the County of
Orange Social Services Agency, the California Department of
Health Care Services (DHCS) Medi-Cal Program, or the United
States Social Security Administration, who is enrolled in the
CalOptima program.

Primary Hospital

A hospital contracted with CalOptima on a capitated and delegated
basis as the hospital partner of a Physician Hospital Consortium
(PHC).

Primary Physician Group

A physician group contracted with CalOptima on a capitated and
delegated basis as the physician partner of a Physician Hospital
Consortium (PHC).

Shared Risk Group

A Health Network that accepts delegated clinical and financial
responsibility for professional services for assigned Members, as
defined by written contract and enters into a risk sharing
agreement with CalOptima as the responsible partner for facility
services.

Page 9 of 9
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Reinsurance Field Names and Values for Electronic File Transmission
Accepted Format: Access or Excel (Excel is preferred)
Field Names Descriptions Data Type Field Length | Example Entry |Notes
It's either HMO or PHC and 3 digits for health network.
HNNumber Health Network Numbers |Alpha Numeric 6 PHCO053 For example, PHCO053
MemberID CIN Number Text 9 99999999D
MemberName Member Names Text Up to 50 Jane Doe
DOB Date of Birth Date (mm/dd/yy) 05/01/62
ClaimNo Claim Number Alpha Numeric Upto 25 2005042899903140
ClaimType Claim Type Text Upto 25 Professional Professional
IP Hospital Inpatient
OP Hospital Outpatient
ProviderID Provider License/NPI Alpha Numeric 12 XXXX01250
ProviderName Provider Name Text Up to 50 XXXXX, MD
TIN Tax ldenfification Number Text Upto 15 123456789
Specific Date of service must be entered not DOS range
FrDOS From Date of service Date (mm/dd/yy) 1/1/2006 to avoid any denials due to duplication of service.
Specific Date of service must be entered not DOS range
ToDOS To Date of Service Date (mm/dd/yy) 1/31/2006 to avoid any denials due to duplication of service.
POS Place of Service Text 2 21
Procedurecode Procedure codes Alpha Numeric 5 80053
Modifier Modifier Alpha Numeric 2 26 26
RevenueCode Revenue codes Alpha Numeric 3 270 270
Dx Diagnosis Codes Alpha Numeric 310 13 70715 No period or dot in between diagnosis code
For Anesthesia procedure, enter converted total number
of units (Anesthesia Units plus modifier units plus time
Units_Days Units or Days Numeric Numeric 10 units).
BilledAmt Billed Amount Currency Currency $0.00
PaidAmt Paid Amount Currency Currency $0.00
CheckNumber Check Number Alpha Numeric Upto 10 1234567899
CheckDate Check Date Date (mm/dd/yy) mm/dd/yy
CAP_Ind Capitated Indicator Text 1 Y or N
CAPAMt Capitated Amount Currency $0.00
Quarter Quarter Text 6 Q12006 This is the quarter when the file is submitted.
Must submit separate file per claim type (Professional and
FileName Naming convention Text 8 53PRQ106 Hospital claims) (See "File Naming Convention" below).
New field added to identify adjustment to original claim to
Adjustment ind Adjustment indicator Text 1 YorN avoid any denials due to duplicate service.

Back tolAgenda




Reinsurance Field Names and Values for Electronic File Transmission

Accepted Format: Access or Excel (Excel is preferred)

Field Names Descriptions Data Type Field Length Example Entry |Notes
Only applies to appeal and must include reason for the
Appeal Reason Appeal Reason Text Up to 250 appeal.
File Naming Convention Value
13 Character Length
First 2 character is designated for HN number 53

Third character is the file type

P = professional, H =

Hospital

Fourth character is the program/incentive

R = Reinsurance

Fifth to Eight character is designated as the Quarter file subm

ission

Q312

Last 5 characters are designated for the Policy Year as in "Fiscal Year"

2012

For example: UCMG professional file for Fiscal Year 2012

67PRQ412_2012

Note: please rename file with prefix "1_FINRPT " if submitting into FTP site

1 FINPRT 67PRQ412 2012

Back topAgenda
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. Policy #: FF.1009
Medi-Cal Title: Health--Bbased Risk Adjusted

.
1 Capitation Payment System
[VJ Calo ptl m a Department: Finance

A Public Agency Section: Not Applicable

Better. Together.
CEO Approval: Michael Schrader
Effective Date: 07/01/08

Last Review Date:  95/01/1709/06/18
Last Revised Date: 95/01/1709/06/18

PURPOSE

This policy outlines the process for CalOptima’s Health-based Risk Adjusted (HRA) Capitation Payment
system.

POLICY
A. CalOptima shall adjust a Health Network’s Capitation Payment to a Health-based Risk Adjusted
(HRA) Capitation Payment based on the health status of the Health Network’s Member population,

in accordance with the terms and conditions of this policy.

B. CalOptima shall utilize the Chronic Illness and Disability Payment System (CDPS) to adjust a
Health Network’s Capitation Payment to an HRA Capitation Payment.

C. Effective January 1, 2019, Members who are eligible for services under the California Children’s
Services (CCS) Program shall not qualify for risk adjustment under this Policy.

G.D.  CalOptima shall risk-adjust a payment for a Member who:
1. Has an Aged, Blind, Disabled, or Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Aid Code;

2. Isenrolled in CalOptima for at least six (6) months during a twelve (12) month risk adjustment
period as described in Section 111.B of this policy; and

3. Isenrolled in a Health Network during the periods described in Section 111.C of this policy.

B:E.  CalOptima shall develop a Risk Assignment Database to contain medical and diagnostic data for
Members eligible for risk-adjustment pursuant to Section 11.BC of this policy. CalOptima shall
utilize the data in the Risk Assignment Database to determine a Member’s Risk Score in accordance
with Section 111.B of this policy.

E-F.  CalOptima shall calculate a Health Network’s risk factor every six (6) months.

FG.  CalOptima shall apply a Health Network’s risk factor in determining the Health Network’s
Capitation Payment for the following six (6) month Payment Period.

PROCEDURE

A. Risk Assignment Database

Back to Agenda
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Policy #:
Title:

FF.1009
Health--Bbased Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment Revised Date: 05/01/1709/06/18

1. The Risk Assignment Database shall contain information including, but not limited to:

a. Member identification number;
b. Aid Code;

c. Diagnosis code; and

d. Procedure codes.

CalOptima shall extract information for the Risk Assignment Database from the following
service categories:

a. Inpatient services;
b. Outpatient services; and

c. Physician services.

B. Calculation of Member’s Risk Score

1. CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall utilize the Risk Assignment Database to assign a

Member a Risk Score using CDPS and a Health Network’s capitation age and gender factors. A
Health Network’s capitation age and gender factors are adjustments that take into account a
Health Network’s membership’s age and gender mix.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall calculate a Member’s Risk Score every six (6) months,
in April and October.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall calculate a Member’s Risk Score based on Encounter
and claims data submitted for dates of service over a twelve (12) month risk adjustment period.

a. For the Risk Score calculated in April (“year 3”), CalOptima shall use Encounter data
submitted from a Health Network by March 20 (“year 3”) for dates of service December
(“year 1”) through November (*year 27).

b. For the Risk Score calculated in October (“year 3”), CalOptima shall use Encounter data
submitted from a Health Network by September 20 (“year 3”) for dates of service June
(“year 2”) through May (“year 37).

If a Member is eligible with CalOptima for less than six (6) months during a risk adjustment
period, CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall not calculate a Risk Score for that Member.

C. Calculation of Health Network Risk Factor

1. A Health Network’s raw risk factor is the weighted average of all Risk Scores for Members

assigned to that Health Network at a defined time.

2. CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall apply actuarial methodologies to derive statistically

significant risk factors for each Health Network.

Bafkge 2afénda
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Policy #:

Title:

FF.1009
Health--Bbased Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment

Revised Date: 05/01/1709/06/18

VI.

3. CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall calculate a Health Network’s risk factor every six (6)

months, in April and October.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall calculate the average Risk Score for Members assigned
to that Health Network.

a. For the risk factor calculated in April, CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall use a Health
Network’s assigned membership as of April.

b. For the risk factor calculated in October, CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall use a
Health Network’s assigned membership as of October.

c. CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall only use Risk Scores for Members who are eligible
as of the months described in subsections I11.C.4.a and 111.C.4.b of this section, to calculate a
Health Networks’ risk factor.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall normalize the average risk factor for each Health
Network based on eligible Members in accordance with Section Il1. C.4 of this policy, to ensure
that the aggregate total Capitation Payments to all Health Networks remains budget neutral to
CalOptima.

CalOptima shall notify a Health Network of its risk factor on May 15" and November 15" of
each year.

D. Calculation of HRA Capitation Payment

1. CalOptima shall multiply a Health Network’s monthly base Capitation Payment for eligible

Members as set forth in Section I11.C of this policy, by the Health Network’s risk factor to
determine the Health Network’s HRA Capitation Payment.

CalOptima shall apply a Health Network’s risk factor in determining the Health Network’s HRA
Capitation Payment for the following six (6) month Payment Period as follows:

a. The risk factor calculated in April shall apply to Capitation Payments for July through
December of the same year; and

b. The risk factor calculated in October shall apply to Capitation Payments for January through
June of the following year.

ATTACHMENTS

Not Applicable

REFERENCES

A
B.
C.
D.

CalOptima Contract with the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) for Medi-Cal
CalOptima Health Network Service Agreement

CalOptima Policy EE.1111: Health Network Encounter Reporting Requirements

CalOptima Policy FF.1001: Capitation Payments

REGULATORY AGENCY APPROVALS
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Policy #: FF.1009
Title: Health--Bbased Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment Revised Date: 85/01/1709/06/18

A. 09/30/09: Department of Health Care Services
VII. BOARD ACTIONS

A. 09/06/18: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

A:B.  06/04/09: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
B.C. 05/05/09: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
C.D. 06/03/08: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

VIIl. REVIEW/REVISION HISTORY

Version Date Policy Number | Policy Title Line(s) of Business

Effective | 07/01/2008 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 07/01/2009 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 09/01/2014 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 06/01/2016 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 05/01/2017 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 09/06/2018 | FF.1009 Health-B-based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System
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Policy #: FF.1009
Title: Health--Bbased Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment Revised Date: 05/01/1709/06/18
IX. GLOSSARY
Term Definition
Aid Code The two (2) character code, defined by the State of California, which identifies the
aid category under which a member is eligible to receive Medi-Cal Covered
Services.
California The public health program that assures the delivery of specialized diagnostic,
Children’s treatment, and therapy services to financially and medically eligible persons
Services (CCS) under the age of twenty-one (21) vears who have CCS-Eligible Conditions,
Program as defined in Title 22, California Code of Requlations (CCR), Sections

41515.2 through 41518.9.

CalOptima Direct

A direct health care program operated by CalOptima that includes both COD-
Administrative (COD-A) and CalOptima Community Network (CCN) and provides
services to Members who meet certain eligibility criteria as described in CalOptima
Policy DD.2006.

Capitation Payment

The monthly amount paid to a Health Network by CalOptima for delivery of
Covered Services to Members, which is determined by multiplying the applicable
Capitation Rate by a Health Network’s monthly enrollment based upon Aid Code,
age, and gender.

Chronic Illness and
Disability Payment
System (CDPS)

A diagnostic classification system that Medicaid programs utilize to make health-
based capitated payments for Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) and
disabled Medicaid beneficiaries.

Encounter

Any unit of Covered Services provided to a Member by a Health Network regardless
of Health Network reimbursement methodology. Such Covered Services include any
service provided to a Member regardless of the service location or provider,
including out-of-network services and sub-capitated and delegated Covered
Services.

Health Network

A Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC), physician group under a shared risk
contract, or health care service plan, such as a Health Maintenance Organization
(HMO) that contracts with CalOptima to provide Covered Services to Members
assigned to that Health Network.

Health Network
Risk Factor

The weighted average of all Member Risk Scores for Members assigned to that
Health Network at a defined time, normalized across all Health Networks to ensure
that the aggregate total Capitation Payments to all Health Networks is budget neutral
to CalOptima.

Member

A Medi-Cal eligible beneficiary as determined by the County of Orange Social
Services Agency, the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Medi-
Cal Program, or the United States Social Security Administration, who is enrolled in
the CalOptima program.

Member Risk
Score

A measurement of a Member’s health status according to a minimum of one (1)
diagnostic code.

Payment Period

For the purpose of this policy, payment period refers to a set interval of time in
which CalOptima provides payment to Health Networks for Covered Services
furnished to Members.

Bafkge Yafénda



Policy #: FF.1009

Title: Health--Bbased Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment Revised Date: 05/01/1709/06/18
Term Definition
Risk Assignment A database that contains Members’ diagnostic and medical information as reported
Database on the facility and professional Encounter data submitted by a Health Network in

accordance with CalOptima Policy EE.1111: Health Network Encounter Reporting
Requirements, and claims data collected by CalOptima for CalOptima Direct and
Shared Risk Groups.

Shared Risk Group | A Health Network who accepts delegated clinical and financial responsibility for
professional services for assigned Members, as defined by written contract and
enters into a risk sharing agreement with CalOptima as the responsible partner for
facility services.
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[VJ Calo pti Mma Department: Finance

A Public Agency

. Policy #: FF.1009
Medi-Cal Title: Health-based Risk Adjusted
Capitation Payment System

Better. Together. Section: Not Applicable

CEO Approval: Michael Schrader
Effective Date: 07/01/08

Last Review Date:  09/06/18
Last Revised Date: 09/06/18

PURPOSE

This policy outlines the process for CalOptima’s Health-based Risk Adjusted (HRA) Capitation Payment
system.

POLICY

A

CalOptima shall adjust a Health Network’s Capitation Payment to a Health-based Risk Adjusted
(HRA) Capitation Payment based on the health status of the Health Network’s Member population,
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this policy.

B. CalOptima shall utilize the Chronic IlIness and Disability Payment System (CDPS) to adjust a
Health Network’s Capitation Payment to an HRA Capitation Payment.

C. Effective January 1, 2019, Members who are eligible for services under the California Children’s
Services (CCS) Program shall not qualify for risk adjustment under this Policy.

D. CalOptima shall risk-adjust a payment for a Member who:

1. Hasan Aged, Blind, Disabled, or Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Aid Code;

2. Isenrolled in CalOptima for at least six (6) months during a twelve (12) month risk adjustment
period as described in Section I11.B of this policy; and

3. Isenrolled in a Health Network during the periods described in Section 111.C of this policy.

E. CalOptima shall develop a Risk Assignment Database to contain medical and diagnostic data for
Members eligible for risk-adjustment pursuant to Section I1.C of this policy. CalOptima shall utilize
the data in the Risk Assignment Database to determine a Member’s Risk Score in accordance with
Section I11.B of this policy.

F. CalOptima shall calculate a Health Network’s risk factor every six (6) months.

G. CalOptima shall apply a Health Network’s risk factor in determining the Health Network’s
Capitation Payment for the following six (6) month Payment Period.

PROCEDURE

A. Risk Assignment Database

Back to Agenda



NRPRPRRRRRRERRE R
COOMNOUIRARWNROOONOOUDMWNRF

NDNNNNDNN
OO WN -

WWWWNDNDN
WN PP, OO

W W w
o 01~

A BEADDBEPRADEBEEDDDEPPOOW
OCOO~NOUITRARWNEFPL,OOOON

o1 g
= O

Policy #:

Title:

FF.1009
Health-based Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment Revised Date: 09/06/18

1.

2.

The Risk Assignment Database shall contain information including, but not limited to:
a. Member identification number;

b. Aid Code;

c. Diagnosis code; and

d. Procedure codes.

CalOptima shall extract information for the Risk Assignment Database from the following
service categories:

a. Inpatient services;
b. Outpatient services; and

c. Physician services.

B. Calculation of Member’s Risk Score

1.

4.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall utilize the Risk Assignment Database to assign a
Member a Risk Score using CDPS and a Health Network’s capitation age and gender factors. A
Health Network’s capitation age and gender factors are adjustments that take into account a
Health Network’s membership’s age and gender mix.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall calculate a Member’s Risk Score every six (6) months,
in April and October.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall calculate a Member’s Risk Score based on Encounter
and claims data submitted for dates of service over a twelve (12) month risk adjustment period.

a. For the Risk Score calculated in April (“year 3”), CalOptima shall use Encounter data
submitted from a Health Network by March 20 (“year 3”) for dates of service December
(“year 1”) through November (“year 2”).

b. For the Risk Score calculated in October (“year 3”), CalOptima shall use Encounter data
submitted from a Health Network by September 20 (“year 3”) for dates of service June
(“year 2”) through May (“year 3”).

If a Member is eligible with CalOptima for less than six (6) months during a risk adjustment
period, CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall not calculate a Risk Score for that Member.

C. Calculation of Health Network Risk Factor

1.

A Health Network’s raw risk factor is the weighted average of all Risk Scores for Members
assigned to that Health Network at a defined time.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall apply actuarial methodologies to derive statistically
significant risk factors for each Health Network.

Bafkge 2afénda
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Policy #:

Title:

FF.1009
Health-based Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment Revised Date: 09/06/18

VI.

3. CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall calculate a Health Network’s risk factor every six (6)

months, in April and October.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall calculate the average Risk Score for Members assigned
to that Health Network.

a. For the risk factor calculated in April, CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall use a Health
Network’s assigned membership as of April.

b. For the risk factor calculated in October, CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall use a
Health Network’s assigned membership as of October.

c. CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall only use Risk Scores for Members who are eligible
as of the months described in subsections I11.C.4.a and 111.C.4.b of this section, to calculate a
Health Networks’ risk factor.

CalOptima or its contracted vendor shall normalize the average risk factor for each Health
Network based on eligible Members in accordance with Section Il1. C.4 of this policy, to ensure
that the aggregate total Capitation Payments to all Health Networks remains budget neutral to
CalOptima.

CalOptima shall notify a Health Network of its risk factor on May 15" and November 15" of
each year.

D. Calculation of HRA Capitation Payment

1. CalOptima shall multiply a Health Network’s monthly base Capitation Payment for eligible

Members as set forth in Section I11.C of this policy, by the Health Network’s risk factor to
determine the Health Network’s HRA Capitation Payment.

CalOptima shall apply a Health Network’s risk factor in determining the Health Network’s HRA
Capitation Payment for the following six (6) month Payment Period as follows:

a. The risk factor calculated in April shall apply to Capitation Payments for July through
December of the same year; and

b. The risk factor calculated in October shall apply to Capitation Payments for January through
June of the following year.

ATTACHMENTS

Not Applicable

REFERENCES

A
B.
C.
D.

CalOptima Contract with the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) for Medi-Cal
CalOptima Health Network Service Agreement

CalOptima Policy EE.1111: Health Network Encounter Reporting Requirements

CalOptima Policy FF.1001: Capitation Payments

REGULATORY AGENCY APPROVALS
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Policy #: FF.1009
Title: Health-based Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment Revised Date: 09/06/18
A. 09/30/09: Department of Health Care Services

VII.

VIII.

BOARD ACTIONS

A
B.
C.
D.

09/06/18:
06/04/09:
05/05/09:
06/03/08:

Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

REVIEW/REVISION HISTORY

Version Date Policy Number | Policy Title Line(s) of Business

Effective | 07/01/2008 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 07/01/2009 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 09/01/2014 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 06/01/2016 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 05/01/2017 | FF.1009 Health Based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System

Revised 09/06/2018 | FF.1009 Health-based Risk Adjusted Medi-Cal
Capitation Payment System
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Policy #: FF.1009
Title: Health-based Risk Adjusted Capitation Payment Revised Date: 09/06/18
IX. GLOSSARY
Term Definition
Aid Code The two (2) character code, defined by the State of California, which identifies the
aid category under which a member is eligible to receive Medi-Cal Covered
Services.
California The public health program that assures the delivery of specialized diagnostic,
Children’s treatment, and therapy services to financially and medically eligible persons
Services (CCS) under the age of twenty-one (21) years who have CCS-Eligible Conditions,
Program as defined in Title 22, California Code of Regulations (CCR), Sections

41515.2 through 41518.9.

CalOptima Direct

A direct health care program operated by CalOptima that includes both COD-
Administrative (COD-A) and CalOptima Community Network (CCN) and provides
services to Members who meet certain eligibility criteria as described in CalOptima
Policy DD.2006.

Capitation Payment

The monthly amount paid to a Health Network by CalOptima for delivery of
Covered Services to Members, which is determined by multiplying the applicable
Capitation Rate by a Health Network’s monthly enrollment based upon Aid Code,
age, and gender.

Chronic Illness and
Disability Payment
System (CDPS)

A diagnostic classification system that Medicaid programs utilize to make health-
based capitated payments for Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) and
disabled Medicaid beneficiaries.

Encounter

Any unit of Covered Services provided to a Member by a Health Network regardless
of Health Network reimbursement methodology. Such Covered Services include any
service provided to a Member regardless of the service location or provider,
including out-of-network services and sub-capitated and delegated Covered
Services.

Health Network

A Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC), physician group under a shared risk
contract, or health care service plan, such as a Health Maintenance Organization
(HMO) that contracts with CalOptima to provide Covered Services to Members
assigned to that Health Network.

Health Network
Risk Factor

The weighted average of all Member Risk Scores for Members assigned to that
Health Network at a defined time, normalized across all Health Networks to ensure
that the aggregate total Capitation Payments to all Health Networks is budget neutral
to CalOptima.

Member

A Medi-Cal eligible beneficiary as determined by the County of Orange Social
Services Agency, the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Medi-
Cal Program, or the United States Social Security Administration, who is enrolled in
the CalOptima program.

Member Risk
Score

A measurement of a Member’s health status according to a minimum of one (1)
diagnostic code.

Payment Period

For the purpose of this policy, payment period refers to a set interval of time in
which CalOptima provides payment to Health Networks for Covered Services
furnished to Members.
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Term Definition
Risk Assignment A database that contains Members’ diagnostic and medical information as reported
Database on the facility and professional Encounter data submitted by a Health Network in

accordance with CalOptima Policy EE.1111: Health Network Encounter Reporting
Requirements, and claims data collected by CalOptima for CalOptima Direct and
Shared Risk Groups.

Shared Risk Group | A Health Network who accepts delegated clinical and financial responsibility for
professional services for assigned Members, as defined by written contract and
enters into a risk sharing agreement with CalOptima as the responsible partner for
facility services.
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A Public Agency
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Effective Date: 07/01/08
Last Review Date:  05/04/1709/06/18
Last Revised Date: 05/04/1709/06/18

PURPOSE

This policy outlines the process for CalOptima’s administration of the Shared Risk Pool with a Shared
Risk Group.

POLICY

A. CalOptima shall establish a Shared Risk Pool for a Shared Risk Group in accordance with the
Contract for Health Care Services and the terms and conditions of this policy.

B. CalOptima shall establish a Shared Risk Pool each fiscal year (July 1 through June 30) during the
term of a Shared Risk Group’s Contract for Health Care Services.

C. The Shared Risk Budget shall include:

1. The Hospital Budget Capitation Allocation for Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group
within the applicable period,;

2. Monies recovered by CalOptima or a Provider from Coordination of Benefits for Shared Risk
Services provided to Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group, in accordance with
CalOptima Policy FF.2003: Coordination of Benefits;

3. Reinsurance recovery amounts as set forth in CalOptima Policy FF.1007: Health Network
Reinsurance Coverage; and

4. Supplemental OB Delivery Care payments as set forth in CalOptima Policy FF.1005f: Special
Payments: Supplemental OB Delivery Care Payment.

D. The Shared Risk Budget shall not include any amounts for Health Network Members eligible for the
California Children’s Services (CCS) Program.

D:E.  Shared Risk Expenses shall include:
1. Claims paid for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group;
2. An estimate of Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) expenses for Shared Risk Services;

3. Administrative expenses at a rate established in the Contract for Health Care Services; and
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Title: Shared Risk Pool Revised Date: 85/61/1709/06/18
4. Any reinsurance premiums paid by CalOptima allocable to the Shared Risk Group.
E-F.  Shared Risk Expenses shall not include:
1. Reimbursement for a High Cost Exclusion Item as set forth in CalOptima Policy FF.1005c:
Special Payments — High Cost Exclusion Items.
2. Any expenses attributable to the Health Network Members who are eligible for the CCS
Program.
EG.  Quarterly Reporting - CalOptima shall report the status of the Shared Risk Pool to its

corresponding Shared Risk Group within forty-five (45) calendar days following the end of each
quarter as follows:

1.

2.

3.

4.

G-H.

Quarter Ending September 30: Due November 15.
Quarter Ending December 31: Due February 15.
Quarter Ending March 31: Due May 15.

Quarter Ending June 30: Due August 15.

Semi-Annual Reconciliation and Settlement - CalOptima shall reconcile and settle the Shared

Risk Pool by February 28 following the immediately preceding semi-annual period of July 1
through December 31.

1.

If, at the end of the first semi-annual period of the fiscal year, CalOptima determines that the
Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, CalOptima shall pay the Shared Risk Group an amount equal to
sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less any deficits carried forward from the previous annual
settlement. Any surplus distributions are an advance against the projected final surplus. The
remaining forty percent (40%) of the surplus shall remain in the Shared Risk Pool.

If, at the end of that semi-annual period, CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in
deficit, no advance payment shall be made to the Shared Risk Group.

H:1. Annual Reconciliation and Settlement - CalOptima shall reconcile and report the status of the

Shared Risk Pool by October 31 following the end of each fiscal year. The Shared Risk Group will
have thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the annual report to notify CalOptima of
any objections to the calculations of the surplus or deficit, as detailed in Section I11.C.4 of this

policy.

1.

2.

After issuance of the final Annual Shared Risk Program Report, if CalOptima determines that
the Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, CalOptima shall pay the Shared Risk Group an amount equal
to sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less any advance amounts paid at the semi-annual
reconciliation period as described in Section I1.GH.1 of this policy, and less any deficits carried
forward from the previous annual settlement. CalOptima shall retain the balance of the Shared
Risk Pool.

After issuance of the final Annual Shared Risk Program Report, if CalOptima determines that
the Shared Risk Pool is in deficit, CalOptima shall carry forward an amount equal to sixty
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percent (60%) of that deficit into the next fiscal year’s semi-annual and/or annual reconciliation,
along with any additional deficits carried forward from the previous annual settlement, except
as otherwise established in the Contract for Health Care Services.

+J. If there is a significant change in risk pool performance, CalOptima reserves the right to meet with
the Shared Risk Group in order to discuss and understand the reason for the significant change.

&K.If there is continued deterioration of performance of the Shared Risk Pool, CalOptima may request a
Corrective Action Plan (CAP) from the Shared Risk Group.

K-L. If CalOptima determines that a Shared Risk Group has Shared Risk Pool deficits in two (2)

successive fiscal years, CalOptima may terminate the Shared Risk Group’s Contract for Health Care
Services.

£M. In the event that CalOptima or a Shared Risk Group terminates the Contract for Health Care
Services, CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool within one hundred twenty (120) calendar
days following the date of contract termination, in accordance with Section I11.D of this policy.

M:N. Upon identification of a payment error, Shared Risk Groups must submit written notification on
a timely basis in order for CalOptima to seek necessary provider recoupment. CalOptima cannot
request recoupment from a provider after more than three hundred sixty-five (365) calendar days
from the date of CalOptima’s original claims payment.

N:O. If a Health Network identifies an overpayment of a semi-annual or annual settlement payment,
the Health Network shall return the overpayment within sixty (60) calendar days after the date on
which the overpayment was identified, and shall notify CalOptima’s Accounting Department in
writing of the reason for the overpayment. CalOptima shall coordinate with the Health Network on
the process to return the overpayment.

PROCEDURE
A. Quarterly Shared Risk Pool Reporting
1. Within forty-five (45) calendar days following the end of each quarter, as detailed in section
I1.LEG of this policy, CalOptima shall provide a Shared Risk Group with a written report of the
status of the Shared Risk Pool.
2. The report shall include:

a. Anannualization of the aggregate amount of the Shared Risk Budget and Shared Risk
Expenses for all months to date during that fiscal year; and

b. An estimate of the projected Shared Risk Pool deficit or surplus at the end of the fiscal year.
B. Semi-Annual Shared Risk Pool Reconciliation and Settlement

1. No later than February 28 of each year, CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool for the
immediately preceding semi-annual period July 1 through December 31.
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a.

CalOptima shall calculate the Shared Risk Budget for the semi-annual period July 1 through
December 31. The Shared Risk Budget shall include all components detailed in
SeetienSections I1.C and I1.D of this policy related to Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Group within the semi-annual period, and for dates of service within the semi-annual
period.

CalOptima shall calculate Shared Risk Expenses for the semi-annual period July 1 through
December 31. The Shared Risk Expenses shall include all components detailed in
SeetionSections I1.BE and I1.EE of this policy for dates of service within the semi-annual
period.

CalOptima shall reduce Shared Risk Expenses for the semi-annual period by:

i. Any applicable copayments, deductibles, or third-party payments collected by
CalOptima or a Provider for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the
Shared Risk Group within the semi-annual period; and

ii. Any recoveries, including overpayments, for dates of service within the semi-annual
period related to Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the Shared
Risk Group.

2. CalOptima shall compute and settle the semi-annual Shared Risk Pool surplus or deficit by
deducting the Shared Risk Expenses from the Shared Risk Budget for the semi-annual period.

a.

If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, CalOptima shall pay the
Shared Risk Group an amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less any deficits
from the previous annual settlement. Any surplus distributions are an advance against the
projected final surplus. The remaining forty percent (40%) of the surplus shall remain in the
Shared Risk Pool.

If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in deficit, no advance payment shall
be made to the Shared Risk Group.

C. Annual Shared Risk Pool Reconciliation and Settlement

1. No later than October 31 of each year, CalOptima shall provide the Shared Risk Group with an
Annual Shared Risk Program Report. The Annual Shared Risk Program Report shall show
reconciliation of allocations, deposits, expenses, and disbursements during the immediately
preceding fiscal year, and the status of the Shared Risk Pool.

a.

CalOptima shall calculate the Shared Risk Budget for the annual reconciliation in
accordance with SeetionSections 11.C and 11.D of this policy. The Shared Risk Budget for
the fiscal year shall include:

i. The Hospital Budget Capitation Allocation for Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Group within that fiscal year, including any retroactivity within (90) calendar days after
the end of the fiscal year;
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ii. Monies recovered by CalOptima or a Provider from Coordination of Benefits for dates
of service within that fiscal year and recovered within ninety (90) calendar days after
the end of the fiscal year;

iii. Reinsurance recovery amounts for dates of service within that fiscal year and identified
within ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the fiscal year; and

iv. Supplemental OB Delivery Care payments for dates of service within that fiscal year
and identified within ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the fiscal year.

CalOptima shall calculate Shared Risk Expenses for the annual reconciliation in accordance
with Sections 11.BE and I1.EF of this policy. Shared Risk Expenses for the fiscal year shall
include:

i. Claims for Shared Risk Services for dates of service within that fiscal year and paid
within ninety (90) calendar days following the end of the fiscal year;

ii. An estimate of IBNR expenses for Shared Risk Services rendered within that fiscal
year, based on historical claims for Shared Risk Services for dates of service within that
fiscal year and paid up to ninety (90) calendar days following the end of the fiscal year;

iii. Administrative expenses as established in the Contract for Health Care Services; and

iv. Any reinsurance premiums paid by CalOptima within that fiscal year allocable to the
Shared Risk Group.

Shared Risk Expenses shall not include:

i. Reimbursement for a High Cost Exclusion Item as set forth in CalOptima Policy
FF.1005c: Special Payments — High Cost Exclusion ltems.

CalOptima shall reduce Shared Risk Expenses for the fiscal year by:

i. Any applicable copayments, deductibles, or third-party payments collected by
CalOptima or a Provider for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the
Shared Risk Group during that fiscal year within ninety (90) calendar days after the end
of the fiscal year; and

ii. Any recoveries, including overpayments, for dates of service within that fiscal year
related to Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Group and received within ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the fiscal year.

If CalOptima identifies any Shared Risk Expenses past ninety (90) calendar days following
the end of the fiscal year, CalOptima shall deduct such Shared Risk Expenses from the
Shared Risk Budget as part of the subsequent fiscal year’s update for that Shared Risk
Period pursuant to Section 111.C.3 of this policy.

2. CalOptima shall compute the annual Shared Risk Pool surplus or deficit by deducting the
Shared Risk Expenses from the Shared Risk Budget for the fiscal year.
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3.

a. If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, the Annual Shared Risk
Program Report shall reflect that the amount payable to the Shared Risk Group will be an
amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less any advance amounts paid at the
semi-annual reconciliation period as described in Section 111.B.2.a of this policy, and less
any deficits carried forward from the previous annual settlement. CalOptima shall retain the
balance of the Shared Risk Pool.

b. If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in deficit, the Annual Shared Risk
Program Report shall reflect that CalOptima shall carry forward an amount equal to sixty
percent (60%) of that deficit into the next fiscal year’s semi-annual and/or annual
reconciliation, along with any additional deficits carried forward from the previous annual
settlement, except as otherwise established in the Contract for Health Care Services.

Each Annual Shared Risk Program Report shall include refreshed reports from the previous two
(2) annual shared risk periods. CalOptima shall refresh the Annual Shared Risk Program Report
at the time of the following Shared Risk Period’s annual settlement to update IBNR and actual
claims payment for previous shared risk periods. After two (2) years, the refreshed Annual
Shared Risk Program Report should not contain IBNR and shall be considered final. (e.g., FY16
Shared Risk Period [July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016] will be final October 31, 2018).

If, upon review of the Annual Shared Risk Program Report, the Shared Risk Group objects to
the calculations and determination, the Shared Risk Group may complete and submit the Risk
Pool Claims Objection Form and any supporting documentation to the CalOptima Accounting
Department within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the Annual Shared Risk
Program Report.

a. If CalOptima does not receive any written objection from the Shared Risk Group within
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the Annual Shared Risk Program Report, CalOptima
shall settle the Shared Risk Pool and apply any surplus or deficit within fifteen (15)
calendar days after the expiration of the review period, no later than December 15. Such
settlement shall be considered final.

b. If CalOptima receives written notice of objection from a Shared Risk Group within the
objection period, CalOptima shall re-evaluate its calculations based on additional
documentation provided by the Shared Risk Group and provide a final Annual Shared Risk
Program Report to the Shared Risk Group within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt
of the written objection.

c. CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool based on this final Annual Shared Risk
Program Report and apply any surplus or deficit within fifteen (15) calendar days after the
date of issuance of the final Annual Shared Risk Program Report.

D. Shared Risk Pool Settlement upon Termination

1.

Within one-hundred-twenty (120) calendar days after the effective date of termination of the
Contract for Health Care Services with a Shared Risk Group, CalOptima shall provide the
terminated Shared Risk Group with a Final Reconciliation and Settlement Report.
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CalOptima shall calculate the Shared Risk Budget for the reconciliation upon termination in
accordance with SeetionSections 11.C and 11.D of this policy. The Shared Risk Budget for
the reconciliation upon termination shall include:

i. The Hospital Budget Capitation Allocation for Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Group within that fiscal year and up to the effective date of termination, including any
retroactivity within ninety (90) calendar days after the effective date of termination;

ii. Monies recovered by CalOptima or a Provider from Coordination of Benefits for dates
of service within that fiscal year and up to the effective date of termination, recovered
within ninety (90) calendar days after the effective date of termination;

iii. Reinsurance coverage amounts for dates of service within the fiscal year and up to the
effective date of termination, identified no later than ninety (90) calendar days after the
effective date of termination; and

iv. Supplemental OB Delivery Care payments for dates of service within that fiscal year
and up to the effective date of termination, identified within ninety (90) calendar days
after the effective date of termination.

CalOptima shall calculate Shared Risk Expenses for the reconciliation upon termination in
accordance with SeetionSections 11.BE and I1.EF of this policy. Shared Risk Expenses for
the reconciliation upon termination shall include:

i. Claims for Shared Risk Services for dates of service within that fiscal year and up to the
effective date of termination, paid within ninety (90) calendar days following the
effective date of termination;

ii. An estimate of IBNR expenses for Shared Risk Services rendered within that fiscal year
and up to the effective date of termination, based on historical claims for Shared Risk
Services for dates of service within that fiscal year and paid up to ninety (90) calendar
days following the effective date of termination;

iii. Administrative expenses as established in the Contract for Health Care Services; and

iv. Any reinsurance premiums paid by CalOptima within that fiscal year and up to the
effective date of termination allocable to the Shared Risk Group.

Shared Risk Expenses shall not include:

i. Reimbursement for a High Cost Exclusion Item as set forth in CalOptima Policy
FF.1005.c: Special Payments — High Cost Exclusion Items.

CalOptima shall reduce Shared Risk Expenses for the fiscal year by:

i. Any applicable copayments, deductibles, or third-party payments collected by
CalOptima or a Provider for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the
Shared Risk Group during that fiscal year within ninety (90) calendar days after the
effective date of termination; and
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ii. Any recoveries, including overpayments, for dates of service within that fiscal year and
up to the effective date of termination related to Shared Risk Services provided to
Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group and received within ninety (90) calendar
days after the effective date of termination.

2. CalOptima shall compute the final Shared Risk Pool surplus or deficit by deducting the Shared
Risk Expenses from the Shared Risk Budget for the final fiscal year.

a. If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, the Final Shared Risk
Program Report shall reflect that the amount payable to the Shared Risk Group will be an
amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less amounts paid at the semi-annual
reconciliation period (if applicable), and less any deficits from the previous annual
settlement, if not already subtracted at the semi-annual reconciliation period. CalOptima
shall retain the balance of the Shared Risk Pool.

b. If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in deficit, the Final Shared Risk
Program Report shall reflect that the Shared Risk Group shall not be responsible for any
portion of that deficit.

3. If, upon review of the Final Shared Risk Program Report, the Shared Risk Group objects to the
calculations and determination, the Shared Risk Group may complete and submit the Risk Pool
Claims Objection Form and any supporting documentation to the CalOptima Accounting
Department within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the Final Shared Risk
Program Report.

a. If CalOptima does not receive any written objection from the Shared Risk Group within
thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the Final Shared Risk Program Report,
CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool and apply any surplus or deficit within fifteen
(15) calendar days after the expiration of the review period. Such settlement shall be
considered final.

b. If CalOptima receives written notice of objection from the Shared Risk Group, CalOptima
shall re-evaluate its calculations based on additional documentation provided by the Shared
Risk Group and provide any revisions to the Final Shared Risk Program Report to the
Shared Risk Group within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of the written
objection.

c. CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool based on the revised Final Shared Risk
Program Report and apply any surplus or deficit within fifteen (15) calendar days after the
date of issuance of the revised Final Shared Risk Program Report.
V. ATTACHMENTS
A. Risk Pool Claims Objection Form
V. REFERENCES
A. CalOptima Contract for Health Care Services
B. CalOptima Policy FF.1007: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage
C. CalOptima Policy FF.1005c: Special Payments — High Cost Exclusion Items
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VI.

VII.

VIII.

D. CalOptima Policy FF.2003: Coordination of Benefits
E. CalOptima Policy FF.1005f: Special Payments: Supplemental OB Delivery Care Payment
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BOARD ACTIONS
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IX. GLOSSARY
Term Definition
California The public health program that assures the delivery of specialized diagnostic,
Children’s treatment, and therapy services to financially and medically eligible persons
Services (CCS) under the age of twenty-one (21) years who have CCS-Eligible Conditions, as
Program defined in Title 22, California Code of Requlations (CCR), Sections 41515.2
through 41518.9.

California Chronic medical conditions, including but not limited to, cystic fibrosis,
Children’s hemophilia, cerebral palsy, heart disease, cancer, traumatic injuries and

Services (CCS)
Eligible Condition

infectious disease producing major sequelae.

Contract for The written instrument between CalOptima and Physicians, Hospitals, Health

Health Care Maintenance Organizations (HMO), or other entities. Contract shall include any

Services Memoranda of Understanding entered into by CalOptima that is binding on a
Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC) or HMO, DHCS Medi-Cal Managed
Cared Division Policy Letters, Contract Interpretation, and Financial Bulletins
issued pursuant to the Contract.

Contracted A hospital that has entered into a CalOptima Hospital Services Contract to

CalOptima provide hospital services to CalOptima Direct Members.

Hospital

Coordination of A method for determining the order of payment for medical or other

Benefits (COB) care/treatment benefits where the primary health plan pays for covered benefits

as it would without the presence of a secondary health plan.

Corrective Action

A plan delineating specific and identifiable activities or undertakings that

Plan (CAP) address and are designed to correct program deficiencies or problems identified
by formal audits or monitoring activities by CalOptima, the State, or designated
representatives. Health Networks and Providers may be required to complete a
CAP to ensure that they are in compliance with statutory, regulatory,
contractual, CalOptima policy, and other requirements identified by CalOptima
and its regulators.

Division of A matrix that identifies how CalOptima identifies the responsible parties for

Financial components of medical associated with the provision of Covered Services. The

Responsibility responsible parties include, but are not limited to, Physician, Hospital,

(DOFR) CalOptima and the County of Orange.

High Cost Specific high-cost items that are excluded from a Contracted Hospital’s

Exclusion ltem

outpatient reimbursement or inpatient per diem rate.

Hospital Budget
Capitation
Allocation

The amount equal to the Hospital Risk Pool Capitation (PMPM) set forth in the
contract multiplied by the number of Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Physician.

Incurred But Not
Reported (IBNR)

IBNR means “incurred but not reported,” and refers to an estimate of claims
that have been incurred for medical services provided, but for which claims
have not yet been received by the Health Network.

Member

A Medi-Cal eligible beneficiary as determined by the County of Orange Social
Services Agency, the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS)
Medi-Cal Program, or the United States Social Security Administration, who is
enrolled in the CalOptima program.
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Term Definition
Provider A physician, nurse, nurse mid-wife, nurse practitioner, medical technician,
physician assistant, hospital, laboratory, ancillary provider, health maintenance
organization, or other person or institution that furnishes Covered Services.
Shared Risk The total amount that CalOptima allocates to the Shared Risk Pool to pay for
Budget Shared Risk Services set forth in the DOFR of the contract.
Shared Risk Includes:
Expenses Amounts paid for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the
Shared Risk Group;
An estimate of Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) expenses;
Administrative expenses at a rate established in the Contract for Health Care
Services; and
Any reinsurance premiums paid by CalOptima allocable to the Shared Risk
Group.
Shared Risk A Health Network who accepts delegated clinical and financial responsibility
Group for professional services for assigned Members, as defined by written contract

and enters into a risk sharing agreement with CalOptima as the responsible
partner for facility services.

Shared Risk Pool

The risk sharing program, under which the risk for the provision of Shared Risk
Services to Members is shared and allocated between CalOptima and the
contracted Health Network.
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PURPOSE

This policy outlines the process for CalOptima’s administration of the Shared Risk Pool with a Shared
Risk Group.

POLICY

A. CalOptima shall establish a Shared Risk Pool for a Shared Risk Group in accordance with the
Contract for Health Care Services and the terms and conditions of this policy.

B. CalOptima shall establish a Shared Risk Pool each fiscal year (July 1 through June 30) during the
term of a Shared Risk Group’s Contract for Health Care Services.

C. The Shared Risk Budget shall include:

1. The Hospital Budget Capitation Allocation for Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group
within the applicable period;

2. Monies recovered by CalOptima or a Provider from Coordination of Benefits for Shared Risk
Services provided to Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group, in accordance with
CalOptima Policy FF.2003: Coordination of Benefits;

3. Reinsurance recovery amounts as set forth in CalOptima Policy FF.1007: Health Network
Reinsurance Coverage; and

4. Supplemental OB Delivery Care payments as set forth in CalOptima Policy FF.1005f: Special
Payments: Supplemental OB Delivery Care Payment.

D. The Shared Risk Budget shall not include any amounts for Health Network Members eligible for the
California Children’s Services (CCS) Program.

E. Shared Risk Expenses shall include:
1. Claims paid for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group;
2. An estimate of Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) expenses for Shared Risk Services;

3. Administrative expenses at a rate established in the Contract for Health Care Services; and
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4. Any reinsurance premiums paid by CalOptima allocable to the Shared Risk Group.
Shared Risk Expenses shall not include:

1. Reimbursement for a High Cost Exclusion Item as set forth in CalOptima Policy FF.1005c:
Special Payments — High Cost Exclusion Items.

2. Any expenses attributable to the Health Network Members who are eligible for the CCS
Program.

Quarterly Reporting - CalOptima shall report the status of the Shared Risk Pool to its corresponding
Shared Risk Group within forty-five (45) calendar days following the end of each quarter as
follows:

1. Quarter Ending September 30: Due November 15.

2. Quarter Ending December 31: Due February 15.

3. Quarter Ending March 31: Due May 15.

4. Quarter Ending June 30: Due August 15.

Semi-Annual Reconciliation and Settlement - CalOptima shall reconcile and settle the Shared Risk

Pool by February 28 following the immediately preceding semi-annual period of July 1 through
December 31.

1. If, at the end of the first semi-annual period of the fiscal year, CalOptima determines that the
Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, CalOptima shall pay the Shared Risk Group an amount equal to
sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less any deficits carried forward from the previous annual
settlement. Any surplus distributions are an advance against the projected final surplus. The
remaining forty percent (40%) of the surplus shall remain in the Shared Risk Pool.

2. If, at the end of that semi-annual period, CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in
deficit, no advance payment shall be made to the Shared Risk Group.

Annual Reconciliation and Settlement - CalOptima shall reconcile and report the status of the
Shared Risk Pool by October 31 following the end of each fiscal year. The Shared Risk Group will
have thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the annual report to notify CalOptima of
any objections to the calculations of the surplus or deficit, as detailed in Section I11.C.4 of this

policy.

1. After issuance of the final Annual Shared Risk Program Report, if CalOptima determines that
the Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, CalOptima shall pay the Shared Risk Group an amount equal
to sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less any advance amounts paid at the semi-annual
reconciliation period as described in Section I1.H.1 of this policy, and less any deficits carried
forward from the previous annual settlement. CalOptima shall retain the balance of the Shared
Risk Pool.

2. After issuance of the final Annual Shared Risk Program Report, if CalOptima determines that
the Shared Risk Pool is in deficit, CalOptima shall carry forward an amount equal to sixty
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percent (60%) of that deficit into the next fiscal year’s semi-annual and/or annual reconciliation,
along with any additional deficits carried forward from the previous annual settlement, except
as otherwise established in the Contract for Health Care Services.

If there is a significant change in risk pool performance, CalOptima reserves the right to meet with
the Shared Risk Group in order to discuss and understand the reason for the significant change.

If there is continued deterioration of performance of the Shared Risk Pool, CalOptima may request a
Corrective Action Plan (CAP) from the Shared Risk Group.

If CalOptima determines that a Shared Risk Group has Shared Risk Pool deficits in two (2)
successive fiscal years, CalOptima may terminate the Shared Risk Group’s Contract for Health Care
Services.

In the event that CalOptima or a Shared Risk Group terminates the Contract for Health Care
Services, CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool within one hundred twenty (120) calendar
days following the date of contract termination, in accordance with Section 111.D of this policy.

Upon identification of a payment error, Shared Risk Groups must submit written notification on a
timely basis in order for CalOptima to seek necessary provider recoupment. CalOptima cannot
request recoupment from a provider after more than three hundred sixty-five (365) calendar days
from the date of CalOptima’s original claims payment.

If a Health Network identifies an overpayment of a semi-annual or annual settlement payment, the
Health Network shall return the overpayment within sixty (60) calendar days after the date on which
the overpayment was identified, and shall notify CalOptima’s Accounting Department in writing of
the reason for the overpayment. CalOptima shall coordinate with the Health Network on the process
to return the overpayment.

1. PROCEDURE

A. Quarterly Shared Risk Pool Reporting

1. Within forty-five (45) calendar days following the end of each quarter, as detailed in section
I1.G of this policy, CalOptima shall provide a Shared Risk Group with a written report of the
status of the Shared Risk Pool.

2. The report shall include:

a. Anannualization of the aggregate amount of the Shared Risk Budget and Shared Risk
Expenses for all months to date during that fiscal year; and

b. An estimate of the projected Shared Risk Pool deficit or surplus at the end of the fiscal year.

B. Semi-Annual Shared Risk Pool Reconciliation and Settlement

1. No later than February 28 of each year, CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool for the
immediately preceding semi-annual period July 1 through December 31.
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a.

CalOptima shall calculate the Shared Risk Budget for the semi-annual period July 1 through
December 31. The Shared Risk Budget shall include all components detailed in Sections
I1.C and 11.D of this policy related to Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group within
the semi-annual period, and for dates of service within the semi-annual period.

CalOptima shall calculate Shared Risk Expenses for the semi-annual period July 1 through
December 31. The Shared Risk Expenses shall include all components detailed in Sections
I1.E and I1.F of this policy for dates of service within the semi-annual period.

CalOptima shall reduce Shared Risk Expenses for the semi-annual period by:

i. Any applicable copayments, deductibles, or third-party payments collected by
CalOptima or a Provider for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the
Shared Risk Group within the semi-annual period; and

ii. Any recoveries, including overpayments, for dates of service within the semi-annual
period related to Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the Shared
Risk Group.

2. CalOptima shall compute and settle the semi-annual Shared Risk Pool surplus or deficit by
deducting the Shared Risk Expenses from the Shared Risk Budget for the semi-annual period.

a.

If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, CalOptima shall pay the
Shared Risk Group an amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less any deficits
from the previous annual settlement. Any surplus distributions are an advance against the
projected final surplus. The remaining forty percent (40%) of the surplus shall remain in the
Shared Risk Pool.

If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in deficit, no advance payment shall
be made to the Shared Risk Group.

C. Annual Shared Risk Pool Reconciliation and Settlement

1. No later than October 31 of each year, CalOptima shall provide the Shared Risk Group with an
Annual Shared Risk Program Report. The Annual Shared Risk Program Report shall show
reconciliation of allocations, deposits, expenses, and disbursements during the immediately
preceding fiscal year, and the status of the Shared Risk Pool.

a.

CalOptima shall calculate the Shared Risk Budget for the annual reconciliation in
accordance with Sections I1.C and 11.D of this policy. The Shared Risk Budget for the fiscal
year shall include:

i. The Hospital Budget Capitation Allocation for Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Group within that fiscal year, including any retroactivity within (90) calendar days after
the end of the fiscal year;

ii. Monies recovered by CalOptima or a Provider from Coordination of Benefits for dates
of service within that fiscal year and recovered within ninety (90) calendar days after
the end of the fiscal year;
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iii. Reinsurance recovery amounts for dates of service within that fiscal year and identified
within ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the fiscal year; and

iv. Supplemental OB Delivery Care payments for dates of service within that fiscal year
and identified within ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the fiscal year.

CalOptima shall calculate Shared Risk Expenses for the annual reconciliation in accordance
with Sections I11.E and I1.F of this policy. Shared Risk Expenses for the fiscal year shall
include:

i. Claims for Shared Risk Services for dates of service within that fiscal year and paid
within ninety (90) calendar days following the end of the fiscal year;

ii. An estimate of IBNR expenses for Shared Risk Services rendered within that fiscal
year, based on historical claims for Shared Risk Services for dates of service within that
fiscal year and paid up to ninety (90) calendar days following the end of the fiscal year;

iii. Administrative expenses as established in the Contract for Health Care Services; and

iv. Any reinsurance premiums paid by CalOptima within that fiscal year allocable to the
Shared Risk Group.

Shared Risk Expenses shall not include:

i. Reimbursement for a High Cost Exclusion Item as set forth in CalOptima Policy
FF.1005c: Special Payments — High Cost Exclusion Items.

CalOptima shall reduce Shared Risk Expenses for the fiscal year by:

i. Any applicable copayments, deductibles, or third-party payments collected by
CalOptima or a Provider for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the
Shared Risk Group during that fiscal year within ninety (90) calendar days after the end
of the fiscal year; and

ii. Any recoveries, including overpayments, for dates of service within that fiscal year
related to Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Group and received within ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the fiscal year.

If CalOptima identifies any Shared Risk Expenses past ninety (90) calendar days following
the end of the fiscal year, CalOptima shall deduct such Shared Risk Expenses from the
Shared Risk Budget as part of the subsequent fiscal year’s update for that Shared Risk
Period pursuant to Section 111.C.3 of this policy.

2. CalOptima shall compute the annual Shared Risk Pool surplus or deficit by deducting the
Shared Risk Expenses from the Shared Risk Budget for the fiscal year.

a.

If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, the Annual Shared Risk
Program Report shall reflect that the amount payable to the Shared Risk Group will be an
amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less any advance amounts paid at the
semi-annual reconciliation period as described in Section 111.B.2.a of this policy, and less
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3.

any deficits carried forward from the previous annual settlement. CalOptima shall retain the
balance of the Shared Risk Pool.

b. If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in deficit, the Annual Shared Risk
Program Report shall reflect that CalOptima shall carry forward an amount equal to sixty
percent (60%) of that deficit into the next fiscal year’s semi-annual and/or annual
reconciliation, along with any additional deficits carried forward from the previous annual
settlement, except as otherwise established in the Contract for Health Care Services.

Each Annual Shared Risk Program Report shall include refreshed reports from the previous two
(2) annual shared risk periods. CalOptima shall refresh the Annual Shared Risk Program Report
at the time of the following Shared Risk Period’s annual settlement to update IBNR and actual
claims payment for previous shared risk periods. After two (2) years, the refreshed Annual
Shared Risk Program Report should not contain IBNR and shall be considered final. (e.g., FY16
Shared Risk Period [July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016] will be final October 31, 2018).

If, upon review of the Annual Shared Risk Program Report, the Shared Risk Group objects to
the calculations and determination, the Shared Risk Group may complete and submit the Risk
Pool Claims Objection Form and any supporting documentation to the CalOptima Accounting
Department within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the Annual Shared Risk
Program Report.

a. If CalOptima does not receive any written objection from the Shared Risk Group within
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the Annual Shared Risk Program Report, CalOptima
shall settle the Shared Risk Pool and apply any surplus or deficit within fifteen (15)
calendar days after the expiration of the review period, no later than December 15. Such
settlement shall be considered final.

b. If CalOptima receives written notice of objection from a Shared Risk Group within the
objection period, CalOptima shall re-evaluate its calculations based on additional
documentation provided by the Shared Risk Group and provide a final Annual Shared Risk
Program Report to the Shared Risk Group within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt
of the written objection.

c. CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool based on this final Annual Shared Risk
Program Report and apply any surplus or deficit within fifteen (15) calendar days after the
date of issuance of the final Annual Shared Risk Program Report.

D. Shared Risk Pool Settlement upon Termination

1.

Within one-hundred-twenty (120) calendar days after the effective date of termination of the
Contract for Health Care Services with a Shared Risk Group, CalOptima shall provide the
terminated Shared Risk Group with a Final Reconciliation and Settlement Report.

a. CalOptima shall calculate the Shared Risk Budget for the reconciliation upon termination in

accordance with Sections 11.C and 11.D of this policy. The Shared Risk Budget for the
reconciliation upon termination shall include:
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The Hospital Budget Capitation Allocation for Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Group within that fiscal year and up to the effective date of termination, including any
retroactivity within ninety (90) calendar days after the effective date of termination;

Monies recovered by CalOptima or a Provider from Coordination of Benefits for dates
of service within that fiscal year and up to the effective date of termination, recovered
within ninety (90) calendar days after the effective date of termination;

Reinsurance coverage amounts for dates of service within the fiscal year and up to the
effective date of termination, identified no later than ninety (90) calendar days after the
effective date of termination; and

Supplemental OB Delivery Care payments for dates of service within that fiscal year
and up to the effective date of termination, identified within ninety (90) calendar days
after the effective date of termination.

b. CalOptima shall calculate Shared Risk Expenses for the reconciliation upon termination in
accordance with Sections I1.E and I1.F of this policy. Shared Risk Expenses for the
reconciliation upon termination shall include:

Claims for Shared Risk Services for dates of service within that fiscal year and up to the
effective date of termination, paid within ninety (90) calendar days following the
effective date of termination;

An estimate of IBNR expenses for Shared Risk Services rendered within that fiscal year
and up to the effective date of termination, based on historical claims for Shared Risk
Services for dates of service within that fiscal year and paid up to ninety (90) calendar
days following the effective date of termination;

Administrative expenses as established in the Contract for Health Care Services; and

Any reinsurance premiums paid by CalOptima within that fiscal year and up to the
effective date of termination allocable to the Shared Risk Group.

c. Shared Risk Expenses shall not include:

Reimbursement for a High Cost Exclusion Item as set forth in CalOptima Policy
FF.1005.c: Special Payments — High Cost Exclusion Items.

d. CalOptima shall reduce Shared Risk Expenses for the fiscal year by:

Any applicable copayments, deductibles, or third-party payments collected by
CalOptima or a Provider for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the
Shared Risk Group during that fiscal year within ninety (90) calendar days after the
effective date of termination; and

Any recoveries, including overpayments, for dates of service within that fiscal year and
up to the effective date of termination related to Shared Risk Services provided to
Members assigned to the Shared Risk Group and received within ninety (90) calendar
days after the effective date of termination.
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2. CalOptima shall compute the final Shared Risk Pool surplus or deficit by deducting the Shared
Risk Expenses from the Shared Risk Budget for the final fiscal year.

a. If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in surplus, the Final Shared Risk
Program Report shall reflect that the amount payable to the Shared Risk Group will be an
amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of that surplus, less amounts paid at the semi-annual
reconciliation period (if applicable), and less any deficits from the previous annual
settlement, if not already subtracted at the semi-annual reconciliation period. CalOptima
shall retain the balance of the Shared Risk Pool.

b. If CalOptima determines that the Shared Risk Pool is in deficit, the Final Shared Risk
Program Report shall reflect that the Shared Risk Group shall not be responsible for any
portion of that deficit.

3. If, upon review of the Final Shared Risk Program Report, the Shared Risk Group objects to the
calculations and determination, the Shared Risk Group may complete and submit the Risk Pool
Claims Objection Form and any supporting documentation to the CalOptima Accounting
Department within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the Final Shared Risk
Program Report.

a. If CalOptima does not receive any written objection from the Shared Risk Group within
thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the Final Shared Risk Program Report,
CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool and apply any surplus or deficit within fifteen
(15) calendar days after the expiration of the review period. Such settlement shall be
considered final.

b. If CalOptima receives written notice of objection from the Shared Risk Group, CalOptima
shall re-evaluate its calculations based on additional documentation provided by the Shared
Risk Group and provide any revisions to the Final Shared Risk Program Report to the
Shared Risk Group within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of the written
objection.

c. CalOptima shall settle the Shared Risk Pool based on the revised Final Shared Risk
Program Report and apply any surplus or deficit within fifteen (15) calendar days after the
date of issuance of the revised Final Shared Risk Program Report.

V. ATTACHMENTS

A. Risk Pool Claims Objection Form

REFERENCES

moowp

CalOptima Contract for Health Care Services

CalOptima Policy FF.1007: Health Network Reinsurance Coverage

CalOptima Policy FF.1005c¢: Special Payments — High Cost Exclusion Items

CalOptima Policy FF.2003: Coordination of Benefits

CalOptima Policy FF.1005f: Special Payments: Supplemental OB Delivery Care Payment
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VI. REGULATORY AGENCY APPROVALS

VII.

VIII.

A. 03/14/11:

BOARD ACTIONS

Department of Health Care Services

A. 09/06/18: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
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IX. GLOSSARY

Term Definition

California The public health program that assures the delivery of specialized diagnostic,

Children’s treatment, and therapy services to financially and medically eligible persons

Services (CCS) under the age of twenty-one (21) years who have CCS-Eligible Conditions, as

Program defined in Title 22, California Code of Regulations (CCR), Sections 41515.2
through 41518.9.

California Chronic medical conditions, including but not limited to, cystic fibrosis,

Children’s hemophilia, cerebral palsy, heart disease, cancer, traumatic injuries and

Services (CCS) infectious disease producing major sequelae.

Eligible Condition

Contract for The written instrument between CalOptima and Physicians, Hospitals, Health

Health Care Maintenance Organizations (HMO), or other entities. Contract shall include any

Services Memoranda of Understanding entered into by CalOptima that is binding on a
Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC) or HMO, DHCS Medi-Cal Managed
Cared Division Policy Letters, Contract Interpretation, and Financial Bulletins
issued pursuant to the Contract.

Contracted A hospital that has entered into a CalOptima Hospital Services Contract to

CalOptima provide hospital services to CalOptima Direct Members.

Hospital

Coordination of A method for determining the order of payment for medical or other

Benefits (COB) care/treatment benefits where the primary health plan pays for covered benefits

as it would without the presence of a secondary health plan.

Corrective Action

A plan delineating specific and identifiable activities or undertakings that

Exclusion ltem

Plan (CAP) address and are designed to correct program deficiencies or problems identified
by formal audits or monitoring activities by CalOptima, the State, or designated
representatives. Health Networks and Providers may be required to complete a
CAP to ensure that they are in compliance with statutory, regulatory,
contractual, CalOptima policy, and other requirements identified by CalOptima
and its regulators.

Division of A matrix that identifies how CalOptima identifies the responsible parties for

Financial components of medical associated with the provision of Covered Services. The

Responsibility responsible parties include, but are not limited to, Physician, Hospital,

(DOFR) CalOptima and the County of Orange.

High Cost Specific high-cost items that are excluded from a Contracted Hospital’s

outpatient reimbursement or inpatient per diem rate.

Hospital Budget
Capitation
Allocation

The amount equal to the Hospital Risk Pool Capitation (PMPM) set forth in the
contract multiplied by the number of Members assigned to the Shared Risk
Physician.

Incurred But Not
Reported (IBNR)

IBNR means “incurred but not reported,” and refers to an estimate of claims
that have been incurred for medical services provided, but for which claims
have not yet been received by the Health Network.

Member

A Medi-Cal eligible beneficiary as determined by the County of Orange Social
Services Agency, the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS)
Medi-Cal Program, or the United States Social Security Administration, who is
enrolled in the CalOptima program.
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Term Definition
Provider A physician, nurse, nurse mid-wife, nurse practitioner, medical technician,
physician assistant, hospital, laboratory, ancillary provider, health maintenance
organization, or other person or institution that furnishes Covered Services.
Shared Risk The total amount that CalOptima allocates to the Shared Risk Pool to pay for
Budget Shared Risk Services set forth in the DOFR of the contract.
Shared Risk Includes:
Expenses Amounts paid for Shared Risk Services provided to Members assigned to the
Shared Risk Group;
An estimate of Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) expenses;
Administrative expenses at a rate established in the Contract for Health Care
Services; and
Any reinsurance premiums paid by CalOptima allocable to the Shared Risk
Group.
Shared Risk A Health Network who accepts delegated clinical and financial responsibility
Group for professional services for assigned Members, as defined by written contract

and enters into a risk sharing agreement with CalOptima as the responsible
partner for facility services.

Shared Risk Pool

The risk sharing program, under which the risk for the provision of Shared Risk
Services to Members is shared and allocated between CalOptima and the
contracted Health Network.
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Hospital Shared Risk Pool
Shared Risk Group:

Risk Pool Period
Date of Service:

Date of Payment:

Line Of Business

Medi-Cal
OneCare
OneCare Connect

CalOptima
Start Date of [ End Date of Requested 2nd Level CalOptima | Potential Claim
Iltem # [ Payment Question/Issue | CalOptima Claim No. | Member Name | Provider Name Service Service [ Amount Paid | Date of Payment Credit CalOptima Review | GARS Appeal Review [ Overpayment
$ - $ -
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. Policy #: FF.4000
Medi-Cal  Title: Whole-Child Model - Financial
Reimbursement for Capitated Health

[0 CalOptima

A Public Agency

Better. Together. Department: Finance

Section: Accounting

CEO Approval: Michael Schrader
Effective Date: 01/01/19

Last Review Date: Not applicable

Last Revised Date: Not applicable

PURPOSE

This policy establishes the reimbursement process for CalOptima to distribute Whole-Child
Model (WCM) payments timely and accurately to Health Networks, including Health
Maintenance Organizations (HMO), Physician Hospital Consortiums (PHC), and Shared Risk
Groups (SRG).

POLICY

A

CalOptima shall pay the Health Network in accordance with the Health Network’s Contract
for Health Care Services, the CalOptima Board of Directors (BOD)-approved payment
methodology, and the term and conditions of this policy.

CalOptima’s WCM reimbursement methodology for Health Networks is based on the number
of California Children’s Services (CCS) Program-eligible Members, as reported by the
California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and enrolled in Health Networks
during the applicable period.

If DHCS identifies that an individual was not eligible for the CCS Program and retroactively
terminates eligibility, CalOptima shall recover payments made to the Health Networks for
such individual.

The measurement period for WCM payments is established by calendar year (CY).
CalOptima shall keep each measurement period open for three (3) consecutive calendar years
(Year 1, Year 2, and Year 3) before the payment is considered closed (e.g., measurement
period CY 2019 will be finalized on December 31, 2021).

CalOptima reimburses Health Networks for services rendered to enrolled CCS-eligible
Members based on a methodology that includes the following components described in this
Policy:

1. Initial Capitation Payments;

2. Interim catastrophic payment; and

3. Retrospective risk corridor settlements.
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FF.4000
Whole-Child Model — Financial Reimbursement for
Capitated Health Networks

Policy #:

Title: Effective Date: 01/01/19

F. The WCM payment timelines are:

1. Initial Capitation Payment: CalOptima shall pay monthly on or before the fifteenth (15%)
calendar day of the month.

refreshed data for each measurement period as follows:

2. Interim catastrophic reimbursement: CalOptima shall pay quarterly based on the

CCS Eligible and Claims | Claims Payment Period Risk Corridor Settlement

Incurred for Dates of (Payment/ Recoupment)

Service Date

a. January 1 - March 31, | Year 1 paid through March | No later than June 15, Year
Year 1l 31 1

b. January 1 —June 30, Year 1 paid through June No later than September
Year 1 30 15, Year 1

¢. January 1 — September | Year 1 paid through No later than December
30, Year 1 September 30 15, Year 1

d. January 1 — December | Year 1 paid through No later than March 15,
31, Year 1 December 31 Year 2

e. January 1 - December | Year 1 paid through March | No later than June 15, Year
31, Year 1l 31, Year 2 2

refreshed data for each measurement period as follows:

3. Retrospective risk corridor settlement: CalOptima shall pay annually based on the

CCSs Eligible and Claims
Incurred for Dates of
Service

Claims Payment Period

Risk Corridor Settlement
(Payment/ Recoupment)
Date

a. January 1 — December

Year 1 paid through June

No later than November

31, Year 1l 30, Year 2 15, Year 2
b. January 1 — December | Year 1 paid through June No later than November
31, Year 1l 30, Year 3 15, Year 3
c. January 1 — December | Year 1 paid through June No later than November
31, Year 1l 30, Year 4 15, Year 4
1. PROCEDURE

A

Initial Capitation Payment

1. CalOptima shall provide monthly capitation payments for CCS-eligible Members

enrolled to the Health Networks at Capitation Rates per Member per month (PMPM)
developed by CalOptima, approved by the BOD and set forth in the Health Network’s
Contract for Health Care Services.

CalOptima shall process the initial Capitation Payment in accordance with CalOptima
Policy FF.1001: Capitation Payments. CalOptima shall issue one (1) payment that
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includes the initial Capitation Payment for CCS-eligible Members combined with the
Capitation Payment for non-CCS eligible Members.

Interim Catastrophic Reimbursement

1. Health Networks shall submit claims paid for covered hospital and covered physician
expenses rendered to enrolled CCS-eligible Members monthly by the fifteenth (15th)
calendar day after the month ends for all open measurement periods. Health Networks
shall submit claims using CalOptima proprietary format and file naming convention.

a. An HMO shall submit claims for covered hospital and covered physician expenses;

b. The Primary Physician Group of a PHC shall submit claims for covered physician
expenses;

c. The Primary Hospital of a PHC shall submit claims for covered hospital expenses;
and

d. An SRG shall submit claims for covered physician expenses.

2. CalOptima shall validate and reprice the submitted claims based on the CalOptima
contracted and non-contracted rates following the lesser of the amount paid for covered
physician and hospital expenses. Repricing will be made at fifty percent (50%) of the
amount paid if Medi-Cal has no value for the five-digit numerical Current Procedural
Terminology (CPT) code, Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS)
code, or other code as assigned by DHCS. The qualified claims, as determined by
CalOptima, shall represent the qualified WCM medical expenses used in the
reconciliation process for the interim catastrophic reimbursement. Outlier claims may be
subject to additional review for potential adjustment of the payment methodology to
represent what CalOptima would have paid under similar circumstances, not to exceed
actual payments made.

3. Upon request, an eligible Health Network shall provide, within ten (10) business days,
detailed support for any individual claim for which billed charges are greater than or
equal to ten thousand dollars ($10,000), including copies of the claim form, cancelled
check, explanation of benefits (EOB), Remittance Advice Detail (RAD), and other
information as requested by CalOptima. All non-contracted emergency hospital inpatient
claims require submission of the authorization distinguishing days considered emergency
and post-stabilization.

4. CalOptima shall notify an eligible Health Network of file acceptance or rejection within
ten (10) business days after receipt.

a. CalOptima may reject a file for any missing information or incorrect data.

b. If CalOptima rejects a file, the eligible Health Network shall resubmit a corrected file
within five (5) business days from receipt of notification from CalOptima.

Page 3 of 9
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5. An eligible Health Network may appeal claim denials and payments within sixty (60)
business days after the date of CalOptima’s RAD.

a. The eligible Health Network shall submit a request for appeal, in writing, to
CalOptima at:
WCMReimb@caloptima.org

Or by U.S. mail to:
Attention: Coding Initiatives Department—Reinsurance Claims
CalOptima
505 City Parkway West
Orange, CA 92868

b. An appeals claims submission file shall only include specific claims to be
reconsidered.

c. The eligible Health Network shall provide detailed claims support for each claim,
including copies of the claim form, cancelled check, EOB, RAD, or any other
information, as requested by CalOptima.

d. CalOptima shall notify the eligible Health Network of file acceptance or rejection
within ten (10) business days after receipt of the appeal file.

i. CalOptima may reject a file for any missing information or incorrect data.

ii. If CalOptima rejects a file, the eligible Health Network shall resubmit a corrected
file within five (5) business days after receipt of notification from CalOptima.

e. CalOptima shall process an appeal and provide an eligible Health Network with
detailed reports within forty-five (45) business days after receipt of the appeal.

6. For each CCS eligible Member in a given measurement period, CalOptima shall
reimburse at one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of the covered hospital and
covered physician expenses rendered to enrolled CCS-eligible Members in excess of the
thresholds which are:

a. $17,000 for covered physician expenses; and
b. $150,000 for covered hospital expenses.

7. CalOptima shall reconcile covered physician and covered hospital expenses separately.
CalOptima shall issue interim catastrophic payments to Health Networks in accordance
with the timelines in Section I1.F.2 of this policy.

C. Retrospective Risk Corridor

1. After the June claims submission, CalOptima shall perform an annual retrospective risk
corridor reconciliation for all open measurement periods.

Page 4 of 9
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2. CalOptima shall validate and reprice the submitted claims documents based on the lesser
of the CalOptima contracted and non-contracted rates or the amount actually paid for
covered physician and hospital expenses. Repricing will be made at fifty percent (50%)

ONOULLESE WN -

29
30
31
32
33
34
35

of the amount paid if Medi-Cal has no value for the five-digit numerical CPT code,
HCPCS code, or other code as assigned by the DHCS. The qualified claims, as
determined by CalOptima, shall represent the covered hospital and covered physician
expenses rendered to enrolled CCS-eligible Members used in the retrospective risk
corridor reconciliation. Similar to the interim catastrophic reimbursement, outlier claims

may be subject to additional review for potential adjustment of the payment methodology
to represent what CalOptima would have paid under similar circumstances, not to exceed

actual payments made.

CalOptima shall perform the retrospective risk corridor reconciliation for physician
Capitation and hospital Capitation separately.

a. The baseline for the retrospective risk corridor reconciliation is an amount equal to
the total Capitation Rate PMPM less the administrative and medical management
loads PMPM developed by CalOptima, approved by the BOD, and set forth in the
Health Network’s Contract for Health Care Services, multiplied by the number of
CCS eligible Members enrolled in the Health Networks during the applicable
measurement period.

b. The net difference between the baseline and the qualified WCM medical expenses
from Section 111.C.2 of this policy shall be applied to the risk corridor ranges
approved by the BOD to determine an amount to be added or subtracted in the
retrospective risk corridor reconciliation and referred to as risk corridor result in this

policy.

Threshold CalOptima’s
Risk/Surplus Share

> 115% 95%

115% 90%

105% 75%

102% 50%

100% 0%

98% 50%

95% 75%

85% 90%

< 85% 100%

c. If atotal of baseline and risk corridor result subtracting initial Capitation Payments
(less the administrative and medical management loads) and interim catastrophic
reimbursement from Sections I11.A and 111.B of this policy respectively for the
applicable measurement period results in a positive amount, the retrospective risk
corridor reconciliation computes the risk corridor payment.
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Title:
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VI.

VII.

d. If atotal of baseline and risk corridor result subtracting initial Capitation Payments
and interim catastrophic reimbursement from Sections I11.A and 111.B of this policy
respectively for the applicable measurement period results in a negative amount, the
retrospective risk corridor reconciliation computes the risk corridor recoupment.

e. Administrative and medical management components of CCS reimbursement will be
adjusted based on the actual payout amount at previously established percentage.

No later than October 31, CalOptima shall provide the retrospective risk corridor
reconciliation to the Health Networks. If, upon review of the retrospective risk corridor
reconciliation, the Health Networks object to the calculations or medical expenses
determination, the Health Networks may follow the dispute process outlined in section
111.B.5. of this policy within thirty (30) calendar days from the issuance of the
retrospective risk corridor reconciliation.

If CalOptima does not receive any written objection from the Health Networks,
CalOptima shall pay the risk corridor payment within fifteen (15) calendar days after the
expiration of the review period or deduct the risk corridor recoupment from the initial
Capitation Payment of a month following the expiration of the review period.

If CalOptima receives written objection from the Health Networks within the objection
period, CalOptima shall review and provide responses to the Health Networks within
forty-five (45) calendar days after the date of receipt of the written objection.

CalOptima shall pay the risk corridor payment within fifteen (15) calendar days after the
date of issuance of the final retrospective risk corridor reconciliation or deduct the risk
corridor recoupment from the initial Capitation Payment of a month following the
issuance of the final retrospective risk corridor reconciliation.

D. Medical expenses used in the reconciliation process for interim catastrophic reimbursement
and retrospective risk corridor settlement shall be consistent with the financial risk in
accordance with the Division of Financial Responsibility (DOFR) of the Health Network’s
Contract for Health Care Services.

ATTACHMENTS

Not Applicable

REFERENCES

A. CalOptima Contract for Health Care Services
B. CalOptima Policy FF.1001: Capitation Payments

REGULATORY AGENCY APPROVALS
A. None to Date

BOARD ACTIONS
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A. TBD: Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

VIIl. REVIEW/REVISION HISTORY

Version Date Policy Policy Title Line(s) of
Number Business
Effective 01/01/2019 | FF.4000 Whole-Child Model — Financial Medi-Cal

Reimbursement for Capitated
Health Networks
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Title: Whole-Child Model — Financial Reimbursement for Effective Date: 01/01/19
Capitated Health Networks
IX. GLOSSARY
Term Definition
Aid Code The two (2) character code, defined by the State of California, which

identifies the aid category under which a Member is eligible to receive
Medi-Cal Covered Services.

California Children’s
Services (CCS)
Program

The public health program that assures the delivery of specialized
diagnostic, treatment, and therapy services to financially and medically
eligible persons under the age of twenty-one (21) years who have CCS-
Eligible Conditions, as defined in Title 22, California Code of Regulations
(CCR), Sections 41515.2 through 41518.9.

Capitation Rate

The per capita rate set by CalOptima for the delivery of Covered Services to
Members based upon Aid Code, age, and gender.

Capitation Payment

The monthly amount paid to a Health Network by CalOptima for delivery
of Covered Services to Members, which is determined by multiplying the
applicable Capitation Rate by a Health Network’s monthly enrollment
based upon Aid Code, age, and gender.

Contract for Health
Care Services

The written instrument between CalOptima and Physicians, Hospitals,
Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO), or other entities. Contract shall
include any Memoranda of Understanding entered into by CalOptima that is
binding on a Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC) or HMO, DHCS Medi-
Cal Managed Cared Division Policy Letters, Contract Interpretation, and
Financial Bulletins issued pursuant to the Contract.

Covered Services

Those services provided in the Fee-For-Service Medi-Cal program, as set
forth in Title 22, CCR, Division 3, Subdivision 1, Chapter 3, beginning with
Section 51301, and Title 17, CCR, Chapter 4, Subchapter 13, Article 4,
beginning with Section 6840, which are included as Covered Services under
CalOptima’s Contract with DHCS and are Medically Necessary, along with
chiropractic services (as defined in Section 51308 of Title 22, CCR),
podiatry services (as defined in Section 51310 of Title 22, CCR), and
speech pathology services and audiology services (as defined in Section
51309 of Title 22, CCR), which shall be covered for Members not
withstanding whether such benefits are provided under the Fee-For-Service
Medi-Cal program.

Division of Financial
Responsibility
(DOFR)

A matrix that identifies how CalOptima identifies the responsible parties for
components of medical associated with the provision of Covered Services.
The responsible parties include, but are not limited to, Physician, Hospital,
CalOptima and the County of Orange

Health Maintenance
Organization (HMO)

A health care service plan, as defined in the Knox-Keene Health Care
Service Plan Act of 1975, as amended, commencing with Section 1340 of
the California Health and Safety Code.

Health Network

A Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC), physician group under a shared
risk contract, and Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) that contracts
with CalOptima to provide Covered Services to Members enrolled to that
Health Network.

Page 8 of 9
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Term Definition
Member A Medi-Cal eligible beneficiary as determined by the County of Orange

Social Services Agency, the California Department of Health Care Services
(DHCS) Medi-Cal Program, or the United States Social Security
Administration, who is enrolled in the CalOptima program.

Measurement Period

Calendar year January 1 to December 31

Open Measurement
Period

The measurement year will remain open until the third annual report is
issued to health network

Physician Hospital
Consortium (PHC)

A Physician Group or Physician Groups contractually aligned with at least
one (1) hospital, as described in CalOptima’s Contract for Health Care
Services.

Primary Hospital

A hospital contracted with CalOptima on a capitated and delegated basis as
the hospital partner of a Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC).

Primary Physician
Group

A physician group contracted with CalOptima on a capitated and delegated
basis as the physician partner of a Physician Hospital Consortium (PHC).

Shared Risk Group

A Health Network who accepts delegated clinical and financial
responsibility for professional services for assigned Members, as defined by
written contract and enters into a risk sharing agreement with CalOptima as
the responsible partner for facility services.

Page 9 of 9
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Attachment to October 4, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting
- Agenda Item 7

CALOPTIMA BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL

Action To Be Taken August 2, 2018
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Report Item
3. Consider Actions Related to CalOptima’s Medi-Cal Whole-Child Model Program Provider

Payment Methodology

Contact
Greg Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Actions
Approve provider payment methodology for the CalOptima Medi-Cal Whole-Child Model (WCM)
program.

Background
The California Children’s Services (CCS) Program is a statewide program providing medical care,

case management, physical/occupational therapy, and financial assistance for children (to age 21)
meeting financial and health condition eligibility criteria. On September 25, 2016, Governor Brown
signed Senate Bill (SB) 586 into law, which authorizes the California Department of Health Care
Services (DHCS) to incorporate CCS services into Medi-Cal managed care plan (MCP) contracts for
county organized health systems (COHS). This transition is referred to as the WCM program.
WCM’s goals include improving coordination and integration of services to meet the needs of the
whole child, retaining CCS program standards, supporting active family participation, and maintaining
member-provider relationships, where possible.

DHCS will implement the WCM program on a phased-in basis, with implementation for Orange
County scheduled to begin no sooner than January 1, 2019. CalOptima will assume financial
responsibility for the authorization and payment of CCS-eligible medical services, including service
authorization activities, claims management (with some exceptions), case management, and quality
oversight. DHCS will retain responsibility for program oversight, CCS provider paneling, and claims
payment for Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) services. The Orange County Health Care Agency
(OC HCA) will remain responsible for CCS eligibility determination for all children and for CCS
services for non-Medi-Cal members, including individuals who exceed the Medi-Cal income
thresholds and undocumented children who transition out of CalOptima when they turn 18 years old.
OC HCA will also remain responsible for Medical Therapy Program (MTP) services and the Pediatric
Palliative Care Waiver.

In order to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements, CalOptima will refer to SB 586, guidance
issued by DHCS through All Plan Letters (APL), plan contract amendments and readiness
requirements, and CCS requirements published in the CCS Numbered Letters. Previously, CCS was
carved-out of CalOptima’s Medi-Cal MCP contract. As such, CalOptima CCS services were not
included in the existing delivery model or health network contracts. CalOptima members receiving
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CCS services were enrolled with CalOptima Direct (COD), CalOptima’s Community Network (CCN),
or other contracted health networks.

To meet the goals of the WCM, beginning January 1, 2019, CalOptima plans to allow members
receiving CCS services to remain enrolled with either CalOptima’s Community Network or other
contracted CalOptima health networks. CalOptima will delegate CCS services to health networks
according to the current health network models. The three health network models include Health
Maintenance Organization (HMO), Physician-Hospital Consortium (PHC), or Shared-Risk Group
(SRQG).

Discussion

DHCS Capitation Rates

CalOptima received draft Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 (effective January 2019 — June 2019) capitation
rates from DHCS on April 27, 2018. The rates reflect reimbursement for both CCS and non-CCS
services. CalOptima will continue to monitor the sufficiency of the WCM rates, and work closely with
DHCS to ensure adequate Medi-Cal revenue to support the new program.

Projected Medical Costs

Staff has analyzed high-level data on the transitioning CCS-eligible group provided by the State.
Generally, the transitioning group appears to incur extensive medical costs that are highly variable and
volatile. In addition, the WCM population is relatively small, which reduces the ability to spread high
cost cases across a larger enrollment. CalOptima has limited experience data available to forecast
medical expenses and to make definitive assessments of potential financial risks.

Provider Payment Model

In order to mitigate potential financial risks to the health networks resulting from the implementation
of the WCM program, CalOptima recommends creating a new provider reimbursement methodology
specific to the WCM population, as summarized below. The goal of the new reimbursement
methodology is to reduce the likelihood of unreasonable financial burdens on health networks due to
potentially high costs for the WCM population. The following sections describe CalOptima’s
proposed WCM provider reimbursement by network arrangement type.

CalOptima Direct Networks (COD/CCN)
For direct fee-for-service providers, reimbursement will depend on whether the providers are
contracted with CalOptima and whether they are paneled to provide CCS services.

For non-professional services, including hospital and ancillary, CalOptima will pay contracted
providers at the contracted rate for both CCS and non-CCS members. CalOptima will reimburse non-
contracted providers at 100% of the designated Medi-Cal payment rates.

For professional specialist services, CalOptima will continue to reimburse providers under the current
CCS payment policy. Providers who are CCS paneled, whether they are contracted or non-contracted,
will be reimbursed at 140% of the Medi-Cal Fee Schedule for all services provided to members under
21.
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Service Type Contracted Provider Non-Contracted Provider

Hospital & Ancillary Contracted Rates 100% of CalOptima Medi-
Cal Fee Schedule

PCP Contracted Rates 100% of CalOptima Medi-
Cal Fee Schedule

CCS Paneled Specialist 140% of CalOptima Medi- 140% of CalOptima Medi-
Cal Fee Schedule Cal Fee Schedule

Non-CCS Paneled Specialist | Contracted Rates 100% of CalOptima Medi-
Cal Fee Schedule

Delegated Health Networks (HMO/PHC/SRG)

To ensure adequate revenue is provided to support the WCM program, CalOptima will develop
actuarially sound capitation rates that are consistent with the projected risks that will be delegated to
capitated health networks and hospitals. To develop the initial capitation rate, CalOptima will employ
the following methods:

Establish estimated professional and hospital capitation rates that are consistent with DHCS’
pricing methodology and include payments for CCS and non-CCS services;

Align the service category pricing as closely as possible to the contracted division of financial
responsibility associated with each health network and hospital;

Carve out financial risk from the capitation rate for prescription drugs, managed long-term
services and supports, and high cost conditions, including but not limited to members
diagnosed with hemophilia, members in treatment for end stage renal disease (ESRD),
members receiving an organ transplant, and maintenance and transportation costs for specific
cases requiring special arrangements;

Exclude projected expenses from the capitation rate for catastrophic cases. CalOptima will
reimburse expenses to delegated health networks and hospitals through an interim catastrophic
reimbursement process and risk corridor settlement;

Apply blended capitation rates developed across all members and that are not separated into
different age/gender bands. However, CalOptima will apply an age/gender factor by health
network to adjust for cost variances due to the enrollment mix;

Apply acuity risk factors to adjust for cost variances due to medical acuity; and

Include an administration load to the both the professional and hospital capitation rates to
address administrative expenses and medical management. The proposed 6.6% administration
load is consistent the amount DHCS applies to CalOptima’s WCM capitation rate. As
proposed, CalOptima will keep this percentage fixed to ensure that health networks and
hospitals are adequately compensated for the expenditures required to implement and manage
the WCM program.

CalOptima recognizes that medical costs for CCS members can be highly variable and volatile,
possibly resulting in material cost differences between different periods and among different providers.
To mitigate these financial risks and ensure that networks will receive sufficient and timely
compensation, CalOptima will implement two retrospective reimbursement mechanisms: (1) Interim
reimbursement for catastrophic cases and (2) Retrospective risk corridor.
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2)

Interim Reimbursement for Catastrophic Cases: The purpose of providing interim catastrophic
reimbursement payments is to mitigate potential cash flow shortfalls due to the occurrence of
high cost cases. CalOptima proposes implementing the following process to reimburse
delegated health networks and hospitals for catastrophic cases to supplement their monthly
capitation payments:

o Reimbursement will be determined by the total delegated medical costs incurred for a given
member within a given reconciliation period. If the total delegated medical costs for a
given member exceed a prescribed threshold, CalOptima will reimburse the provider for the
costs in excess of the threshold;

o CalOptima will evaluate professional expenses and hospital expenses for a given member
separately and will apply CalOptima’s existing reinsurance thresholds of $17,000 per
member per year for professional expenses and $150,000 per member per year for hospital
expenses. CalOptima will not apply a coinsurance level to members in the WCM program;

o Networks will be required to submit complete and accurate payment data to substantiate all
incurred expenses. Payment data will be validated and repriced, similar to CalOptima’s
existing reinsurance reimbursement process; and

o Initially, CalOptima will process the interim catastrophic reimbursement on a quarterly
basis to minimize cash flow issues for health networks and hospitals. However, CalOptima
may adjust the frequency of the reimbursement process in the event a health network or
hospital requires reimbursement on a more timely basis.

Retrospective Risk Corridor: CalOptima will implement a retrospective risk corridor to better
align health network and hospital capitation to their incurred costs. Risk corridors can serve as
a safety net for providers that incur a high level of expenses relative to the capitation that they
receive. CalOptima will work with health networks and hospitals to construct risk corridor
parameters that provide adequate compensation, while still maintaining a reasonable financial
incentive to efficiently manage utilization and costs. The risk corridor will be based on the
following parameters:

o Risk corridors will only apply to the medical component (excludes medical management
and administration expenses) of the WCM capitation rate;

o The prospective capitation rate will be used as the basis for the risk corridor reconciliation.
CalOptima will also account for funding previously paid through the interim catastrophic
reimbursement payment process during the reconciliation process;

o The number of risk corridors applied and the range of each will be determined from an
evaluation of projected risk to the delegated health networks and hospitals. Risk corridors
will be set at levels that were projected to achieve an optimal balance that provides
sufficient risk mitigation and financial incentives for providers;

o Each risk corridor will have an associated percentage that splits risk between CalOptima
and the provider. Similarly, risk sharing will be set at levels that achieve an optimal
balance that provides sufficient risk mitigation and financial incentives for providers. The
following table gives the proposed risk corridor ranges and risk sharing percentages:
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Medical Loss Ratio | CalOptima’s Description
Threshold Risk/Surplus
Share

>115% 95% CalOptima will reimburse 95% of incurred
medical expenses that are >115%

>105% to < 115% 90% CalOptima will reimburse 90% of incurred
medical expenses that are >105% and < 115%

>102% to < 105% 75% CalOptima will reimburse 75% of incurred
medical expenses that are >102% and < 105%

>100% to < 102% 50% CalOptima will reimburse 50% of incurred
medical expenses that are >100% and < 102%

100% 0% No change in reimbursement

<100% to > 98% 50% CalOptima will recoup 50% of capitation if
medical expenses are <100% and > 98%

<98% to > 95% 75% CalOptima will recoup 75% of capitation if
medical expenses are <98% and > 95%

<95% to > 85% 90% CalOptima will recoup 90% of capitation if
medical expenses are <95% and > 85%

<85% 100% CalOptima will recoup 100% of capitation if

medical expenses are <85%

* Risk corridor will be evaluated from the medical component of the capitation rate.

For SRG and PHC networks, risk corridor reconciliations will be evaluated separately for
each capitation type (e.g. professional capitation and hospital capitation). For HMO health
networks, risk corridor reconciliations will be evaluated against total capitation, which may
include professional, hospital, pharmacy, or other delegated services, if applicable; and
Risk corridor reconciliations will be performed on a calendar year basis, beginning with the
period from January 1, 2019, to December 31, 2019. CalOptima may adjust the frequency
as more experience becomes available. Each annual reconciliation report shall include
refreshed reports from the previous two (2) annual settlement periods. After two (2) years,
the refreshed report shall be considered final.

Fiscal Impact
Based on draft capitation rates received from DHCS on April 27, 2018, staff estimates the total annual

WCM program costs at approximately $274 million. Management has included projected revenues
and expenses associated with the WCM program in the CalOptima FY 2018-19 Operating Budget
approved by the Board on June 7, 2018. However, given the high acuity and medical utilization
associated with a relatively small CCS population, costs for the program are difficult to predict.
CalOptima will continue to work closely with DHCS to ensure that Medi-Cal revenue will be
sufficient to support the WCM program.

Considering the limited data available on the CCS population, the volatility associated with the cost of
providing their care, and the protections being proposed for the health networks, the underlying
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assumption behind the staff recommendation is that the state will ensure that the program is adequately
funded. If this assumption were to prove inaccurate, the program could potentially represent
significant economic downside to CalOptima.

Rationale for Recommendation

The recommended actions will enable CalOptima to operationally prepare for the anticipated January
1, 2019, transition of CCS to the WCM, and to mitigate financial risks to our delegated health
networks and hospitals.

Concurrence
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel

Attachments
None

/s/  Michael Schrader 7/25/2018
Authorized Signature Date
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gg Department of Health Care Services

JENNIFER KENT EDMUND G. BROWN JR.
DIRECTOR GOVERNOR
DATE: June 7, 2018

ALL PLAN LETTER 18-011

TO: ALL MEDI-CAL MANAGED CARE HEALTH PLANS PARTICIPATING IN
THE WHOLE CHILD MODEL PROGRAM

SUBJECT: CALIFORNIA CHILDREN'S SERVICES WHOLE CHILD MODEL
PROGRAM

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this All Plan Letter (APL) is to provide direction to Medi-Cal managed
care health plans (MCPs) participating in the California Children’s Services (CCS)
Whole Child Model (WCM) program. This APL conforms with CCS Numbered Letter
(N.L.) 04-0618,* which provides direction and guidance to county CCS programs on
requirements pertaining to the implementation of the WCM program.

BACKGROUND:

Senate Bill (SB) 586 (Hernandez, Chapter 625, Statutes of 2016) authorized the
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to establish the WCM program in
designated County Organized Health System (COHS) or Regional Health Authority
counties.? The purpose of the WCM program is to incorporate CCS covered services into
Medi-Cal managed care for CCS-eligible members. MCPs operating in WCM counties
will integrate Medi-Cal managed care and county CCS Program administrative functions
to provide comprehensive treatment of the whole child and care coordination in the areas
of primary, specialty, and behavioral health for CCS-eligible and non-CCS-eligible
conditions.® 4

MCPs will authorize care that is consistent with CCS Program standards and provided by
CCS-paneled providers, approved special care centers, and approved pediatric acute
care hospitals. The WCM program will support active participation by parents and
families of CCS-eligible members and ensure that members receive protections such as

1 The CCS Numbered Letter index is available at: http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/ccs/Pages/CCSNL.aspx
2 SB 586 is available at: https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtm|?bill id=201520160SB586
3 See Health and Safety Code (HSC) Section 123850(b)(1), which is available at:
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=123850.

4 See Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) Section 14094.11, which is available at:
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.11.&lawCode=WIC

Managed Care Quality and Monitoring Division
1501 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 997413, MS 4400
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413
Phone (916) 449-5000 Fax (916) 449-5005
wimekdtue s garghay
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continuity of care (COC), oversight of network adequacy standards, and quality
performance of providers.

WCM will be implemented in 21 specified counties, beginning no sooner than July 1,
2018. Upon determination by DHCS of the MCPs’ readiness to address the needs of the
CCS-eligible members, MCPs must transition CCS-eligible members into their MCP
network of providers by their scheduled implementation date as follows:

MCP COHS Counties
Phase 1 — No sooner than July 1, 2018

CenCal Health San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara

Central California Alliance for Health Merced, Monterey, Santa Cruz

Health Plan of San Mateo San Mateo

Phase 2 — No sooner than January 1, 2019

CalOptima Orange

Partnership Health Plan Del Norte, Humboldt, Lake, Lassen,
Marin, Mendocino, Modoc, Napa, Shasta,
Siskiyou, Solano, Sonoma, Trinity, Yolo

POLICY:

Starting no sooner than July 1, 2018, MCPs in designated counties shall assume full
financial responsibility, with some exceptions, of authorization and payment of CCS-
eligible medical services, including service authorization activities, claims processing and
payment, case management, and quality oversight.

Under the WCM, the MCP, county CCS program, and DHCS will each bear responsibility
for various administrative functions to support the CCS Program. Responsibilities for the
CCS Program’s eligibility functions under the WCM are determined by whether the
county CCS program operates as an independent or dependent county.® Independent
CCS counties will maintain responsibility for CCS Program medical eligibility
determinations for potential members, including responding to and tracking appeals
relating to CCS Program medical eligibility determinations and annual medical eligibility
redeterminations. In dependent counties, DHCS will continue to maintain responsibility
for CCS Program medical eligibility determinations and redeterminations, while the
county CCS programs will maintain responsibility for financial and residential eligibility
determinations and re-determinations. The MCP is responsible for providing all medical
utilization and other clinical data for purposes of completing the annual medical

5 A link to the Division of Responsibility chart can be found on the CCS WCM website at:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/ccs/Pages/CCSWholeChildModel.aspx
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redetermination and other medical determinations, as needed, for the CCS-eligible
member.

MCPs are responsible for identifying and referring potential CCS-eligible members to the
county for CCS Program eligibility determination. MCPs are also required to provide
services to CCS-eligible members with other health coverage (OHC), with full scope
Medi-Cal as payor of last resort.

The implementation of WCM does not impact the activities and functions of the Medical
Therapy Program (MTP) and Pediatric Palliative Care Waiver (PPCW). WCM counties
participating with the MTP and PPCW will continue to receive a separate allocation for
these programs. The MCP is responsible for care coordination of services that remain
carved-out of the MCP’s contractual responsibilities.

MCPs are required to use all current and applicable CCS Program guidelines, including
CCS Program regulations, additional forthcoming regulations related to the WCM
program, CCS Numbered Letters (N.L.s),® and county CCS program information notices,
in the development of criteria for use by the MCP’s chief medical officer or equivalent
and other care management staff. In addition to the requirements included in this APL,
MCPs must comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and
contractual requirements.

l. MCP AND COUNTY COORDINATION

MCPs and county CCS programs must coordinate the delivery of CCS services to CCS-
eligible members. A quarterly meeting between the MCP and the county CCS program
must be established to assist with overall coordination by updating policies, procedures,
and protocols, as appropriate, and to discuss activities related to the Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) and other WCM related matters.

A. Memorandum of Understanding
MCPs and county CCS programs must execute a MOU outlining their respective
responsibilities and obligations under the WCM using the MOU template posted
on the CCS WCM page of the DHCS website.” The purpose of the MOU is to
explain how the MCPs and county CCS programs will coordinate care, conduct
program management activities, and exchange information required for the
effective and seamless delivery of services to WCM members. The MOU between
the individual county and the MCP will serve as the primary vehicle for ensuring

6 The CCS Numbered Letter index is available at: http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/ccs/Pages/CCSNL.aspx
7 A link to the MOU template can be found on the CCS WCM website at:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/ccs/Pages/CCSWholeChildModel.aspx
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collaboration between the MCP and county CCS program. The MOU can be
customized based on the needs of the individual county CCS program and the
MCP, consistent with the requirements of SB 586 and dependent upon DHCS
approval. The MOU must include, at a minimum, all of the provisions specified in
the MOU template. Phase 1 MCPs must have submitted an executed MOU, or
proved intent and/or progress made towards an executed MOU, by March 31,
2018. Phase 2 MCPs must submit an executed MOU, or prove intent and/or
progress made toward an executed MOU, by September 28, 2018. All WCM
MOUSs are subject to DHCS approval.

B. Transition Plan
Each MCP must develop a comprehensive plan detailing the transition of existing
CCS beneficiaries into managed care for treatment of their CCS-eligible
conditions. The transition plan must describe collaboration between the MCP and
the county CCS program on the transfer of case management, care coordination,
provider referrals, and service authorization administrative functions from the
county CCS program to the MCPs.2 The transition plan must also include
communication with beneficiaries regarding, but not limited to, authorizations,
provider network, case management, and ensuring continuity of care and services
for beneficiaries in the process of aging out of CCS. The county CCS programs
are required to provide input and collaborate with MCPs on the development of
the transition plan. MCPs must submit transition plans to DHCS for approval.

C. Inter-County Transfer
County CCS programs use CMSNet to house and share data needed for Inter-
County Transfers (ICTs), while MCPs utilize different data systems. Through their
respective MOUs, the MCPs and county CCS programs will develop protocols for
the exchange of ICT data, as necessary, including authorization data, member
data, and case management information, to ensure an efficient transition of the
CCS member and allow for COC of already approved service authorization
requests, as required by this APL and applicable state and federal laws.

When a CCS-eligible member moves from a WCM county to a non-WCM county,
the county CCS program and MCP, through their respective MOUs, will exchange
ICT data. County CCS programs will continue to be responsible for providing
transfer data, including clinical and other relevant data, from one county to
another. When a CCS eligible member moves out of a WCM county, the county
CCS program will notify the MCP and initiate the data transfer request. The MCP
is responsible for providing transfer data, including clinical and other relevant data

8 See WIC Section 14094.7(d)(4)(C), which is available at:
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=14094.7.
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for members to the county CCS program office. The county CCS program will
then coordinate the sharing of CCS-eligible member data to the new county of
residence. Similarly, when a member moves into a WCM county, the county CCS
program will provide transfer data to the MCP as applicable.

. Dispute Resolution and Provider Grievances

Disagreements between the MCP and the county CCS program regarding CCS
medical eligibility determinations must be resolved by the county CCS program, in
consultation with DHCS.® The county CCS program shall communicate all resolved
disputes in writing to the MCP within a timely manner. Disputes between the MCP and
the county CCS program that are unable to be resolved will be referred by either entity
to DHCS, via email to CCSWCM@dhcs.ca.gov, for review and final determination.?

MCPs must have a formal process to accept, acknowledge, and resolve provider
disputes and grievances.'! A CCS provider may submit a dispute or grievance
concerning the processing of a payment or non-payment of a claim by the MCP
directly to the MCP. The dispute resolution process must be communicated by each
MCP to all of its CCS providers.

MCP RESPONSIBILITIES TO CCS-ELIGIBLE MEMBERS

. Risk Level and Needs Assessment Process

The MCP will assess each CCS child’s or youth’s risk level and needs by
performing a risk assessment process using means such as telephonic or in-
person communication, review of utilization and claims processing data, or by
other means. MCPs are required to develop and complete the risk assessment
process for WCM transition members, newly CCS-eligible members, or new CCS
members enrolling in the MCP. The risk assessment process must include the
development of a pediatric risk stratification process (PRSP) and an Individual
Care Plan (ICP) for high risk members. All requirements are dependent on the
member’s risk level that is determined through the PRSP. Furthermore, nothing in
this APL shall remove or limit existing survey or assessment requirements that the
MCPs are responsible for outside WCM.

9 See WIC Section 14093.06(b), which is available at:
http://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=14093.06.

10 Unresolved disputes must be referred to: CCSWCM@dhcs.ca.gov
11 See WIC Section 14094.15(d), which is available at:
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=14094.15.
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1. Pediatric Risk Stratification Process

MCPs must develop a pediatric risk stratification mechanism, or algorithm, to
assess the CCS-eligible member’s risk level that will be used to classify
members into high and low risk categories, allowing the MCP to identify
members who have more complex health care needs.

MCPs are required to complete a risk stratification within 45 days of enroliment
for all members including new members, newly CCS-eligible members, or
WCM transition members. The risk stratification will assess the member’s risk
level by:

¢ Review of medical utilization and claims processing data, including data
received from the county and DHCS;

e Utilization of existing member assessment or survey data; and

e Telephonic or in-person communications, if available at time of PRSP.

Members that do not have any medical utilization data, claims processing data
history, or other assessments and/or survey information available will
automatically be categorized as high risk until further assessment data is
gathered to make an additional risk determination. The PRSP must be
submitted to DHCS for review and approval.

Risk Assessment and Individual Care Plan Process

MCPs must develop a process to assess a member’s current health, including
the CCS condition, to ensure that each CCS-eligible member receives case
management, care coordination, provider referral, and/or service authorization
from a CCS paneled provider; this will be dependent upon the member’'s
designation as high or low risk.

New Members and Newly CCS-eligible Members Determined High Risk
Members identified as high risk through the PRSP must be further assessed
by telephonic and/or in-person communication or a risk assessment survey
within 90 calendar days of enroliment to assist in the development of the
member’s ICP. Any risk assessment survey created by the MCP for the
purposes of WCM is subject to review and approval by DHCS.

Risk Assessment
The risk assessment process must address:

a) General Health Status and Recent Health Care Utilization. This may
include, but is not limited to, caretaker self-report of child’s health;
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outpatient, emergency room, or inpatient visits; and school days missed
due to illness, over a specified duration of time.

b) Health History. This includes both CCS and non-CCS diagnoses and past
surgeries.

c) Specialty Provider Referral Needs.
d) Prescription Medication Utilization.

e) Specialized or Customized Durable Medical Equipment (DME) Needs (if
applicable).

f) Need for Specialized Therapies (if applicable). This may include, but is not
limited to, physical, occupational, or speech therapies (PT/OT /ST), mental
or behavioral health services, and educational or developmental services.

g) Limitations of Activities of Daily Living or Daily Functioning (if applicable).

h) Demographics and Social History. This may include, but is not limited to,
member demographics, assessment of home and school environments,
and cultural and linguistic assessment.

The risk assessment process must be tailored to each CCS-eligible member’s
age group. At the MCP’s discretion, additional assessment questions may be
added to assess the need for or impact of future health care services. These
may include, but are not limited to, questions related to childhood
developmental milestones; pediatric depression, anxiety or attention deficit
screening; adolescent substance use; or adolescent sexual behaviors.

Individual Care Plan

MCPs are required to establish an ICP for all members determined high risk
based on the results of the risk assessment process, with particular focus on
specialty care, within 90 days of a completed risk assessment survey or other
assessment by telephonic and/or in-person communication.'? The ICP will, at
a minimum, incorporate the CCS-eligible member’s goals and preferences,
and provide measurable objectives and timetables to meet the needs for:

e Medical (primary care and CCS specialty) services;

e Mild to moderate or county specialty mental health services;

e Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment (EPSDT);
e County substance use disorder (SUD) or Drug Medi-Cal services;

12 See WIC Section 14094.11(b)(4), which is available at:
http://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.11.&lawCode=WIC

Back to Agenda


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.11.&lawCode=WIC
http:communication.12

ALL PLAN LETTER 18-011
Page 8

e Home health services;

e Regional center services; and

e Other medically necessary services provided within the MCP network,
or, when necessary, by an out-of-network provider.

The ICP will be developed by the MCP care management team and must be
completed in collaboration with the CCS-eligible member, member’s family,
and/or their designated caregiver. The ICP should indicate the level of care the
member requires (e.g., N0 case management, basic case management and
care coordination, or complex case management). The ICP should also
include the following information, as appropriate, and only if the information
has not already been provided as part of another MCP process:*?

a) Access for families so that families know where to go for ongoing
information, education, and support in order that they understand the goals,
treatment plan, and course of care for their child or youth and their role in
the process, what it means to have primary or specialty care for their child
or youth, when it is time to call a specialist, primary, urgent care, or
emergency room, what an interdisciplinary team is, and what the
community resources are.

b) A primary or specialty care physician who is the primary clinician for the
CCS-eligible member and who provides core clinical management
functions.

c) Care management and care coordination for the CCS-eligible member
across the health care system, including transitions among levels of care
and interdisciplinary care teams.

d) Provision of information about qualified professionals, community
resources, or other agencies for services or items outside the scope of
responsibility of the MCP.

Further, the MCP must reassess the member’s risk level and needs annually
at their CCS eligibility redetermination or upon significant change to the
member’s condition.

13 See WIC Section 14094.11(c), which is available at:
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.11.&lawCode=WIC
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New Members and Newly CCS-eligible Members Determined Low Risk

For new members and newly CCS-eligible members identified as lower risk,
the MCP must assess the member by telephonic and/or in-person
communication within 120 calendar days of their enrollment to determine the
member’s health care needs. The MCP is still required to provide care
coordination and case management services to low risk members.

The MCP must reassess the member’s risk level and need annually at their
CCS eligibility redetermination or upon significant change to the member’s
condition.

WCM Transitioning Members

For WCM transition members, the MCP must complete the PRSP within 45
days of transition, to determine each member’s risk level, and complete all
required telephonic and/or in-person communication and ICPs for high risk
members and all required telephonic and/or in-person communication for low
risk members within one year. Additionally, the MCP must reassess the
member’s risk level and need annually at their CCS eligibility redetermination,
or upon significant change to the member’s condition.

MCPs must submit to DHCS for review and approval a phase-in transition plan
establishing a process for completing all required telephonic or in-person
communication and ICPs within one year for WCM transition members.

Regardless of the risk level of a member, all communications, whether by
phone or mail, must inform the member and/or his or her designated caregiver
that the assessment will be provided in a linguistically and culturally
appropriate manner and identify the method by which the provider will arrange
for an in-person assessment.4

MCPs must refer all members, including new members, newly CCS-eligible
members and WCM transition members who may have developed a new
CCS-eligible condition, immediately to the county for CCS eligibility determination
and not wait until the annual CCS medical eligibility redetermination period.

B. Case Management and Care Coordination
MCPs must provide case management and care coordination for CCS-eligible
members and their families. MCPs must ensure that information, education and
support is continuously provided to the CCS-eligible member and their family to

14 See APL 99-005, which is available at:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/MMCDAPLsandPolicyLetters/APL1999/MMCDAPL99005.pdf
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assist in their understanding of the CCS-eligible member’s health, other available
services, and overall collaboration on the CCS-eligible member’s ICP. MCPs must
also coordinate services identified in the member’s ICP, including:*®

Primary and preventive care services with specialty care services
Medical therapy units (MTU)

EPSDT16

Regional center services

Home and community-based services

High Risk Infant Follow-Up Program

High Risk Infant Follow-Up (HRIF) is a program that helps identify infants who
might develop CCS-eligible conditions after they are discharged from a
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU). The MCP is responsible for coordinating
and authorizing HRIF services for members and ensuring HRIF case
management services. MCPs must notify the counties in writing, within 15
calendar days, of CCS-eligible neonates, infants, and children up to three
years of age that lose Medi-Cal coverage for HRIF services, and provide COC
information to the members.

Age-Out Planning Responsibility

MCPs must establish and maintain a process for preparing members
approaching WCM age limitations, including identification of primary care and
specialty care providers appropriate to the members’ CCS qualifying
condition(s).

MCPs must identify and track CCS-eligible members for the duration of their
participation in the WCM program and, for those continue to be enrolled in the
same MCP, for at least three years after they age-out of the WCM program.*’

Pediatric Provider Phase-Out Plan

A pediatric phase-out occurs when a treating CCS-paneled provider
determines that their services are no longer beneficial or appropriate to the
treatment to the child or youth. The MCPs must provide care coordination to

15 See WIC Section14094.11(b)(1)-(6), which is available at:
http://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=14094.11.

16 |f the scope of the federal EPSDT benefit is more generous than the scope of a benefit discussed in a
CCS N.L. or other guidance, the EPSDT standard of what is medically necessary to correct or ameliorate
the child’s condition must be applied. See APL 18-007, which is available at:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/MMCDAPLsandPolicyl etters/APL2018/APL18-007.pdf

17 See WIC Section 14094.12(j), which is available at:
http://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=14094.12.
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CCS-eligible members in need of an adult provider when the CCS-eligible
member no longer requires the service of a pediatric provider. The timing of
the transition should be individualized to take into consideration the member’'s
medical condition and the established need for care with adult providers.

C. Continuity of Care
MCPs must establish and maintain a process to allow for members to receive COC
with existing CCS provider(s) for up to 12 months, in accordance with WIC Section
14094.13.18 This APL does not alter the MCP’s obligation to fully comply with the
requirements of HSC Section 1373.96 and all other applicable APLs regarding
COC. The sections below include additional COC requirements that only pertain to
the WCM program.

1.

Specialized or Customized Durable Medical Equipment

If the MCP member has an established relationship with a specialized or
customized durable medical equipment (DME) provider, MCPs must provide
access to that provider for up to 12 months.*® MCPs are required to pay the
DME provider at rates that are at least equal to the applicable CCS fee-for-
service rates, unless the DME provider and the MCP enter into an agreement
on an alternative payment methodology that is mutually agreed upon. The MCP
may extend the COC period beyond 12 months for specialized or customized
DME still under warranty and deemed medically necessary by the treating
provider.2°

Specialized or Customized DME must meet all of the following criteria:

e Is uniquely constructed or substantially modified solely for the use of the
member.

e |Is made to order or adapted to meet the specific needs of the member.

e Is uniquely constructed, adapted, or modified such that it precludes use of
the DME by another individual and cannot be grouped with other items
meant for the same use for pricing purposes.

COC Case Management?!
MCPs must ensure CCS-eligible members receive expert case management,

18 See WIC Section 14094.13, which is available at:
http://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtm|?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=14094.13.

19 See WIC Section 14094.12(f), which is available at:
https://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.12.&lawCode=WIC

20 See WIC Section 14094.13(b)(3) is available at:
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.13.&lawCode=WIC

21 See WIC Section 14094.13(e), (f) and (g), which are available at:
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.13.&lawCode=WIC
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care coordination, service authorization, and provider referral services. MCPs
can meet this requirement by allowing the CCS-eligible member, member’s
family, or designated caregiver to request COC case management and care
coordination from the CCS-eligible member’s existing public health nurse
(PHN). The member must elect to continue receiving case management from
the PHN within 90 days of transition of CCS services to the MCP. In the event
the county PHN is unavailable, the MCP must provide the member with a MCP
case manager who has received adequate training on the county CCS
Program and who has clinical experience with the CCS population or pediatric
patients with complex medical conditions.

At least 60 days before the transition of CCS services to the MCP, the MCP
must provide a written notice to all CCS-eligible members explaining their right
to continue receiving case management and care coordination services The
MCP must send a follow-up notice 30 days prior to the start of the transition.

Authorized Prescription Drugs

CCS-eligible members transitioning into MCPs are allowed continued use of
any currently prescribed prescription drug that is part of their prescribed
therapy for the CCS-eligible condition. The CCS-eligible member must be
allowed to use the prescribed drug until the MCP and the prescribing physician
agree that the particular drug is no longer medically necessary or is no longer
prescribed by the county CCS program provider.??

Appealing COC Limitations

MCPs must provide CCS-eligible members with information regarding the
WCM appeal process for COC limitations, in writing, 60 days prior to the end of
their authorized COC period. The notice must explain the member’s right to
petition the MCP for an extension of the COC period, the criteria used to
evaluate the petition, and the appeals process if the MCP denies the petition.?3
The appeals process notice must include the following information:

e The CCS-eligible member must first appeal a COC decision with the MCP.

e A CCS-eligible member, member’s family or designated caregiver of the
CCS-eligible member may appeal the COC limitation to the DHCS director
or his or her designee after exhausting the MCP’s appeal process.

22 See WIC Section 14094.13(d)(2), which is available at:
https://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.13.&lawCode=WIC

23 See WIC Section 14094.13(k), which is available at:
https://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.13.&lawCode=WIC
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e The DHCS director or designee will have five (5) days from the date of
appeal to inform the family or caregiver of receipt of the request and must
provide a decision on the appeal within 30 calendar days from the date of
the request. If the member’s health is at risk, the DHCS director or designee
will inform the member of the decision within 72 hours.?*

In addition to the protections set forth above, MCP members also have COC rights
under current state law.

D. Grievance, Appeal, and State Fair Hearing Process
MCPs must ensure members are provided information on grievances, appeals
and state fair hearing processes. CCS-eligible members enrolled in managed care
are provided the same grievance, appeal and state fair hearing rights as provided
under state and federal law.?> MCPs must provide timely processes for accepting
and acting upon member complaints and grievances. Members appealing a CCS
eligibility determination must appeal to the county CCS program.

E. Transportation
MCPs must provide the CCS Maintenance and Transportation (M&T) benefit for
CCS-eligible members or the member’s family seeking transportation to a medical
service related to their CCS-eligible condition when the cost of M&T presents a
barrier to accessing authorized CCS services. M&T services include meals, lodging,
and other necessary costs (i.e. parking, tolls, etc.), in addition to transportation
expenses, and must comply with all requirements listed in N.L. 03-0810.2¢ These
services include, but are not limited to, M&T for out of county and out of state
services.

MCPs must also comply with all requirements listed in APL 17-010% for CCS-
eligible members to obtain non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) and
non-medical transportation (NMT) for all other services not related to their CCS-
eligible condition or if the member requires standard transportation that does not
require M&T.

24 See APL 17-006, which is available at:

http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/ MMCDAPLsandPolicyLetters/APL2017/APL17-006.pdf
25 See APL 17-006

26 See CCS N.L. 03-0810, which is available at:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/ccs/Documents/ccsnl030810. pdf

27 APL 17-010 is available at:

http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/ MMCDAPLsandPolicylLetters/APL2017/APL17-010.pdf
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F. Out-of-Network Access

MCPs must allow CCS-eligible members access to out-of-network providers in
order to obtain medically necessary services if the MCP has no specialists that
treat the CCS-eligible condition within the MCP’s provider network or if in-network
providers are unable to meet timely access standards. CCS-eligible members and
providers are required to follow the MCP’s authorization policy and procedures to
obtain appropriate approvals before accessing an out-of-network provider. MCPs
must ensure that CCS-eligible members requesting services from out-of-network
providers are provided accurate information on how to request and seek approval
for out-of-network services. MCPs cannot deny out-of-network services based on
cost or location. Transportation must be provided for members obtaining out-of-
network services.

. Advisory Committees

MCPs must establish a quarterly Family Advisory Committee (FAC) for CCS
families composed of a diverse group of families that represent a range of
conditions, disabilities, and demographics. The FAC must also include local
providers, including, but not limited to, parent centers, such as family resource
centers, family empowerment centers, and parent training and information
centers.?® Members serving on this advisory committee may receive a reasonable
per diem payment to enable in-person participation in the advisory committee.?® A
representative of this committee will be invited to serve as a member of the
statewide DHCS CCS stakeholder advisory group.

MCPs must also establish a quarterly Clinical Advisory Committee composed of
the MCP’s chief medical officer or equivalent, the county CCS medical director,
and at least four CCS-paneled providers to advise on clinical issues relating to
CCS conditions.3°

WCM Payment Structure

. Payment and Fee Rate

MCPs are required to pay providers at rates that are at least equal to the
applicable CCS fee-for-service rates, unless the provider and the MCP enter into

28 See WIC Section 14094.7(d)(3), which is available at:
https://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.7.&lawCode=WIC

29 See WIC Section 14094.17(b)(2), which is available at:
https://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.17.&lawCode=WIC

30 See WIC Section 14094.17(a), which is available at:
https://leginfo.leqgislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.17.&lawCode=WIC
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an agreement on an alternative payment methodology that is mutually agreed
upon.3t

The payor for NICU services is as follows: an MCP shall pay for NICU services in
counties where NICU is carved into the MCP’s rate, and DHCS shall pay in
counties where NICU is carved out of the MCP’s rate.®?

For WCM counties, all NICU authorizations will be sent to the MCP in which the
child is enrolled. The MCP will review authorizations and determine whether or not
the services meet CCS NICU requirements. However, claims may be processed
and paid by either DHCS or the MCP.

In counties where CCS NICU is carved into the MCP’s rate, the MCP will pay all
NICU and CCS NICU claims. For counties where CCS is currently carved-out, the
MCP will process and pay non-CCS NICU claims, and the State’s Fiscal
Intermediary will pay CCS NICU claims. Payments made by State’s Fiscal
Intermediary will be based on the MCP’s approval of meeting CCS NICU
requirements.

The chart below identifies the entity responsible for NICU acuity assessment,
authorization, and payment function activities for WCM:

NICU Payor
CCS NICU Acuity Authorization (Facility/
Assessment Physician)
Carved-In Counties:
Marin, Merced,
Monterey, Napa, San
Luis Obispo, San MCP MCP MCP
Mateo, Santa
Barbara, Santa Cruz,
Solano, and Yolo

31 See WIC Section 14094.16(b), which is available at:
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=14094.16.

32 See the Division of Responsibility chart
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NICU Payor
CCS NICU Acuity Authorization (Facility/
Assessment Physician)
Carved-Out:

Del Norte, Humboldt,
Lake, Lassen,
Mendocino, Modoc, MCP MCP DHCS
Orange, Shasta,
Siskiyou, Sonoma,
and Trinity

MCP Responsibilities to DHCS

. Network Certification

MCPs are required to have an adequate network of providers to serve the CCS-
eligible population including physicians, specialists, allied professionals, Special
Care Centers, hospitals, home health agencies, and specialized and customizable
DME providers. Each network of providers will be reviewed by DHCS and certified
annually.

The certification requires the MCP and their delegated entities to submit updated
policies and procedures and an updated provider network template to ensure the
MCP’s network of providers meets network adequacy requirements as described in
the Network Certification APL Attachments.33

MCPs must demonstrate that the provider network contains an adequate provider
overlap with CCS-paneled providers. MCPs must submit provider network
documentation to DHCS, as described in APL 18-005. Members cannot be limited
to a single delegated entity’s provider network. The MCP must ensure members
have access to all medically necessary CCS-paneled providers within the MCP’s
entire provider network. MCPs must submit policies and procedures to DHCS no
later than 105 days before the start of the contract year.

. CCS Paneling and Provider Credentialing Requirements

Physicians and other provider types must be CCS-paneled with full or provisional

33 APL 18-005 and its attachments are available at:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Pages/AllPlanLetters.aspx
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approval status.3* MCPs cannot panel CCS providers; however, they must ensure
that CCS providers in their provider network have an active panel status. MCPs
should direct providers who need to be paneled to the CCS Provider Paneling
website.*>* The MCPs can view the DHCS CCS-paneled provider list online to
ensure providers are credentialed and continue contracting with additional CCS-
paneled providers.36

MCPs are required to verify the credentials of all contracted CCS-paneled
providers to ensure the providers are actively CCS-paneled and authorized to
treat CCS-eligible members. The MCP’s written policies and procedures must
follow the credentialing and recredentialing guidelines of APL 17-019.3” MCPs
must develop and maintain written policies and procedures that pertain to the
initial credentialing, recredentialing, recertification, and reappointment of providers
within their network.

C. Utilization Management
MCPs must develop, implement, and update, as needed, a utilization
management (UM) program that ensures appropriate processes are used to
review and approve medically necessary covered services. MCPs are responsible
for ensuring that the UM program includes the following items:38

e Procedures for pre-authorization, concurrent review, and retrospective review.

e A list of services requiring prior authorization and the utilization review criteria.

e Procedures for the utilization review appeals process for providers and
members.

e Procedures that specify timeframes for medical authorization.

e Procedures to detect both under- and over-utilization of health care services.

In addition to the UM processes above, MCPs are responsible for conducting
NICU acuity assessments and authorizations in all WCM counties.®®

34 See the Medi-Cal Provider Manual on CCS Provider Paneling Requirements, which is available at:
https://files.medi-cal.ca.gov/pubsdoco/publications/masters-

mtp/part2/calchildpanel m00i00003004007009011a02a04a05a06a07a08p00v00.doc

35 Children’s Medical Services CCS Provider Paneling is available at:
https://cmsprovider.cahwnet.gov/PANEL/index.jsp

36 The CCS Paneled Providers List is available at: https://cmsprovider.cahwnet.gov/prv/pnp.pdf

37 APL 17-019 is available at:

http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/ MMCDAPLsandPolicyLetters/APL2017/APL17-019.pdf
38 See the COHS Boilerplate Contract, Exhibit A, Attachment 5, Utilization Management. The COHS
Boilerplate Contract is available at:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/provgovpart/Pages/MMCDBoilerplateContracts.aspx

39 See WIC 14094.65, which is available at:

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=14094.65.&lawCode=WIC
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D. MCP Reporting Requirements

1.

Quality Performance Measures

DHCS will develop pediatric plan performance standards and measurements,
including health outcomes of children with special health care needs. MCPs
are required to report data on the identified performance measures in a form
and manner specified by DHCS.

. Reporting and Monitoring

DHCS will develop specific monitoring and oversight standards for MCPs. MCPs
are required to report WCM encounters as outlined in the most recent DHCS
Companion Guide for X12 Standard File Format for encounter data reporting.
MCPs are also required to report all contracted CCS-paneled providers as
outlined in the most recent DHCS Companion Guide for X12 Standard File
Format for provider network data. Both companions guides can be attained by
emailing the Encounter Data mailbox at MMCDEnNcounterData@dhcs.ca.gov.
MCPs must submit additionally required data in a form and manner specified by
DHCS and must comply with all contractual requirements.

E. Delegation of Authority
In addition to the requirements of this APL, MCPs are responsible for complying
with, and ensuring that their delegates also comply with, all applicable state and
federal laws and regulations, contract requirements, and other DHCS guidance,
including other APLs, Policy Letters, and Dual Plan Letters. Each MCP must
communicate these requirements to all delegated entities and subcontractors. In
addition, MCPs must comply with all requirements listed in APL 17-004.40 If you
have any questions regarding this APL, please contact your Managed Care
Operations Division contract manager.

Sincerely,

Original signed by Nathan Nau

Nathan Nau, Chief
Managed Care Quality and Monitoring Division

40 APL 17-004 is available at:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/ MMCDAPLsandPolicyLetters/APL2017/APL17-004.pdf
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CALOPTIMA BOARD ACTION AGENDA REFERRAL

Action To Be Taken October 4, 2018
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Report Item
8. Consider Modifications and Development of CalOptima Policies and Procedures Related to

Whole-Child Model and Annual Policy Review

Contact

Candice Gomez, Executive Director, Program Implementation, (714) 246-8400
Tracy Hitzeman, Executive Director, Clinical Operations, (714) 246-8400
Sesha Mudunuri, Executive Director, Operations, (714) 246-8400

Recommended Actions
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to modify existing and develop new Policies and
Procedures in connection with Whole Child Model initiative as follows:
1. FF.1003: Payment for Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima Direct, or a
Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group [Medi-Cal]
2. GG.1101: California Children’s Services [Medi-Cal]
3. GG.1112: Standing Referral to Specialist Provider or Specialty Care Center [Medi-Cal,
OneCare, OneCare Connect]
4. GG.1325: Continuity of Care for Medi-Cal Beneficiaries Who Transfer into CalOptima [Medi-
Cal]
5. GG.1330: Case Management — California Children’s Services Program/Whole Child Model
[Medi-Cal]
6. GG.1531: Criteria and Authorization Process for Wheelchair Rental, Purchase, and Repair
[Medi-Cal, OneCare, OneCare Connect]
7. GG.1535: Utilization Review Criteria and Guidelines [Medi-Cal, OneCare, OneCare Connect]
8. GG. 1547: Maintenance and Transportation [Medi-Cal]

Background/Discussion

Periodically, CalOptima establishes new or modifies existing Policies and Procedures to implement
new or modified, laws, regulatory guidance, contracts and business practices. CalOptima has
established an annual policy review process by which Policies and Procedures are updated and subject
to peer review. New and modified Policy and Procedures are developed on an ad hoc basis as new
laws, regulations, guidelines, or programs are established. Most recently, the following have impacted
CalOptima’s Policies and Procedures:

Whole-Child Model

CalOptima expects to integrate California Children’s Services (CCS) into its Medi-Cal managed care
plan through the Whole-Child Model (WCM) effective January 1, 2019. On June 7, 2018, the
CalOptima Board of Directors authorized execution of an Amendment to the Primary Agreement
between DHCS and CalOptima with respect to implementation of the WCM program. On September
6, 2018, the CalOptima Board of Directors authorized the Chief Executive Officer to modify existing
and develop new Policies and Procedures in connection with WCM. Principle guidance is outlined in
Senate Bill 586, signed by Governor Brown on September 25, 2016, and the DHCS’s All Plan Letter
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(APL) 18-011 released on June 28, 2018. In addition, DHCS has provided additional reporting
requirements and implementation deliverables.

Below is additional information regarding the new and modified policies:

1.

FF.1003: Payment for Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima Direct, or a
Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group outlines CalOptima’s payment methodologies for
a provider or practitioner that provides covered services to a member of CalOptima Direct or a
member enrolled in a shared risk group. For those members enrolled in a shared risk group,
this policy shall only apply to covered services for which CalOptima is financially responsible,
in accordance with the Division of Financial Responsibility (DOFR). CalOptima revised
policy pursuant to the CalOptima annual review process to incorporate relevant language
pertaining to the American Indian Health Service Program and ensure compliance with the
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), All Plan Letter (APL) 17-020: American Indian
Health Programs, including APL attachment 1 (revised 08/07/18) and attachment 2 (revised
01/12/18).

GG.1101: California Children’s Services, which includes attachment A, defines the
guidelines for coordination of care between CalOptima or a health network and the local
California Children’s Services (CCS) program for members eligible with the California
Children’s Services (CCS) program and transitioned into the Whole Child Model (WCM)
program, newly CCS-eligible members, or new CCS members enrolling in CalOptima,
including the identification and referral of members with CCS-eligible conditions. CalOptima
revised policy pursuant to the CalOptima annual review process to ensure compliance with
the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), All Plan Letter (APL) 18-011: California
Children’s Services Whole Child Model. Policy outlines CalOptima’s responsibility for
authorizations, claims and case management beginning January 1, 2019.

GG.1112: Standing Referral to Specialist Provider or Specialty Care Center defines the
conditions under which CalOptima and its health networks shall authorize a standing referral to
a specialty care provider or a specialty care center. CalOptima revised policy pursuant to the
CalOptima annual review process to incorporate standing referrals for members with California
Children’s Services (CCS)-eligible conditions under the Whole Child Model (WCM) effective
01/01/19 and update references to include CalOptima Policy GG.1500: Authorization
Instructions for CalOptima Direct and CalOptima Community Network Providers.

GG.1325: Continuity of Care for Medi-Cal Beneficiaries Who Transfer into CalOptima
establishes the continuity of care guidelines and the process to identify members who have
expedited care needs for newly enrolled Medi-Cal members who transition into CalOptima or
existing members whose covered services are transitioned from Medi-Cal Fee-for-Service
(FFS) to CalOptima. CalOptima revised policy pursuant to the CalOptima annual review
process to ensure compliance with the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), All Plan
Letter (APL) 18-008 (revised): Continuity of Care for Medi-Cal Members who Transition into
Medi-Cal Managed Care (supersedes APL 15-019) and APL 18-011 California Children’s
Services Whole Child Model Program.
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5. GG.1330: Case Management — California Children’s Services Program/Whole Child Model
defines the guidelines for the provision of case management by CalOptima or a health network
to CalOptima members eligible with the California Children’s Services (CCS) program and
transitioned into the Whole Child Model (WCM) program, newly CCS-eligible members or
new CCS members enrolling in CalOptima. CalOptima developed this policy to ensure
compliance with the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), All Plan Letter (APL) 18-
011: California Children’s Service Whole Child Model Program, as well as the Welfare and
Institutions Code §§ 14094.7(d)(4)(C), 14094.11(b)(1)-(6), 14094.11(c), 14094.12(j),
14094.13(e)-(g).

6. GG.1531: Criteria and Authorization Process for Wheelchair Rental, Purchase, and Repair
defines the criteria and process for coverage of a wheelchair, seating and positioning
components (SPC), and accessories for a member. CalOptima revised policy pursuant to the
CalOptima annual review process to align policy with current operational processes, clarify that
a health network will provide continuity of care for CCS eligible members transitioning into the
Whole Child Model (WCM) program with a specialized or customized durable medical
equipment provider, and ensure compliance with the Department of Health Care Services
(DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 18-011: California Children’s Services Whole Child Model
Program.

7. GG.1535: Utilization Review Criteria and Guidelines describes the process by which
CalOptima establishes utilization criteria and guidelines to ensure that decisions related to
utilization management and coverage or denial of organization determinations are made in a
consistent manner and comport with program requirements and local and national care
standards. CalOptima revised policy pursuant to the CalOptima review process to align policy
with current operational processes and ensure compliance with the Department of Health Care
Services (DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 18-011: California Children’s Services Whole Child
Model Program.

8. GG. 1547: Maintenance and Transportation defines the criteria and process for administration
of the maintenance and transportation benefit for CalOptima members eligible with the
California Children’s Services (CCS) program. CalOptima revised policy pursuant to the
CalOptima review process to align policy with current operational processes and ensure
compliance with the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 18-
011: California Children’s Services Whole Child Model Program.

Fiscal Impact
The recommended action to modify existing and develop new policies and procedures related to the

WCM program and the annual policy review is a budgeted item, with no anticipated additional fiscal
impact. Management has included projected medical and administrative expenses associated with the
WCM program and the annual policy review in the CalOptima Fiscal Year 2018-19 Operating Budget
approved by the Board on June 7, 2018. Staff expects the budgeted expenses will be sufficient to
cover the costs resulting from the revised or new policies and procedures.

Rationale for Recommendation
To ensure CalOptima's continuing commitment to conducting its operations in compliance with
ethical and legal standards and all applicable laws, regulations, and rules, CalOptima staff
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recommends that the Board approve and adopt the presented CalOptima Policies and Procedures. The
updated Policies and Procedures will supersede the prior versions.

Concurrence
Gary Crockett, Chief Counsel

Attachments

1. FF.1003: Payment for Covered Services Rendered to a Member of CalOptima Direct, or a Member
Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group [Medi-Cal]

2. GG.1101: California Children’s Services [Medi-Cal]

3. GG.1112: Standing Referral to Specialist Provider or Specialty Care Center [Medi-Cal, OneCare,
OneCare Connect]

4. GG.1325: Continuity of Care for Medi-Cal Beneficiaries Who Transfer into CalOptima [Medi-Cal]

5. GG.1330PP: Case Management — California Children’s Services Program/Whole Child Model
[Medi-Cal]

6. GG.1531: Criteria and Authorization Process for Wheelchair Rental, Purchase, and Repair [Medi-
Cal, OneCare, OneCare Connect]

7. GG.1535: Utilization Review Criteria and Guidelines [Medi-Cal, OneCare, OneCare Connect]

8. GG. 1547PP: Maintenance and Transportation [Medi-Cal]

9. DHCS All Plan Letter 17-020: 17-020: American Indian Health Programs, including attachment 1
(revised 08/07/18) and attachment 2 (revised 01/12/18).

10. DHCS All Plan Letter APL 18-008: Continuity of Care for Medi-Cal Members Who Transition
into Medi-Cal Managed Care

11. DHCS All Plan Letter 18-011 California Children’s Services Whole Child Model Program

/s/ Michael Schrader 9/26/2018
Authorized Signature Date
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[0 CalOptima

A Public Agency

. Policy #: FF.1003
Medi-Cal Title: Payment for Covered Services
Rendered to a Member of CalOptima
Direct, or a Member Enrolled in a

Better. Together. Shared Risk Group

Department: Claims Administration

Section: Not Applicable

CEO Approval: Michael Schrader
Effective Date: 01/01/07

Last Review Date:  10/04/1806/01/17
Last Revised Date: 10/04/1806/01/17

PURPOSE

This policy outlines CalOptima’s payment methodologies for a Provider or Practitioner that provides
Covered Services to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group. For
those Members enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, this policy shall only apply to Covered Services for
which CalOptima is financially responsible, in accordance with the Division of Financial Responsibility
(DOFR).

POLICY

A. Hospital Payment: Subject to all applicable Claims policies and Utilization Management (UM)
policies, CalOptima shall reimburse a hospital that provides Covered Services to a Member of
CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, as follows:

1. Contracted Hospital: CalOptima’s reimbursement to a CalOptima Contracted Hospital for
Covered Services provided to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared
Risk Group, shall be based on CalOptima Policy FF.1004: Payments for Hospitals Contracted to
Serve a Member of CalOptima Direct, CCN or a Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group.

2. Non-Contracted Hospital: CalOptima’s reimbursement to a Non-Contracted Hospital for
Covered Services provided to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared
Risk Group, that has received appropriate authorization, unless exempt from such authorization,
shall be in accordance with CalOptima Policy GG.1500: Authorization Instructions for
CalOptima Direct and CalOptima Community Network Providers, or the Shared Risk Group’s
prior authorization policies, shall be based on the following:

a. Outpatient Emergency and Non-Emergency Services: CalOptima shall reimburse non-
contracted outpatient Covered Services provided to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a
Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, at the same amount paid by the California
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) for the same services rendered to a Medi-Cal
beneficiary in the Medi-Cal Fee-for-Service (FFS) program, in accordance with Section
14091.3(c)(1) of the California Welfare and Institutions Code and Section 1932(b)(2)(D) of
the Social Security Act.

b. Emergency Inpatient Services: For dates of service on or after July 1, 2013, CalOptima

shall reimburse non-contracted emergency inpatient Covered Services provided to a
Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group using the All
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Policy #: FF.1003

Title:

Payments for Covered Services Rendered to a Member of
CalOptima Direct or a Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk
Group Revised Date:

10/04/1806/0447

Patient Refined Diagnosis Related Groups (APR-DRG) rates, in accordance with Section
14105.28 of the California Welfare and Institutions Code.

i. Interim claims shall be accepted for stays that exceed twenty-nine (29) calendar days.
CalOptima shall adopt the DHCS FFS per diem amount of six hundred dollars ($600).
Upon discharge, a hospital shall submit a single, admit-through-discharge claim.
CalOptima shall calculate the final payment by using the APR-DRG method and shall
be reduced by the interim payment(s) that were previously made.

Non-emergency Inpatient Services: In the absence of any negotiated rate agreed to, in
writing, between CalOptima and a hospital, CalOptima shall reimburse a hospital using the
APR-DRG rates, in accordance with Section 14105.28 of the California Welfare and
Institutions Code. Prior authorization is required for non-emergency inpatient services.

i. Interim claims shall be accepted for stays that exceed twenty-nine (29) calendar days.
CalOptima shall adopt the DHCS FFS per diem amount of six hundred dollars ($600).
Upon discharge, a hospital shall submit a single, admit-through-discharge claim.
CalOptima shall calculate the final payment by using the APR-DRG method and shall
be reduced by the interim payment(s) that were previously made.

Out of State Hospitals: For dates of service on or after July 1, 2013, CalOptima shall
reimburse a hospital located outside of California using the APR-DRG rates, in accordance
with Section 14105.28 of the California Welfare and Institutions Code.

Border Hospitals: For dates of service after July 1, 2015, CalOptima shall apply the State
Plan Amendment (SPA) 15-020 changes established in the Medi-Cal FFS system to the
DRG-based rates paid to out-of--network Border Hospitals for acute care hospital inpatient
emergency and post-stabilization services, with respect to admissions occurring on or after
July 1, 2015. CalOptima may pay a lower negotiated rate agreed to by the hospital.

3. Non-Emergency Non-Authorized Services: CalOptima shall not reimburse a hospital for any
services that are subject to authorization requirements, in accordance with CalOptima Policy
GG.1500: Authorization Instructions for CalOptima Direct and CalOptima Community
Network Providers, or the Shared Risk Group’s authorization policies, for which such
authorization has not been secured.

B. Practitioner Payment: For purposes of this policy a Practitioner does not include those Providers
who render services to Members that are not a benefit included in Covered Services provided by the
CalOptima Medi-Cal program. Subject to all applicable CalOptima Claims and Utilization
Management (UM) policies, CalOptima shall reimburse a Practitioner providing Covered Services
to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, as follows:

1. Contracted Practitioner: CalOptima shall reimburse a Contracted Practitioner based on the terms
and conditions of the contract between such Contracted Practitioner and CalOptima.

Non-Contracted Practitioner: CalOptima’s reimbursement to a Non-Contracted Practitioner for
Covered Services provided to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared
Risk Group, shall be based on the following:
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a. Emergency Services: CalOptima shall reimburse a Non-Contracted Practitioner that
provides Emergency Covered Services to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member
enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, at one hundred percent (100%) of the CalOptima Medi-

Cal

Fee Schedule but in no case less than the same amount paid by DHCS for the same

services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal FFS program.

b. Non-Emergency Services: CalOptima shall reimburse a Non-Contracted Practitioner for
Covered Services rendered to a Member of CalOptima Direct, or a Member enrolled in a
Shared Risk Group, for Covered Services for which CalOptima is financially responsible on
a fee-for-service basis as follows:

Vi.

Vil.

viii.

For dates of service on or after January 1, 2011, CalOptima shall reimburse professional
services at one hundred percent (100%) of the CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule but in
no case no less than the same amount paid by DHCS for the same services rendered to a
Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal FFS program. .

Except as otherwise provided inthis subsection, CalOptima shall reimburse a physician
who is a California Children’s Service (CCS) Program -paneled Provider, and who is
recognized as a specialist physician by CCS, at one hundred forty percent (140%) of the
CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule for Covered Services rendered to a Member who is
less than twenty-one (21) years of age.

CalOptima shall reimburse technical component of pathology, clinical laboratory, and
radiology services at one hundred percent (100%) of the CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee
Schedule but in no case no less than the same amount paid by DHCS for the same
services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal FFS program.

CalOptima shall reimburse Child Health and Disability Prevention (CHDP) services, as
set forth in CalOptima Policy GG.1116: Pediatric Preventive Services, at one hundred
percent (100%) of the CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule but in no case no less than the
same amount paid by DHCS for the same services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary
in the Medi-Cal FFS program.

CalOptima shall reimburse injectables at one hundred percent 100% of the CalOptima
Medi-Cal Fee Schedule but in no case no less than the same amount paid by DHCS for
the same services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal FFS program.

For dates of service on or after January 1, 2011, CalOptima shall reimburse Surgical
and Incontinence Supplies at one hundred percent (100%) of the CalOptima Medi-Cal
Fee Schedule but in no case no less than the same amount paid by DHCS for the same
services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal FFS program.

CalOptima shall reimburse “By Report” procedure codes in the same manner as DHCS.
CalOptima shall reimburse Family Planning Services at one hundred percent (100%) of
the CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule but in no case less than the same amount paid by

DHCS for the same services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal FFS
program.
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C.

a) CalOptima shall reimburse up thirteen cycles of oral contraceptives, a twelve (12)
month supply of patches (36 patches), and a twelve (12) month supply of vaginal
rings (12 rings), if such quantity is dispensed in an onsite clinic and billed by a
Qualified Family Planning Provider, including a non-contracted Qualified Family
Planning Provider, or dispensed by a pharmacist with a protocol approved by the
California State Board of Pharmacy and the Medical Board of California.

If a non-contracted birthing center is used for non-contracted Certified Nurse Midwife or Certified
Nurse Practitioner services, CalOptima shall reimburse facility and professional services at one
hundred percent (100%) of the CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule but in no case less than the same
amount paid by DHCS for the same services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal
FFS program.

Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) Payment: Subject to all applicable claims and UM
policies, CalOptima shall reimburse an FQHC that provides Covered Services to a Member of
CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, for Covered Services for which
CalOptima is financially responsible, as follows:

1. Contracted FQHC: CalOptima shall reimburse a Contracted FQHC based on the terms and
conditions of the contract between such FQHC and CalOptima. CalOptima’s contracted rates
for an FQHC shall not be less than CalOptima’s contracted rates to any other Provider or
Practitioner for the same scope of services.

2. Non-contracted FQHC:

a.

CalOptima shall reimburse a non-contracted FQHC for Covered Services rendered to a
Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, for Covered
Services for which CalOptima is financially responsible at one hundred percent (100%) of
the CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule but in no case less than the same amount paid by
DHCS for the same services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal FFS
program.

CalOptima shall reimburse a non-contracted FQHC for CHDP services, as set forth in
CalOptima Policy GG.1116: Pediatric Preventive Services, at one hundred percent (100%)
of the CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule but in no case less than the same amount paid by
DHCS for the same services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the Medi-Cal FFS
program.

CalOptima shall reimburse a non-contracted FQHC based on the Current Procedural
Terminology (CPT®) or Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) for each
procedure rendered, and not the FQHC’s all-inclusive rate.

E. American Indian Health Service Faetity-Program Payment: Subject to all applicable claims and UM
policies, CalOptima shall reimburse an Indian Health Service Facility that provides Covered
Services to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, for
Covered Services for which CalOptima is financially responsible as follows:
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1. Contracted American Indian Health Service FaetityProgram:

a. If the American Indian Health Service FaeHityProgram is a rural health clinic or qualifies as
an FQHC, CalOptima shall reimburse the facHityprogram at the facHity’sprogram’s interim
per visit rate as established by DHCS, or through an alternate reimbursement methodology
approved in writing by DHCS.

b. If the American Indian Health Service FaetityProgram is a rural health clinic or FQHC, and
CalOptima and the facitityprogram have agreed to an at-risk rate and the faciityprogram
has waived its rights to cost-based reimbursement under its contract with CalOptima,
CalOptima shall reimburse the faciityprogram at the negotiated rate.

c. Ifthe American Indian Health Service FacHityProgram is entitled to be reimbursed as an
American Indian Health Service Provider by the federal government at a rate other than the
rate described in (a) above, CalOptima shall reimburse the facilityprogram at the American
Indian Health Service payment rate.

2. Non-contracted American Indian Health Service FacHityProgram: CalOptima shall reimburse a
non-contracted American Indian Health Service FaeHityProgram at the approved Medi-Cal per
visit rate for that facility.

3. Effective for dates of service on or after January 1, 2018, CalOptima shall reimburse contracted
and non-contracted American Indian Health Service Programs at the current and applicable
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) encounter rate, published in the Federal Register .
These rates shall apply when services are provided to Members who are qualified to receive
services from an American Indian Health Services Program, as set forth in Supplement 6,
Attachment 4.19-B of the California Medicaid State Plan.

4. CalOptima shall ensure that the following criteria are met for receipt of payments:

a. The American Indian Health Program provider must be identified by DHCS;

b. Service must be a Covered Service included in CalOptima’s contract with DHCS;

c. As set forth in California Medicaid State Plan Supplemental 6. Attachment 4.19-B, only one
rate payment per day, per category, shall be allowed within the following three (3)
categories. This allows for a maximum of three (3) payments per day, one (1) from each

category:

i. Medical health visit;

ii. Mental health visit;

+iii.Ambulatory visit.

F. Ancillary Service Provider Payment: Subject to all applicable claims and UM policies, CalOptima
shall reimburse an Ancillary Service Provider for Covered Services rendered to a Member of
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H.

CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group for Covered Services for which
CalOptima is financially responsible as follows:

1. CalOptima shall reimburse a contracted Ancillary Services Provider based on the terms and
conditions of the contract between such Contracted Ancillary Service Provider and CalOptima.

2. CalOptima shall reimburse a Non-Contracted Ancillary Services Provider for Covered Services
rendered to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group, at
one hundred percent (100%) of the CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule but in no case less than
the same amount paid by DHCS for the same services rendered to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in the
Medi-Cal FFS program.

Non-Contracted Hospitals, Non-Contracted Practitioners, and Non-Contracted Ancillary Service
Providers shall not be eligible to participate in any CalOptima incentive payment programs.

A Practitioner or Provider shall not bill a Member for any portion of a Covered Service, as set forth
in Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 51002.

CalOptima shall recover, or reimburse, overpayments in accordance with CalOptima Policy
FF.2001: Claims Processing for Covered Services Rendered to CalOptima Direct-Administrative
Members, CalOptima Community Network Members, or Members Enrolled in a Shared Risk
Group.

PROCEDURE

A

A Provider or Practitioner that renders Covered Services to a Member of CalOptima Direct or a
Member enrolled in a Shared Risk Group for Covered Services for which CalOptima is financially
responsible shall submit claims to CalOptima, in accordance with CalOptima Policy FF.2001:
Claims Processing for Covered Services Rendered to CalOptima Direct-Administrative Members,
CalOptima Community Network Members, or Members Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group.

ATTACHMENTS

Not Applicable

REFERENCES

A. CalOptima Contract with the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) for Medi-Cal

B. CalOptima Policy AA.1000: Glossary of Terms

C. CalOptima Policy FF.1002: CalOptima Medi-Cal Fee Schedule

D. CalOptima Policy FF.2001: Claims Processing for Covered Services Rendered to CalOptima
Direct-Administrative Members, CalOptima Community Network Members or Members Enrolled
in a Shared Risk Group

E. CalOptima Policy FF.1004: Payments for Hospitals Contracted to Serve a Member of CalOptima
Direct, CalOptima Community Network or a Member Enrolled in a Shared Risk Group

F. CalOptima Policy GG.1500: Authorization Instructions for CalOptima Direct and CalOptima
Community Network Providers

G. CalOptima Policy GG.1116: Pediatric Preventive Services

H. CalOptima Policy HH.20222022A: Record Retention and Access
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I. CalOptima Policy HH.50805000A: Provider Overpayment Investigation and Determination
J. Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, 8851002, 55000 and 55140(a)
K. Section 1932(b)(2)(D) of the Social Security Act
L. California Welfare and Institutions Code, 8§, 14105.28 and 14166.245
M. California Health and Safety Code, §1797.1
N. This policy supersedes:

a. CalOptima Financial Letter dated August 25, 1995: Fee-for-service rates

b. CalOptima Financial Bulletin #3: Inpatient hospital reimbursement rates under “CalOptima

Direct”

CalOptima Financial Bulletin #5: Revised “CalOptima Direct” inpatient hospital rates

CalOptima Financial Bulletin #10: Family planning services

CalOptima Financial Bulletin #17: Additions to CalOptima Direct inpatient hospital rates

CalOptima Financial Bulletin #19: CalOptima Direct rates effective October 1, 1999

CalOptima Financial Bulletin #24: CalOptima Direct rates effective July 1, 2002

CalOptima Financial Bulletin #29: CalOptima Direct rates effective March 1, 2004

0. Manual of Current Procedural Terminology (CPT®), American Medical Association, Revised 2006

P. Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 17-020 (Revised): American
Indian Health Programs

P.Q.  Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 08-008: Reimbursement
for Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency Inpatient Services

Q-R.  Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 08-010: Hospital Payment
for Medi-Cal Post-Stabilization Services

R.S.  Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Policy Letter (PL) 96-09: Sexually Transmitted
Disease Services in Medi-Cal Managed Care

S.T.  Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Policy Letter (PL) 13-004: Rates For Emergency
and Post-Stabilization Acute Inpatient Services Provided By Out-Of-Network General Acute Care
Hospitals Based On Diagnosis Related Groups Effective July 1, 2013

FU.  Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 16-003(revised): Family
Planning Services Policy for Contraceptive Supplies

V. Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 15-017: Provision of
Certified Nurse Midwife and Alternative Birth Center Facility Services (Revised)

A£W. Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) All Plan Letter (APL) 16-016: Rate Changes for
Emergency and Post-Stabilization Services Provided by Out-of-Network "Border" Hospitals Under
the Diagnostic Related Group Payment Methodology
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VI. REGULATORY AGENCY APPROVALS

VII.

VIII.

11/09/17:
07/06/16:
03/10/14:
12/10/069:

COw>

Department of Health Care Services
Department of Health Care Services
Department of Health Care Services
Department of Health Care Services

BOARD ACTIONS

A. 10/04/18:

Reqular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

A-B.  06/06/13:
B-C. _ 11/05/09:
G:D.  11/06/08:
B-E.  10/02/08:
EF.  06/03/08:
EG.  12/04/07:
G-H. 06/05/07:

H-1.06/04/02:

Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors

Regular Meeting of the CalOptima Board of Directors
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